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#t ST T, @R T YRAR FHeAl F AE HA gRT 238 TR 20156 H {geE H vAvavd wad, & dwraferd e
Igaed I W |

Union Minister for Health and Family Welfare, Shri J.P Nadda inaugurated ‘HLL BHAWAN’, regional office in Mumbai on 23
November 2015.

o

A o ) AT, ARY U URAR ST & WH Hal 15 Fdax 2015 Bl 3Tl S(SAT I¥ice P Afshd Ao, T8 foolt &
FRpRIAT HeR 3R SISATIPeR T 3R gwelicd & 77 JPRSRd ARM Te Raafid s@ied BR dede ()
FRIHA  dd R |

Union Minister for Health and Family Welfare, Shri J.P. Nadda launched Affordable Medicines and Reliable Implants for
Treatment [AMRIT]a programme for affordable cancer and cardiovascular drugs and implants at All India Institute of
Medical Sciences, New Delhi on 15 November 2015.
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Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)
receiving the “Capexil Export Award”
from Mr. Kalraj Mishra, Minister of
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises,
Government of India on 28 January
2016.
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TAUATS AR UgSl & 1T & U §  Hlel dRedel Age! gRT Avefid B1Eght o & darae™ & S| TN
IR o= IR UTeaHd TR @ IAPEHS w7 A IPT BE Bl BEGRT REBR 5 |

HLL distributed scholarship awards to academically outstanding students who are pursuing professional and other specified
courses under the auspices of scholarship scheme instituted by HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society as part of CSR initiative,.

2 o G g1 R Td URAR bearol H H3il 7 20 BRaXt 2016 DI WRDR faeden avad (<I1) AfSebet bleisl, SATeroy
A YR Werferd) e & oy R & a8 99R1E 4 €9 gosaferd a1 @ 2

Shri J.P. Nadda, Union Minister of Health and Family Welfare lighting the lamp at the ceremony after laying the foundation
stone for new Super Specialty Block at the Government Tirumala Devaswom (TD) Medical College, Alappuzha on 20
February 2016.

Annual Report 2015-2016
9



EATHIG XTSUfey 27 9oTd HRaSil & hyepHell A Sf TH SFRAWH, TayeiVel 3fedel Ud ydy Fgerd, (Jarige & Tgd)
F RIS fEaT & Pl § vauagel & S| T o oy “IISTHINT Il REPR”, ATdl gR BN PR I ¢ |
HLL Chairman and Managing Director, Dr. M. Ayyappan (since retired) receiving the “Rajbhasha Kirti Puraskar”, for ninth

time for the outstanding performance of HLL in implementing the official language Hindi from Mr. Pranab Mukherjee, Hon’ble
President of India.

-

M NG, TRY UF URIR Hearo FE  H21 06 3, 2016 BT 713 faeell & g a1 feaviia Wi yRaR s

HHF TR TIUaUel gRT e feerdt ‘derde afeer ded o1 siuaiRe wU 9 o a-d ¢ |

Shri J.P Nadda, Union Minister of Health and Family Welfare formally launches affordable ‘Velvet' female Condom manufactured
by HLL on 06™ April, 2016 at the two-day National Family Planning Summit held at New Delhi.
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Tl & 3R TH FOH, o2 (T@Na! Ud Jared) (Fariga & Tge) Tauayd MMapad haesl & foy #ifsad whel S
- ST YIET REBR AFHY forell vd gkass w3 & smate gewe, W 14 faday 2015 &1 UIw R € |
Dr K.R.S. Krishnan, Director (Technical & Operations),(since retired) receiving the Best Performance Award — Medium Scale

Energy Consumers for HLL Akkulam Factory from Mr Aryadan Muhammed, Kerala State Minister for Electricity and Transport
on 14 December 2015.

) IR U WueSHdTd, YaelUel 31edel Ud gde o gwrl, st of @) Jw, WRed HHRMR, ORI @ SufRafa # s fage
rgaTd, vEy Feerd, d99 JoR Afsadd ddr druReE fafics & @ waeiyg & faffma v e € | Sf. a1g dm, Fowe
(Rqur) @1 ot o S|

Shri R.P. Khandelwal, HLL Chairman and Managing Director i/c seen exchanging MoU with Shri Vipul Aggarwal, Managing

Director, M/s. Gujarat Medical Service Corporation Limited in the presence of Shri J.P. Gupta, Health Commissioner,
Gujarat. Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing), HLLis also seen.
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VISION/MISSION & OBJECTIVES

To be a globally respected organisation, focusing on inclusiveness by providing affordable and quality healthcare
solutions through continuous innovation.

MISSION
To accomplish the Corporate Vision, HLL Lifecare Ltd has outlined following Mission which focus on six key
areas:
®  Provide quality products and services meeting international standards.
®  Excellence through continual improvement by adoption of best technologies and practices.
®  Customer delight and value creation through innovation, R & D, cost management and customer care.
®  Focusing on human resource development to meet the needs of challenging business environment.
®  Beasocially committed corporate by maintaining highest standards of corporate governance and corporate
social responsibility.
®  Committed to the well-being of mother earth and future generations through green initiatives and promotion
of sustainable development.
OBJECTIVES

The company will strive to fulfill its vision/mission by

Attaining rapid growth and global levels of operations with high quality cost competitiveness and be
among the top three players in each main product category.

Create a culture of continuous innovation through R& D initiatives.
Strive to be the employer of choice in India with employee satisfaction levels of over 90%.

Be recognized as the leading social organization in the field of Reproductive and Women's Healthcare
with commitment to the society - a partner of choice for implementing all government and multi-lateral
initiatives in these segments.

Focussing on capacity building, skill development and infrastructural development for the benefit of the
marginalized and under privileged sections for their empowerment and inclusion in the economic
mainstream.

To place emphasis on environmental friendly activities that brings out conservation of resources and
waste management leading to top sustainable development.

Annual Report 2015-2016
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QUALITY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to:

Provide affordable healthcare solutions focussing on inclusiveness, conforming to international standards,
enabling people to lead healthy and happy lives;

Achieve organisational excellence through continual improvement by adoption of best technologies
and practices in all areas;

Market products and services globally delivering highest value for customers through focus on innovation,
quality, R&D, cost management and customer relationship management;

Be an organisation meeting highest standards in Corporate Governance and Corporate Social
Responsibility.

SHE POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to protect environment, eliminate occupational hazards and
ensure safety of employees & subcontractors through:

HLL

Monitoring and control of the impact of its activities, products and services on a continual basis;
Compliance of applicable legal and other requirements;

Adopting safe operating practices with an emphasis on social accountability.

Facilitating employee training and their involvement;

Pollution mitigation through adoption of best practices;

Conserving materials, energy and reducing waste at source, and/ encouraging usage of renewable
energy sources;

Periodic review of safety, health and environment management system.

LAB QUALITY POLICY

Lifecare Limited is committed to:
Ensure reliable, consistent and traceable results of testing by using test methods complying to national/
international standards and by following good professional practices.

Ensure that all personnel involved in the testing operations familiarize with the policies and procedures
of the management system conforming to ISO/IEC 17025 : 2005 and implement the same in their
works.

Continually improve the effectiveness of the management system.

ENERGY POLICY

HLL Lifecare Limited is committed to buying and using energy in the most cost effective, efficient
and environmentally responsible way through:

Monitoring, reviewing and controlling of energy management system activities and services on a
continual basis for reducing energy demand and increasing energy efficiency.

Sourcing energy efficient products/services and encouraging usage of renewable energy sources.
Compliance of applicable legal and other requirements related to energy use, consumption and efficiency.
Utilizing the available information and resources to achieve the objectives and targets.

Facilitating employee training and their involvement in energy management activities.

Annual Report 2015-2016
15



STEYE] hT HIYYT

7 3eTe ],

BT P AGLD Heel DI IR A, TAUSATe Bl WUl STcH, a1y AHIRI 96 H 3119 U U Dl TG @RI HRAT

R Y 98 TR Td AT S 91 2 1 9§ 2015-16 89X @Y o Al YR 81 2 | <iig 9y (T ars) 2015-16

P ST AT B &6 TS AP AT die 3 o1 fcha et 8 | 37! Hu= FARNYU! U 99 & qrase Wt q 9

g3 I TR g € &M R 3R U Td 99 i SR T |

3ast S T & W H, <l af 2015-16 & 50 df arfife IS Mmuch et IR Hal & |

3T YT 7 TSN IR W 1062 91 FRIS T HieTI@R IR el Y AT o’ H Udh 7T W1 9 I

HIT 2| gaTerd A o ay 2014-15 & 31058.04 o€ 9 99 2015-16 # 3106291 IxIS 96 € gs o | a9

2015-16 H &~ & dIe @4 328.88 &S & |

3ah! Ty G T BRAT § D NI Aad Heod 7 g 9§ 2015-16 (U8l 99 & RER) & Y U Bl &

3t IR Yot R 9 T %10 & 3f vl oI & ¥ T IR I 30,13 T el BT @l &1 99 2015-16 & Y arafer

P BRI el T AR PR A 84 465 .87 oG ( USel a9 & aRTeER) 8, Sl Bl &b B b a6 o (1 g ) & 16%

Y IR R 2 |

3MIaT HUH & I§ 2015-16 & IPT IUATRIAT 3TqD AT T -1 HIHFT FHSI §:

o HRA W G U 67 TSl H TAR Gl TY §S S Bl 'WIRd & qad A4 YT Fie DI geR g 2016 & w9 A
IS HAT AT | H8 4 Tiee AR RIS IR H dfd $HAT 77 |

o Ml 9T 3719 wted BT 100% BT HSA HAT 17 3R 45% g g Gl HaT |

o 3% G SI, HEA B & JOY HSMI Bl YT & Y F TT UH U T &b A1 Sl FHsial (Tef < ) |
BN DT AT & |

o TAUATA SWHICH FAIA o ACE (B15CH), TaUald & JUl U A W1 Hed TN Bl TR Ud T AR HeTo]
HATA (TH 311 T U S&g), WRA ARBR & ‘BRI 0T YOIl & w9 H 1 & I HAT 17 2 |

o BISCH Pl RA WER §RI s S 7 8% &b fe I TURTSY ¥ TR YIS HAIGd B & Y U AT HeerT
URTARIETT & w0 H, Tgh HAT AT |

o USHA SUY BH AN W Wl H g THIU B S AR ARG b A1 - AJTY b GATIRYT - et
T THI §F - H UMD &b oY P qC AJHAIGT DI TR B ST &, S 3fd @eitell Td A TR 2 |

o TIUAVH 7 HER AR g M1 AT & oY IE119 e Y& B B T, T8 Goell 3 M e IMScale Gall
21 9RT WX & 3000 Hal H 3 g 3P g Sleal 8] AT U BT ST |

o TIUAUA P WG H b A olcdd AT H BTl b Bl Seog Ud 311 Ul & AFAIG I 83T |

o TIT - UICHT IMMT T H BAT ¥ 5 3T 2016 DI 8 Tooll H ML YIAR T T P SR YR &
AT TRey #3187 of Ul €1 gRT dre BT T |

o TIUAUA | T8I 3R GAaFIY IR RET G JoT Y& PR Pl H Sl Dlelol, TOIIIYRA 4 feacisd &l Tb
EERCIRERIRCIRERE CCIC I

o TIUAVH F ORI I H g AMGE TSR] SRAATe] § Aol A9 TRI BT FAT 4T AR A A Bl & Y
ORI H Shdl Hal TH o s (ST UH T 31 TeT) 3iR ORI AT T 3R U1 gehR0T (ST 31 G 3R Q) & AT
T 3 g H BRER BT

BN BT g9 20019-10 F AR Ihee AT U BT S R8T © | THeAidT & AR TR, JoIid U F AR

a9 2015-16 & IV TH 3 g WhIR ‘a8 3BT IS d 3R & |

AMIEHT HU 1 HGS T e THNT §RT SIRT B Y BIUNT 3 WA T AL P A1 ST BT o7 |

H, IRA ARBR &b 999 JHFN, TRV WRY U4 U AR HedT0] HATTd I T AR FHT T FerIdl & 9

TSI IFaT PRl & |

ot IR, 9. @A
J1eYey UG YgY A< h
TIUCITA TShhIR o ACS

¥ RYIE 2015-2016
16



o A
. = . . .
)7 HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

CHAIRMAN'S SPEECH

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the company, it is a great honour and privilege for me to extend a very
warm welcome to each one of you to the Golden Jubilee, Annual General Meeting of HLL. Year 2015 -16 has
been a milestone year for us.It gives me great pleasure to share with you the performance of your Company
during the Financial Year (FY) 2015-16. Your company continued to deliver another year of consistent growth
on various fronts despite the challenging environment.

With your permission | present before you the 50" Annual Report for the financial year 2015-16.
Your Company achieved a new landmark in operational revenues, crossing the ¥1062.91 Cr.milestone on a
standalone basis. Revenue from operations has grown from3¥1058.04 Cr. in 2014-15 t0 ¥1062.91 Cr. in 2015-16.
Profit after Tax is ¥28.88 Cr. in 2015-16.
| am very happy to inform you that your Board of directors has recommended dividend of ¥0.13 per share of face
value of ¥10 each on the paid-up equity share capital of the Company for the financial year 2015-16
(at par with previous year). The total outgo on account of dividend, inclusive of dividend tax, for 2015-16 is
T465.871akh (at par with previous year), which represents a pay-out of 16% of the Company’s Profit after Tax
(PAT).
Itis my privilege to share with you the significant achievements of your Company in the year 2015-16:
®  Our flagship brand, MOODS was identified as POWER BRAND 2016 “the most recognized brand of

India” featuring in the selected 67 brands from India. MOODS Gold Series launched in international

market

Pharma Division achieved 100% of the target and registered a growth of 45%.

Long Term Agreement (LTA) signed with UNFPA for supplying IUD, Female Condoms & Male Condoms.

HLL Infra Tech Services Limited [HITES], a wholly owned subsidiary of HLL was notified as the ‘Executive
Agency’of Ministry of Health & Family Welfare (MoHFW), Government of India.

e HITES was appointed as Project Management Consultant for Strengthening of Health System in Republic
of Guinea under line of credit funding by Government of India

® Cabinet approval expected for a ‘state of the art’ ecofriendly manufacturing hub— MEDIPARK -with
common infrastructure to indigenously manufacture medical devices at lower cost, which are
presently expensive and import dependent.

® HLL opened AMRIT retail pharmacy outlets in AIIMS, New Delhi to provide affordable drugs for
cancer and heart diseases. More AMRIT centers will be soon established at 3000 centers across
India.
HLL's indigenously developed Latex based Female Condom got WHO PQ approval.

® Velvet — Latex based Female condom was launched during the National Family Planning Summit
on 5" April 2016 at New Delhi by the Honorable Health Minister of India, Sri. J P Nadda.

e HLL opened HINDLABS diagnostics centre & Specialty Clinic at Medical College, Trivandrum to provide
affordable and reliable healthcare facilities.

® HLL inked MoU with Gujarat Medical Service Corporation Limited [GMSCL] and Gujarat CSR Authority
[GCSRA]Jto set up and operate retail drug stores in specified Government hospitals in the State of
Guijarat.

The Company has been getting Excellent rating consecutively since 2009-10. Based on the self-assessment,
MoU score for the year 2015-16 is within the “Very Good” range as per the Evaluation Report.

Your Company had complied with Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises.

| gratefully acknowledge the continued support and help received from various departments of Government
of India, particularly from the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare.

Shri R.P. Khandelwal
Chairman and Managing Director
HLL Lifecare Limited

Annual Report 2015-2016
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No.HLL/CS/2-338/2016 24 August 2016

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 50" Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of HLL Lifecare Ltd.
will be held at New Delhi on Friday, the 23" of September 2016 at 3.00p.m. at the Committee Room,
Room No.155-A, 1% Floor, Nirman Bhavan, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including audited consolidated financial
statements) for the year ended 315 March 2016 along with the Report of the Directors, Statutory
Auditors together with comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) thereon.

To declare dividend on the equity shares of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March
2016.

To authorize the Board of Directors to fix remuneration payable to the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for the year 2016-17.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the requirement of Section 142 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to fix the remuneration to the
Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the year 2016-17".

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

Ratification of Cost Auditors’ remuneration for the Financial Year 2016-17.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without modification as an
ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the Company hereby fix the
remuneration of I1.5 lakh plus service tax and out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s. Jugal
K.Puri Associates, Cost Accountants, Gurgaon (Firm Registration No:000207) and 2.5 lakh plus
service tax and out-of-pocket expenses payable to M/s S. Nair & Associates, Cost Accountants,
Thiruvananthapuram (Firm Registration N0:102913), who were appointed by the Board of Directors

as Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
financial year ending 31 March 2017.”

By the order of the Board

(P. SREEKUMAR)
COMPANY SECRETARY & SVP (HR)
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Notes:

1.

To

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and on
a poll to vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company.
Proxies, in order to be valid and effective, must be lodged with the registered office of the
company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

Pursuant to Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors of a Government
Company are appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG). In terms of
Section 142(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the remuneration of auditors has to be fixed by the
company in the annual general meeting or in such manner as the company in annual general
meeting may determine. Necessary resolution has been placed before the Members for authorising
the Board of Directors to fix up the remuneration to the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the
financial year 2016-17.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, setting out the material facts in respect of Special
Business is annexed.

Shareholders
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory statement sets
out the matter in relation to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying notice:

Item No. 4

The Company is directed, under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, to have the audit of its cost records conducted by a Cost
Accountant in practice. The Board of Directors of your Company, based on recommendation of the
Audit Committee, approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s. Jugal K.Puri Associates, Gurgaon
and M/s S. Nair & Associates, Cost Accountants, Thiruvananthapuram for the financial year ending
March 31, 2017. In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 14 (a) (ii) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the
Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members
is sought for passing ordinary resolution for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors
for the financial year ending March 31, 2017. None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their relatives is concerned or interested in the aforesaid ordinary resolution. The Board
recommends the aforesaid resolution for your approval.

By the order of the Board

(P. SREEKUMAR)
COMPANY SECRETARY & SVP (HR)
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|. DIRECTORS’ REPORT (2015-16)

The Members
HLL Lifecare Ltd.

The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the fiftieth (50th) Annual Report of the Company together
with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016 and Auditors' Report and the Report
thereon by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company's financial performance, for the year ended March 31, 2016 is summarised below:

(X in lakh)
Financial particulars Standalone Consolidated

2015-16 2014-15 2015-16 2014-15
Revenue from operations (gross) 107208.46 106438.70  113825.19 111363.76
Excise duty 917.27 633.74 1089.54 810.69
Revenue from operations (net) 106291.19 105804.96 112735.65 110553.07
Other income 876.89 398.37 816.33 455.49
Total income 107168.08 106203.33  113551.98  111008.56
Profit before tax 3803.04 3752.79 4202.48 3903.12
Tax expense 914.77 597.65 1153.68 589.22
Profit for the year 2888.27 3155.14 3170.04 3313.90
Dividend (including tax on distributed profits) 465.87 465.87 465.87 465.87
Transfer to General Reserve 2422.40 2689.31 2631.49 2801.22

2. PERFORMANCE REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Your Company achieved a new landmark in operational revenues, crossing the ¥1062.91 crores milestone on
a standalone basis. The highlights of the Company's performance are as under:

e Revenue from operations has grown from ¥1058.04 Cr.in 2014-15 to 31062.91 Cr. in 2015-16.

e Profit before tax is ¥38.03 Cr. in 2015-16 compared to ¥37.53 Cr.in 2014-15.

e Profit after Tax is ¥28.88 Cr. in 2015-16 compared to I31.55 Cr. in 2014-15.

e Net worth has grown from 3426.28 Cr. in 2014-15 to ¥547.39 Cr. having a growth of 28.41% in 2015-16.

Your Company is witnessing an exciting phase of growth and is working on a long term plan "Vision 2020"
which will steer the Company towards meeting its strategic objectives. Your Company is on the path of building
capabilities in the identified focus areas and has initiated various steps for augmenting production capacity and
product line apart from diversifying business activities with enhanced stress on market penetration, which will
position your Company among high performers in the industry.

3. DIVIDEND

The Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of ¥ 0.13 per share of face value of ¥10 each on the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company for the financial year 2015-16. The total outgo on account of dividend,
inclusive of dividend tax, for 2015-16 is ¥465.87 lakhs (at par with previous year), which represents a pay-out
of 16% of the Company's Profit after Tax (PAT). Payment of dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Company propose to transfer an amount of ¥2,422.40 lakhs to the General Reserves.
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4. SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2016 was stood at ¥300.00 Cr. as the same of
previous year and the issued, subscribed and paid up equity share capital as on 31st March, 2016 was
$290.42 Cr.

In May 2015 and September 2015 the Company received 340.00 Cr. and ¥56.88 Cr. from Government of India
towards equity infusion for which the allotment of 9,68,80,000 equity shares of 310 each ranking pari-passu
with existing shares has been made. Consequently, the paid up equity share capital of the Company has
increased to 3290.42 Cr.as on date of this report.

5. RATING OF THE COMPANY vis-a-vis MoU TARGETS

Your Company's performance has been rated as "Excellent” in terms of MoU signed with the Government of
India for the year 2014-15. The Company has been getting Excellent rating consecutively since 2009-10.
Based on the self-assessment, your Company is likely to achieve "Excellent" rating for the year 2015-16 as
well. The self-assessment details based on the Evaluation criteria are summarized below:

Evaluation Criteria Documentary MoU Target
source

a) Sales Turnover, excluding interest and other income
(Operating Turnover) Sales Turnover shall not include

excise duty, custom duty, VAT or any other duty, tax, etc. Annual Report 31012.88 Cr
b) Gross Operating Margin Self Certificate
based on
Annual Report 3 201.04 Cr

(i) Profitability
b) PAT/Net Worth Annual Report 5.30%
(iii) Costs and Output Efficiency

Average Collection Period of Trade Receivables Self Certificate
(Debtors Turnover Ratio) based on
Annual Report 221 days
(iv) Efficiency of Asset Use
a) Average No. Days of Inventory (Inventory Self Certificate
Turnover Ratio) based on
Annual Report 48 days
6. DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company did not accept any deposits within the meaning of provisions of Chapter
V-Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

7. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, your Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the investments made by Company are given in the notes
to the financial statements.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
All the Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm's length basis and
were in ordinary course of business.

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year 2015-16 which were
in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required under AS-18 have been made in Note
No.2.11 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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All related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of business and were on
an arm's length basis. Particulars of contract/arrangements/transactions made with related parties, pursuant
to Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed form AOC-2 is appended as Annexure | which
forms part of this report.

9. SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURE

As on March 31, 2016, your Company has three subsidiary companies and one joint venture Company. The
summary of performance of the subsidiary and joint venture companies is provided below:

9.1 HLL Biotech Limited (HBL)

HLL Biotech Limited (HBL), the wholly owned subsidiary company has completed fourth year of its
incorporation on 12th March 2016. The Authorized Share capital of the Company stood at ¥ 285.00 Cr. as the
same of previous year. The paid up Capital of the Company has been increased from ¥178.01 Cr. to 3274.89
Cr. During the year the Company received equity infusion of ¥ 96.88 Cr.

During the year under review HBL has successfully accomplished mechanical completion of the facility in
Feb’ 2016. The Infrastructure systems for water & HVAC are ready for the validation activities which are
expected to start by May 2016. The production of trail batches of vaccines is expected to commence by
January 2017 and the commercial production by April 2018 after clinical trials.

HBL has successfully developed Vero cell culture derived Rabies vaccine by in-house research. Preclinical
studies followed by two years real time and accelerated stabilities of the laboratory scale vaccine was
performed successfully demonstrating the safety, efficacy and stability of the vaccine.

HBL has started R&D activities for in-house process development of JE vaccine is initiated with seed isolate
sourced from NIV, Pune. Methods for adapting JE virus isolate on Vero cells is being carried out in the R&D
Lab.

9.2 Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (GAPL)

The authorized and paid up share capital of GAPL is ¥ 25 Cr. and ¥19.02 Cr. respectively as on 31st March
2016. The shareholding of HLL Lifecare Limited (holding company) in GAPL is 74% and balance 26% is held
by EDC Limited.

During the year under review, the Revenue from operations has grown by 2.34% as compared with the
previous year. The net profit of the Company has grown by 28% as compared with the year before.

GAPL is a Pharmaceutical formulation manufacturing Company and manufactures drugs in the range of
Allopathic, Ayurveda and Homeopathic systems of medicine. Considering the future business plans, business
prospects from overseas markets, contract manufacturing opportunities, and to meet WHO GMP a independent
production block for manufacturing of Cephalosporin range of tablets/Capsules and Dry powder parenteral
products[DPP] is proposed to establish at GAPL factory location. The proposed new block for Cephalosporin
range of formulations will not only facilitate compliance with cGMP norms but also will enhance scope for
additional business prospects in the range of Cephalosporin Injections, Tablets as well as Capsules.
Further, installation of a state of the art new facility will also support product contract manufacturing as well as
product export to regulated and non-regulated markets and thus enable the Company to explore new business
avenues.

9.3 HLL Infra Tech Services Ltd. (HITES)

HITES was incorporated on 3rd April 2014 as a wholly owned subsidiary of HLL Lifecare Limited to carry on
the business of providing services viz., Infrastructure Development, Facilities Management, Procurement
Consultancy and allied services, foreseeing the enormous scope of business in these segments.

During the year 2015-16 HITES achieved a commendable Turnover of ¥1953.81 lakhs. The Profit after tax
was increased to 3116.46 lakhs and the Net Worth has grown to ¥ 77.66 lakhs.

HITES is primarily operating in healthcare infrastructure development and allied field. With the government
favorable policies, the Company is expected to increase the performance in all fields in the coming years.
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9.4 Lifespring Hospitals (P) Limited
In 2015-16, the business income of LifeSpring Hospitals (P) Ltd (LSH), the 50:50 joint venture between HLL Lifecare

and Acumen Fund, had grown by 12.41% as compared with business income for year 2014-15. LSH has facilitated
delivery of 6461 babies during the year under review.

Presently, the JV is running a cluster of 12 hospitals in Hyderabad and one hospital at Vishakhapatnam in Andhra
Pradesh. Among these, 4 hospitals have completed 8 years, 3 hospitals have completed 6 years, remaining 6
hospitals have completed 4 years of operations and the hospital at Vishakhapatnam has completed 8 months as
on 31.03.2015. Normally, for hospital business the gestation period is fairly long. As the services at Life Spring
Hospitals are offered at very affordable rates, aimed at meeting social commitments, it would normally take 5 - 7
years to achieve breakeven level in operations. Among the 6 - 8 year old hospitals, 6 hospitals are generating
profits from 2013-14. Out of the 12 hospitals in Hyderabad, 6 hospitals have reported profit before tax during the
year, 2 hospitals made cash profits and 2 hospitals made profits at Unit level.

In the current year 2015-16, the performance at the enterprise level has been steadily improving. The Company
recorded a profit of ¥ 5.60 lakhs during 2015-16.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries and joint venture
companies in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial statements.

10. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS)-21 on Consolidated Financial Statements and AS-27 on
Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures, the audited consolidated financial statement is provided in
the Annual Report. The Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies, along with related information are
available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company, as also at the registered offices of the
respective subsidiary companies and will be available for inspection during working hours.

11. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls, commensurate with the nature of its
business, size and complexity of operations. This ensures that all transactions are approved and authorized
as per delegation of powers, recorded and reported correctly, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records in SAP driven environment, timely preparation of reliable financial statements are maintained and
assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition. These systems
are routinely tested and certified by statutory as well as internal auditors and cover all units, divisions and key
business areas. HLL, being a public sector undertaking, is subject to various CAG audit also. Significant
audit observations and follow-up actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee. Corporate Audit
Services conduct operations & management audit on the selected areas with an objective of reviewing the
performance efficiency &assurance on internal controls. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and
effectiveness of the company’s internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit
recommendations, including those relating to strengthening of the company’s risk management policies
and systems.

12. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal framework to the
Directors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct and ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards
against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the year in this regard.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has adopted a robust Risk Management Policy approved by the Board of Directors. It
establishes various levels of accountability and overview within the Company, while vesting identified
managers with responsibility for each significant risk. The Company has identified various risks and also
has mitigation plans for each risk identified. The Corporate Audit Service Department facilitates the execution
of Risk Management Practices in the Company, in the areas of risk identification, assessment, monitoring,
mitigation and reporting. Your Company has an established Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) system
that engageswith all the business verticals for risk assessment and ensures that the risk mitigation plans
are in place and validates its status regularly. The Audit Committee of the Board oversees the Risk Management
process.
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14. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY

There were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the
going concern status and operations of the Company.

15. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end
of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and on the date of this report.

16. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, your
Directors confirm that:

a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and
that no material departures have been made from the same;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fairview of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profits of the Company for that period;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

17. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information regarding particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limit specified under
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable as
none of the employees of the Company has drawn remuneration in excess of the stipulated limit, during the
year under review.

18. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 an extract of the Annual Return as at March 31, 2016 in form
MGT 9 is appended as Annexure Il to the Board’s Report.

19. AUDITORS
19.1Statutory Auditors

The observations/qualifications made in the Auditors’ Report read together with relevant notes thereon are
self-explanatory and hence, do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013.

19.2 Cost Auditors

M/s. S. Nair & Associates, Cost Accountants, Trivandrum and M/s. Jugal K. Puri & Associates, Cost
Accountants, New Gurgaon were appointed as Cost Auditors for the financial year 2015-16 to conduct cost
audit of the accounts maintained by the Company in respect of the various products prescribed under
Companies (Cost Records & Audit Rules), 2014. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act
readwith the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Members are requested to consider the ratification
of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors.
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19.3 Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s. BVR &
ASSOCIATES, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for
the year ended 31st March, 2016. The Secretarial Audit Reportin Form No. MR3 forms part of the Annual Report
as Annexure lll to the Board’s Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark.

20. PROCUREMENT OF GOODS FROM MSMEs

During the year 2015-16, the Company has procured goods of value of ¥7,401.00 lakhs from Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises (MSMESs) out of the total procurement of ¥26,117.00 lakhs which is 28.34% as against the
target of 20%. The Company has also conducted 14 Vendor Development Programmes for MSMEs.

21. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNICAL ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/OUTGO

The particulars regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo, as prescribed under sub-section 3 (m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are given as Annexure-A, which forms part of this report.

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILTY

HLL implements CSR programmes directly and through its implementing agencies such as HLL Family Planning
and Promotion Trust [HLFPPT] and HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society. During the year the Company has
undertaken many CSR initiative programmes. In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the Company has established Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. Statutory disclosures with respect to the CSR Committee and Annual
Report on CSR activities of the Company pursuant to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014
for the financial year 2015-16 forms part of this Report as Annexure B.

23. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of good corporate governance and has taken
adequate steps to adhere to all stipulations laid down in DPE O.M. No. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14-05-2010 issued by
Department of Public enterprises. Report on Corporate Governance along with the Certificate of the Statutory
Auditors M/s. Abraham & Jose, Chartered Accountants confirming compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
form part of this report as Annexure IV.

24. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is presented in a separate section forming
part of this report.

25. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
During the year under review, the following change took place in the Directorship of the Company:
25.1 Cessation

Shri K Mohandas, ceased as Independent Director with effect from 06th January, 2016. The Board of Directors
placed on record their deep appreciation for the valuable guidance extended by Shri K Mohandas during his
association with the Company.

25.2 Woman Director

In terms of the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company shall have at least one
Woman Director on the Board. Your Company has Dr. Aarti Vij as Independent Director on the Board of the
Company since December 3, 2010.

25.3 Committees of the Board

Your Company has several committees which have been established as a part of the best corporate governance
practices and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes.
There have been no situations where the Board has not accepted any recommendation of the Audit Committee.
The Company has following Committees of the Board:
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Audit Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Strategy Formulation & Investment Committee

A detailed note with respect to the compositions, powers, roles, terms of reference, etc. of relevant committees
are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance section which forms part of this Annual Report.

25.4 Declaration from Independent Directors

The Board has received declarations from each Independent Director as per the requirement of Section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is satisfied that the Independent Directors meet the criteria
of independence as mentioned in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

25.5 Board Meetings held during the year

During the year, six meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The maximum interval between any two
meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the meetings are
furnished in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of this Report.

26. POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT
WORKPLACE

The Company implemented the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. The Policy aims to provide protection to
employees from sexual harassment at the workplace and redress complaints of sexual harassment. Your
Company firmly believes that sexual harassment results in violation of the fundamental rights of a woman's
equality under articles 14 and 15 of the Constitution of India and the right to life and to live with dignity under
article 21 of the Constitution and the right to practice any profession or to carry on any occupation, trade or
business which includes a right to a safe environment free from sexual harassment. Redressal Committees
have been constituted in all units of the company. Meetings are conducted on regular intervals. Your company
conducted 2 meetings with lady employees during the year. A talk was conducted on Women Empowerment
by Advt. Sandhya Santhosh as part of International Women'’s Day Celebration at 8" March, 2016. The Company
has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2015-16.

27. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

In order to meet the demands due to the growth of data and implementation of value processes, SAP infrastructure
was enhanced during the period. Athird party audit of the SAP solution is being conducted to evaluate and identify
the scope of further improvement opportunities and controls. SAP application was rolled out to HITES, as per the
formation of subsidiary company and operations were started in Finance module.

28. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Corporate R&D Centre (CRDC) of your Company is dedicated to carrying out multi-disciplinary research and
development aimed at creating scientific knowledge for new technology development and value addition of
existing technologies in the healthcare field. CRDC is committed to achieving the vision through generation of
knowledge base for novel technologies in healthcare field, value added R&D services that meet/exceed customer
expectation and human resource development through quality improvement programmes along with safe
and healthy work environment.

During the year under review HLL R&D received Drugs Controller General of India (DCGI) approval for
conducting phase Il clinical trial of coated Copper T in India for a randomized, single blind, multi-center,
parallel-arm, pilot scale study to ascertain the efficacy of coated Copper T in reducing bleeding side effect as
compared with Copper T 380 A for a maximum 1 year. The study will be carried out in 200 subject across 10different
sites spread nationally. CRDC also received state drug controller license to manufacture Coated Copper T
Intrauterine device for the purpose of examination, test or analysis for a period of 1 year.

During the year under review, CRDC successfully developed sanitary napkins using Silver nano particles for
improved sterility.
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The Scientific Advisory Committee constituted by the Company by drawing renowned _-scientists from diverse
field's relevant to HLL's research activities is providing guidance to the functioning of CRDC.

The R&D projects of CRDC have bagged funding as mentioned below.
e Funding for development of Graphene Condoms by Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation

® Funding by DST Fast track scheme for the development of Drug Incorporated Electrospun Fibers
based drug Delivery system for Contraception.
Patents filed by CRDC:

1. On July 2015 a patent application for Methods and formulation of Sublingual Oxytocin Film was
filed

2. On March 2015 for Targeted bioavailable and safe delivery of mucoadhesive polymer coated iron
particles

Patent awarded to CRDC
1. PatentNo. 2013/1000032970, Portugal for a novel intrauterine device with controlled copper release.

2. Patent No. 2013/07698, an improved female condom and process of manufacturing the same using
natural rubber latex.

Your Company has incurred expenditure on Research& Development during year 2015-16 as mentioned below:
Capital expenditure - 481.26lakhs
Recurring expenditure - 3696.70 lakhs

29. TECHNOLOGY TIE-UPS

Your Company has been giving thrust to technology acquisition and/or development in the recent past. The major
technology tie-ups forged by the Company in year 2015-16 includes the following:

- Signed MoU with Adyar Cancer Institute, Chennai for the technology for ELISA based P16 assay for
cervical cancer.
- Technology transfer by CRDC for manufacturing of HCG urine pregnancy test card from basic coating
stage.
30. QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS
During the year, the Company’s manufacturing units have obtained/renewed the following new certifications:

® SO 9001:2008 certification for manufacturing units at by HLL Akkulam Factory, Peroorkada Factory,
Kanagala Factory, Manesar and Irapuram Factory Kochi.

® |SO 50001:2011 certification for manufacturing unit at Akkulam.
® SAB mark for female condoms manufactured at Kochi and Peroorkada units.

® SO 13485:2003 certification for manufacturing units at Akkulam, peroorkada, Kanagala, Manesar,
Irapuram.

® SO 14001:2004 certification for manufacturing units at Akkulam, peroorkada, Kanagala and Kochi
for Efficient Environment Management Systems.

® OHSAS 18001:2007 certification for units at Akkulam, peroorkada, Kanagala and Kochi for Occupational
Health and Safety.

® |SO50001: 2011 certification for unit at Peroorkada for Energy Management System.

® NABL accreditation for finished products testing laboratory at Peroorkada Unit, Thiruvananthapuram in
accordance with ISO 17025:2005.

® NABL accreditation for medical testing at HINDLABS, New Delhi in accordance with ISO 15189:2012.
® CE mark for Male Condoms manufactured at Peroorkada and Kochi units.

® CE Mark for Female Condoms manufactured at Kochi and Peroorkada units.

e CE markfor Blood Bags, Intrauterine Device and Surgical Sutures produced at Akkulam Units.

® CE mark for Pregnancy Test Cards [PTC]

® Peroorkada Factory continued to possess product certifications such as KITE mark, CMD CAS, NF
mark, SABS mark.
Annual Report 2015-2016
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31. HUMAN RESOURCES
31.1 Human Resources Development

Your company gives high priority for development of human resources employed by them. During the year
under review, the company had organized various training programmes involving 1150 man days for executives
and 2313 man days for workmen.

31.2 Industrial Relations

The year 2015-16 witnessed harmonious industrial relations in the company as in the previous years, and no
mandays lost on account of labour unrest;

31.3 Reservation for SC/ST/OBC and physically challenged

The company continues to follow the presidential directives in respect of reservation to SC/ST/OBC Communities
and efforts are taken to fulfill the directives in Recruitment and Promotion. Serious and focused effort was
also taken for Special Recruitment Drives.

The representation of SC/ST/OBC/Persons with Disabilities categories in the total employee strength as on
01.04.2016 is given below:

Description No. of employees
Representation of : SC 290
ST 71
OBC 453
Persons with Disabilities 50
Other categories 1004
Total strength of employees 1868

31.4. Status of implementation of posts reserved for persons with disabilities in HLL Lifecare Limited
as on 31.03.2016

No. of Post reserved for PwDs No. of Post currently held by PwDs
Group Total Blindness Hearing Locomotor Blindness Hearing Locomotor
number or low impaired disability or or low impaired disabilty
of posts vision cerebral vision or cerebral
identified palsy palsy
A&B 563 5 6 6 0 1 12
C&D 1307 13 13 13 3 9 25

32. IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE POLICY

Your Company is implementing and complying with all the provisions of OL Act & Rules under Official Language
Policy of the Union. During the year your company conducted various activities such as Hindi Mela, Music Night,
Balasibiram, section meetings Hindi Forum meetings, Hindi Vachan programmes for creating a conducive
environment for promoting and propagating official Language in the Company. 171 employees were trained in
Refresher training programmes, OL Awareness programmes, and Computer trainings. A seminar was conducted
on ‘50th Year of HLL- Achievements & Acclamations’. 43 employees participated in the Seminar and 9 paper
presentations were made by employees in Hindi.

Hindi Fortnight Celebrations was conducted in befitting manner in Head Office and in Units. Various competitions
and training programme were organized for employees and children of employees. An Eloquence programme
was conducted on ‘the growing need for affordable healthcare solutions and the role of HLL as part of Hindi
Fortnight Celebrations. Hindi Fortnight Celebration was also extended to the students of 6 schools adopted under
CSR activities of the Company. 94 students were participated in the competitions. Also Spoken Hindi Classes,
Hindi Grammar classes are conducted for the students on monthly basis to enhance their knowledge in Hindi.
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8 Units were inspected in order to identify their position in Hindi implementation by the Head office and
inspection was carried out in HLL by Ministry of Home Affairs and Ministry of Health and Family Welfare.
Various incentives and awards were extended to the employees for doing official work in Hindi, for Writing
Articles, for passing Hindi examination with 90% marks in Hindi by the children of employees. A Rolling
Shield was instituted by Head Office for the unit which excels in the Official Language Implementation. A
meritorious citation award was instituted in the company as per the direction of Ministry of Heavy Industries
& Public Enterprises in order to commemorate the birth anniversary of Shri Sankar Dayal Singh, who was a
renowned Hindi Scholar and a Parliamentarian. The award was given to one employee by considering the
overall performances extended for Hindi implementation. The website of your Company www.lifecarehll.com
is made in bilingual and its updation is also done regularly.

Your Company is releasing 2 editions of the official Language magazine ‘Samanvaya’. Other releases of the
Company are ‘Corporate News’ the bimonthly release and ‘Moments’ monthly releases in Bilingual. ‘The
Family’ the house journal is issued in trilingual in Malayalam, Hindi and in English. Your Company received
Rajbhasha Kirthi Puraskar First prize from Government of India, Ministry of Home Affairs, New Delhi.

Your Company has also taken the charge of Town Official Language Implementation Committee (undertakings)
in Thiruvananthapuram and conducted various programmes for promoting OL in the public sector
Undertakings situated in Trivandrum. We have organized Computer training, 5 day condensed translation
training in association with Central Translation Bureau, Bangalore, Familiarise google voice typing,
Awareness programme on Official Language for the Heads of the Departments, Hindi Fortnight Celebrations
OL Seminar and awarded prizes and shields for the implementation and for doing work in Hindi. All the
programmes were conducted with the whole hearted support of member offices.

33. CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

Your company has a well-organised Corporate Communication Department which act as a convergence
media agency for the whole organization. As the world of communication has gone through tremendous
changes with new developments and innovations, the Corporate Communications Department-in addition
to the conservative PR interventions- has adopted a number of newer ways of communication interventions
with a vision to position HLL as a Global Healthcare Company that upholds highest values, for the benefit
of the global community. It has a welldeveloped in-house design platform which providescustomized creative
/ design support for all communication material emanating from the Organisation.

In order to facilitate dissemination of information and to create positive image of the organisation, your
Company has been regularly liaisoning with local publics and influence groups, supporting local and national
events, providing press releases to the media and online media, placing write-ups in top publications,
publishing corporate brochures on various activities of the Company, making and telecasting Corporate
Videos and regularly organizing press meetings to announce the developments of the Company. In addition
to releasing corporate advertisements, your Company has been regularly updating developments on Facebook
and Youtube.

Internal communications play a key role in enabling employees across the company in understating and
embracing the company’s mission, goals and strategies. Towards this objective your Company has
continuously deployed communication tools such as Monthly photo news letter, monthly bulletins, quarterly
magazine, leaflets on various activities, videos etc. to apprise the employees on the developments and
achievements and also to provide a platform for them to participate and take pride in being associated with
HLL. Open sessions with the management and employees have also been regularly organized for sharing
of information and to create a sense of belonging and ownership and to develop mutual trust.

34.HLL ACADEMY

HLL Management Academy [HMA] was registered as a Society under the Travancore cochin Literary, Scientific
and Charitable Societies Registration Act, 1955. Inauguration of HMA at the new campus at Keston Road,
Kawdiar, Tvm was done on 3rd July, 2016 by Shri. Adoor Prakash, Hon’ble Minister for Revenue & Coir, Govt.
of Kerala.

During the period H M A has carried out programs for capacity building of HLL executives and workers
besides skill development and academic programs. The major activities of the Academy during the year
under review include the following:

e Conducted 13 Management Development Programmes [MDP] covering 342 Executives out of
which 337 from HLL. There were representation from FACT, Hindustan Newsprint Ltd. and L M B
Insurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd. HMA also conducted one Management Development Programme for
KSIDC, Govt of Kerala covering 19 executives.
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® Conducted 18 Staff Development Programmes covering 460 Employees of HLL.

® Partnered with IL&FS Skill Development Corporation Limited. 98 persons undergone the course
in five batches. 18 got employment in various Hospitals.

® Conducted one International Program on Procurement Management in Healthcare Sector from
5th to 9th October 2015, at Hotel Udayasamudra, Kovalam. 35 participants, including 16 foreigners
attended the program.

e H MAfacility was extended for the comprehensive Induction Training for Management Trainees and
newly recruited HINDLAB employees.

® Conducted 12 monthly Think Tank Executive Lecture Series in 2015-16. Silver Jubilee Think Tank
Lecture was conducted on 1st March 2016 and the talk was delivered by Padma Shree Prof. (Dr)
N R Madhava Menon, Legal Educator.

® H M A has been coordinating the online PDPP course in association with World Bank with 109
candidates among which 20 have completed the exam. Post Graduate Diploma Course in Clinical
Engineering and Management (PGDCEM) and Advanced Diploma Course in Clinical Engineering
and Management (ADCEM) for graduate engineers and diploma holders are operated under the
Aegis of HMA.

35. VIGILANCE
Vigilance Department strives to ensure probity & integrity at all levels in the company by:

e Providing guidance, supervision and relevant assistance to its officials in various units/offices
spread across the country;

e Dissemination of preventive vigilance advices and system improvement directives to all its
stakeholders;

@ Conducting periodic vigilance inspections, investigations/enquiries, system studies etc. to ensure
adherence to the existing rules and regulations of the company; and

e Keeping the Competent Authority appraised of Vigilance findings from time to time, to ensure
appropriate corrective actions.

Vigilance Awareness Week was observed from 26-31 October 2015. As directed by the Commission, for
inculcating the message of the ill effects of corruption on a wider basis among youth of the country, HLL
Lifecare Limited conducted interactive sessions at three colleges and schools in Trivandrum District. Shri V K
Girijanadhan Nair, Superintendent of Police (Retd), Vigilance and Anti Corruption Bureau, Trivandrum was
the eminent speaker in the programme. Shri Vinson M Paul, IPS, Director General of Police & Director,
Vigilance and Anti Corruption Bureau, Trivandrum addressed the executives of the company on 27.10.2015
in HLL's CRDC Auditorium.

36. RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company has implemented Right to Information (RTI) Act, 2005, which enhances the common citizens
by providing access to information with a view to enlighten them on the accountability and transparency
practised_in the Company. The Company has always endeavoured to ensure that various enabling provisions
of the RTI Act, 2005 are implemented in letter and spirit.

The number of RTI applications received and disposed off during year 2015-16 is given below:

No. of RTI applications pending as on 1st April 2015 05
No. of RTI applications received during year 2015-16 110
No. of RTI applications disposed off during year 2015-16 113
No. of RTI applications pending as on 31st March 2016 02

Apart from RTI applications, the Company also received 04 appeals against the decision of CPI1O, which too
were duly attended to and appropriately disposed off by the First Appellate Authority.

37. AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS
During the year under review, your Company received the following awards and recognitions:

° HLL received UNFPA pre-qualification for female condoms and signed long term agreement for
supply of female condoms with UNFPA

° Velvet female condoms have been awarded SABS and CE marking.
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° HLL Peroorkada Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT] received second prize from Kerala State
Pollution Control Board Award 2015 in Large Scale Industry Category.

° HLL PFT bagged Frost and Sullivan India Manufacturing Excellence Award 2015.

° HLL PFT bagged National Safety Council Award for Outstanding Safety Performance from National
Safety Council.

° HLL Akkulam Factory [AFT] received Energy Conservation award from Energy Management Centre,
Govt. Of Kerala

° HLL AFT bagged safety award from Department of Factories & Boilers, Govt. Of Kerala among Medium
Scale Industries.

° HLL AFT positioned in SILVER Category for manufacturing excellence by M/s. Frost & Sullivan in IMEA
assessment.

° HLL AFT awarded third position in Productivity Contest conducted by Indian Institute of Industrial
Engineering.

38. APPRECIATION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors would like to make a special mention of the valuable guidance, support and co-operation your
Company has been receiving from the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare and other Ministries of Government
of India and look forward to their continued support in all future endeavours.

The Directors express their sincere thanks to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, the Principal
Director of Commercial Audit & Ex-officio Member of Audit Board, Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors, Secretarial
Auditors and Internal Auditors for the co-operation and support extended by them.

The Directors take this opportunity to thank the Company’s bankers, regulatory authorities, customers, vendors,
consultants, technology licensors, contractors and other business associates and trading partners for their
continued support and confidence reposed in the Company.

Your Directors also place on record their deep appreciation to employees at all levels for their hard work,
dedication and commitment. The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the
Company to remain as industry leaders.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Dr. M. AYYAPPAN

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 00117374

New Delhi

26th May 2016

Annual Report 2015-2016
47



I - B
QTP B TUIC BT S
B o1 g T99 2013 B &RT 134(3) (VH) & AR G b 98 2014(eran) 31 |1 2016 &l F61< 99 & oY
AQYDI DY IUIE F AT & AT TS 8 |

B B
(7w 2 )

qaROT 2014-15 2015-16
ToTelt 3R seH
Fotelt
EERERIp © e)d E’f%l’g@ 1,83,23,657.00 1,92,43,293 .00
9 (%) 10,68,13.410.00 11,69,45 338.00
X [ ge () 583 6.08
ESISSICICE]
IUT &4 g e (& sferg ga) 5,71200.00 529214 00
Td T S def BT AT ( <7e) 1,82,660.00 1,65910.00
ICYT & Y e/ AR (b Sfery g/ oev) 3.13 3.19
AT/ e () 16.20 13.89
HIY SIS SNCR §RT EINEHE] EINEHE]
PRI EINEHE] EINEHE]
Tl T St
T IHT (7 g ) 87827 285193
79 () 5,43,89,996 .39 9154571474
wR/g e () 61,928 56 32,099 57
B Al
T RH107 ( oTeR) 44 91 455 00 17 61 57547
79 () 1591 ,99 626 00 4.46,87,008.32
/g e (%) 35 45 25 36
IATEA & 9 T G A BT ST
HUSH
Y e (ST (S~ ScuTe (Hicss) 1,819.00 1,801 .00
qTeN (W Sfeerg Ta)d o Sereiel 3e (A1 8418) 53938100 11537 56
B9 O ( FHal o) U d Seeie 31es (Ad 6.19) 264 383
PRI Y e EIVEE]
T U Si(TH 1) U S9eie sfee 255 232
PIoR-Et
I¢UT S Pl T AT (GTefe] 3feS) 487 595
FoIell ¥ O SeTAeT 3as (o Sfeeryg Ud) 61,622 00 6091300
ATAT-S1/TA, Aelt, FdaT Ud ydeia
IUT S Pl T AT (G2Tefe] 3eS)
HATAT-S1/T (STE TS Dodd) 4125 44 31
Heell, Alded T4 gderd 38 .81 1002
ATAT-S1/TT & U T ST A WIT DI T8 FoTell 16,838.00 11,546 .00
A2 ell, AdeT U Faclel & ¥ T G2ciel 316g gud &l g gofall 472 00 155.00
Qud B Tg gotell (M1 IIE) - & Sfearg T 8,99 ,950.00 6,67 26800

¥ RYIE 2015-2016
48



s

17

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars

Power & Fuel

Electricity

Purchased (Units) KWH

Amount (%)

Rate /Unit (%)

Own generation

Units generated (KWH)

HSD Oil consumption (Ltr)

Units generated/ Ltr (KWH/Ltr)

Cost /Unit )

Through Steam Turbine Generator
Coal

LNG

Quantity (Metric Tonne)

Amount (3)

Rate /Unit (%)

Furnace Oil

Quantity (Ltr.)

Amount (3)

Rate /Unit (%)

Consumption per unit of production
Condoms

Unit (M. Pcs) — Production (Moulded)
Electricity (KWH) per M. Pcs (Standard 8418)
Furnace Oil (KL) per M. Pcs (Standard 6.19)
Coal

LNG (MT) per M.Pcs

Copper —-T

Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs)
Electricity per M. Pcs (KWH)
Mala-D/N, Saheli, Novex & Preventol
Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs)
Mala-D/N (M. Cycles)

Saheli, Novex & Preventol

Electricity consumed per million cycles of Mala-D/N

Electricity consumed per million cycles of
Saheli, Novex & Preventol
Electricity consumed (both products)-KWH

FORM A

2014-15

1,83,23,657.00
10,68,13,410.00
5.83

5,71,200.00
1,82,560.00
3.13

16.20

NA

NA

878.27
5,43,89,996.39
61,928.56

44,91,455.00
15,91,99,626.00
35.45

1,819.00
5,393.81
2.64

NA

2.55

4.87
61,622.00

41.25
38.81
16,838.00

472.00
8,99,950.00
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ANNEXURE - A

Information as per Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts)
Rules 2014 forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31t March 2016.

(See Rule 2)
2015-16

1,92,43,293.00
11,69,45,338.00

6.08

5,29,214.00
1,65,910.00
3.19

13.89

NA

NA

2,851.93

9,15,45,714.74

32,099.57

17,61,575.47

4,46,87,008.32

25.36

1,801.00
11,537.56
3.83

NA

2.32

5.95
60,913.00

44.31
10.02
11,546.00

155.00
6,67,268.00
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Blood Bags

Total Quantity Produced (M. Pcs) 12.52 12.21
Electricity per bag (KWH) 0.196 0.204
Sutures

Total Quantity Produced ( Lacs Dozen) 1.75 1.91
Electricity per dozen (KWH) 5.04 4.98
Bulk Drug —Centchroman

Unit (Kg) produced 1,354.69 1,354.45
Electricity consumed (KWH) 6,99,676.00 4,91,972.00
Furnace Oil consumed (Ltr.) 1,35,934.50 1,46,470.40
Electricity per Kg (KWH) 516.48 363.23
Furnace Oil per Kg (KL) 100.34 108.14
Pregnancy Test Kits

Total Quantity Produced (M. Kit) 13.67 8.54
Electricity per Million Kit (KWH) 6,042.46 8,059.18
HSD Qil per Million Kit (Ltr.) 4,897.46 5,034.73
Female Condoms

Total Quantity Produced (Pcs) 11,00,000.00 2,17,888.00
Electricity per Pc (KWH) 0.02 0.02
Sanitary Napkins

Production (M.Pcs) 126.44 227.97
Electricity consumed (KWH) 7,13,846.00 10.48,684.00
Electricity consumed per M.Pcs 5,565.92 4,600.00

[A] CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) Energy conservation measures executed at the Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]
are mentioned below:

i Achieved an annual savings of ¥11.75 lakhs by maintaining a power factor value of 0.99.

ii. Converted 18 nos. of HPSV/SV lamps in the PFT campus with LED lamps and achieved an annual
saving of %1 lakhs.

b) Energy conservation measures taken at Akkulam factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT] are
mentioned below:

i. Obtained Energy Management System Certification (ISO 50001).

ii. Installed 10 nos. of Sky Lighting shades in TSDF for an investment of ¥4.00 lakhs resulted in an
Annual Savings of ¥ 0.62 lakhs.

iii. Replaced 50 nos. of 40 Watts Flurescent Tube Lights with 18 Watt LED Lights with an investment of
%0.35 lakhs, resulted in an annual savings of ¥0.30 lakhs.

V. Installed 3 nos. of 3 Way Control Valves in Chilled Water Line in Air Handling Units for an investment
of ¥ 0.90 lakhs. Annual savings %0.27 lakhs.
c) Energy conservation measures implemented by HLL Kanagala factory, Belgaum [KFB] are

mentioned below:
i Replaced reciprocating compressor by screw compressor of 3 nos. (chiller 2 & air 1).
ii. Commissioned variable frequency drive for SNP machine of 4 nos. to save 4.2 lakhs per annum.
iii. Replaced 229 conventional lamps by LED lamps to save 3.0 lakhs per annum for an investment of

T 3.56 lakhs

V. Commissioned 20 no. of solar street lights to save 0.51 lakhs per annum. Investment — 36.00
lakhs

d) Energy conservation measures taken at Kakkanad factory, Cochin [KFC] are mentioned below.

i. The unit has saved 17500 kWH of electricity owing to the 12 kWP solar power plantinstalled in January
2015.
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FORMB
(See Rule 2)

[B] TECHNOLOGY ABSORBTION, ADOPTION AND INNOVATION

B.1.

B.2.

B.3.

B.4.

[C]
ClL

Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

In-house development of two nos. of two lane square packing machine with advanced touch screen
facility with an investment of ¥12 lakhs for better process control and productivity improvement.
Annual savings 12 lakhs.

In-house conversion of four nos. of three line Squeeze packing machine to three lane square packing
machine with an investment of 316 lakhs for better productivity. Annual savings 324 lakhs.

Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT]

Introduction of Autologous Blood Bags for Haemodilution. Autologous bags are sterile blood bag
systems containing Acid Citrate Dextrose (ACD) I.P solution, used for collection, storage and
transfusion of autologous blood.

Introduction of HINBOND Polyester suture variant.
Introduction of Gynec kits for C- Section.
Kanagala Factory, Belgaum [KFB]

Installed and commissioning of roof top glind interactive, 25 KW Solar Power Plant with an investment
16.5 lakhs, resulted in Annual savings of ¥2.25 lakhs. Power generated — 10103 units

Installation of direct drive mechanism to dehydrator for an investment ¥1.2 lakhs.

Installation & commissioning of Electrical heat exchanger in place of Steam heat exchanger in
vulcanizing section.

Kakkanad factory, Cochin [KFC]

Installed the electronic pihole testing machine fabricated by HLL's Central Engineering Division
with a production capacity of 110 mpcs/year at a cost of ¥75 lakhs. Imported machinery of equivalent
capacity cost I1.81 Cr. Achieved saving of 1.06 Cr. due to indegenous development of the machin-
ery.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (R&D) ACTIVITIES
Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

Successfully developed formulation with waxmul (refined wax) for condoms which substantially
reduces defects like inside sticking & wrinkle. Also improves the stripping easiness of the condoms
from glass formers.

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum [KFB]

Flucanazole tablet development is done and its stability study is in progress.

Levonorgestral 1.5mg tablet is developed and its dossier is submitted to WHO from Unipill plant
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

Peroorkada factory, Thiruvananthapuram [PFT]

Achieved an annual generation of 35.309 units in 2015-16 of electricity from 25kWp solar power
plant.

Established the use of laminates without aluminium foil for condom packing.
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iii. Reuse of additional volume of 30000 klitrs of treated water (ETP) in 2015-16 for cleaning, washing &
gardening purpose.

V. Introduced poly electrolyte dosing in the mixing channel of ETP leading to reduction in ETP sludge
volume by 50%.

V. Introduced composting system using dried leafs; ETP sludge and biogas slurry. The test report
establishes the fertilizer nature of the compost made.

D.2. Akkulam Factory, Thiruvananthapuram [AFT]

i. Installed 10 nos. of Sky Lighting Shades (Polycarbonate Double Layered UV Resistant Prismatic
Type Sky Shades) in TSDF area for tapping sunlight in the day time. Existing 25 nos of 150 Watts
HPSV Lamps were switched off.

D.3. Kakkanad factory, Cochin [KFC]

i The lighting system in the renovated electronic testing area was changed from CFL to LED. 23kWH
is saved on daily basis. 0.5 lakhs is saved per year.

[E] Foreign exchange earnings & outgo

Particulars (2014-15) (2015-16)
Previous year in lakhs Current year X in lakhs

Earnings 14658.01 12827.80

Outgo 14553.01 15904.38
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ANNEXURE- B
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY & SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES OF THE COMPANY

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) & Sustainability is an integral part of the Company’s ethos and policy
and the Company has been pursuing this on a sustained basis.The Company has framed and adopted a
Policy on CSR & Sustainability to align its philosophy to initiate measures and pursue socially useful
programmes with the objectives and activities of CSR envisaged and incorporated in the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules made there under and the policy directions issued by the Government from time to time.
The Policy on CSR & Sustainability formulated in 2013 was subsequently revised to align with the newly
introduced provisions for Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Schedule VII of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013.

During the year, the Company had spent ¥76.18 lakhs against 2% of average net profit of ¥74.36 lakhs
towards CSR and Sustainable Development. Specific activities were undertaken in accordance with the MoU
entered into with the Government.

Annual report on CSR activities of the company for the year 2015-16

1. Brief outline of the Company’s Company continued to undertake CSR works during

the CSR Policy, projects and programs year under review. CSR Policy:

proposed to be undertaken and a reference

to the web-link to CSR Policy and projects

or programs.

a) Establishing a guideline for compliance with the

provisions of Regulations to dedicate a percentage
of company's profits for social projects.

b) Ensuring the implementation of CSR initiatives in
letter and spirit through appropriate procedures and
reporting.

c) Creating opportunities for employees to participate
in socially responsible initiatives.

d) Demonstrate commitment to the common good
through responsible business practices and good
governance.

e) Engender a sense of empathy and equity among
employees of HLL to motivate them to give back to
the society.

2  Composition of CSR Committee. Dr Aarti Vij, Chairperson
Shri. K.Mohandas, Member
Shri R.P.Khandelwal, Member
Dr K.R.S.Krishnan, Member
Dr. Babu Thomas, Member

3  Average Net Profit of the Company for 3 lakh
last three Financial year. 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 Average Net Profit
3780.87 3621.08 3752.79 3,718.25
4  Proposed CSR Expenditure (2% of the
amount as in item 3 above) % 74.36 lakh
5 Details of the CSR spent during the i) Total amount to be spent for the
Financial Year FY 2015-16:%74.36 lakhs

ii) Amount, unspent, if any: NIL
iif) Manner in which the amount was spent during the
year is provided below.
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A.CSRINITIATIVES:
A (i) General Health

Under the CSR initiative, the Company has adopted 3 villages - Karakulam in Thiruvananthapuram, Kanagala
in Belgaum since 2012-13 and a tribal village from Wayanad District viz Puzhuthana since 2013-14. Baseline
surveys were conducted in these villages to identify their needs and priorities and specific action plans were
prepared to address their felt needs and action plans were prepared for implementation over a period of 3
years. Area specific approaches were taken for each village, but the general focus is on health, sanitation
and educational sectors. Specific objectives of the programme are:

° To strengthen public health and sanitation in the village

° To improve adolescent health

° To strengthen educational institutions and

° To facilitate early detection and management of chronic illnesses

Based on these, several programmes were planned and implemented in year 2015-16, as detailed below:
A (ii) Interventions in the Health sector

° Anemia screening and Management among adolescent girls and pregnant and lactating women
° Campaigns on vector borne diseases, sanitation and waste management

° Early detection of breast and cervical cancer

° General medical camps for the elderly and school children

° Campaign for early detection of diabetics through screening of blood sugar

A (iii) Interventions for Adolescent Health

° Anemia screening for the adolescent girls

° Training on menstrual hygiene and supply of sanitary napkin.

° Life skill education programs

A (iv) Interventions in the Education sector

° Infrastructure development for schools by providing roofing, flooring and construction of Toilets.
° Counseling services for behavioral intervention

° Orientation for Teachers & Parents for stress Management of adolescent children

A (v) Developing sustainable development models

° Bore well and water storage facility in the drought stricken areas of Kanagala village, Belgaum.
° Providing Rain water harvesting units to selected institutions in the adopted villages

° Methods for solid liquid waste management and vector borne diseases

For the implementation of the various programmes, HLL creates a common platform for action involving all
stakeholders viz Gramapanchayats, Govt. and aided Schools, Primary Health Centre, ICDS and other line
departments. Supports on Specialist institutions like the Regional Cancer Centre, District Medical Office,
National Health Mission, and Units of National Service Scheme in nearby colleges, etc were also mobilized,
based on the requirements. Appropriate IEC materials/media are used to supplement the activities.

A (vi) HLL Pratheeksha Charitable Society

The Society is registered with the Objective of sponsoring students belonging to the BPL category to pursue
professional studies and also to support the health care of retired employees. Accordingly two schemes were
launched by the society; one for sponsoring students and the other for giving financial support to the retired
employees of the company for availing treatment for critical illness.
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Thirty students were selected from Trivandrum District and Kanagala District, being the two districts where
the two major manufacturing units of the company are located and were distributed scholarship as detailed
below.

Course No. of students Amount
per year (per student, per year)

MBBS 5 30,000/-
Engineering 5 20,000/-
B.Pharm 5 20,000/-
Diploma 5 10,000/-
Nursing 5) 10,000/-
Tl 5 5,000/-

The funds for the society is pooled through the monthly individual contribution of all the employees and lump sum
annual contribution of 320 lakhs by the company from the CSR fund.

In the year 2015-16, 33 students pursuing different professional courses were selected for receiving the
sponsorship. Including the students selected last year, presently there are 58 students who are being sponsored
by HLL.

A (vii) My City Project — Kowdiar ward, Thiruvananthapuram

Solid waste management has become one of the global challenges of today in maintaining a healthy environment.
In this context HLL Lifecare Ltd. formulated ‘My City Project’ in association with Foundation for Restoration
of National Values (FRNV). The pilot project is implemented in the Kowdiar ward of Trivandrum Corporation in
association with Govt. of Kerala, Thiruvananthapuram Municipal Corporation, Suchitwa Mission, Residents
Associations in the area and other like-minded organizations.

Under the project an eco-friendly and cost effective solid waste management system jointly by Government,
Corporation, NGOs and the residents of the ward is implemented with focus on processing waste at source
and collection of plastic and centralized processing . As part of the project, beautification of the project area
by ensuring cleanliness setting up mechanisms for management of bio-degradable and plastic waste is
also undertaken.

The total budget and utilization of the funds for CSR is as under.

PAKALVEEDU PROJECT- For rehabilitation of the cured patients of the Mental Hospital, Trivandrum. The recovered
patients are brought from their residences and are engaged in condom peeling job and are paid remuneration for
the same. On an average 20 people are engaged on a daily basis and they earn ¥3500/- to
¥3700/- per month.

SPONSORING ORPHANS AT SAIGRAMAM — Five inmates of the orphanage at SAIGRAMAM in Trivandrum are
sponsored by the company by paying ¥15000/- per head annually.

B. SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVES

HLL Kanagala Factory, Belgam [HLL — KFB] has installed 25Kw Solar Power plant as part of the sustainability
development.

C. HINDUSTAN LATEX FAMILY PLANNING PROMOTION TRUST (HLFPPT), a not-for-profit professional
health service organization set up by HLL Lifecare Ltd, carried out projects under the following thematic
areas:

i RMNCH+A

ii. HIV/AIDS Prevention, Care & Support

iii. Health System Strengthening

iv.  Primary Healthcare through CSR initiatives
V. Livelihood Generation

vi.  Strategic Partnerships
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HLFPPT has been rendering support in implementation of Reproductive and Child Health, HIV and AIDS
Prevention, Care and Support Programmes in partnership with the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare,
Government of India, several State Governments and International Development Agencies.

With an active presence across 21 States/UTs and through 35 programmes, HLFPPT has been working on
the entire spectrum of RMNCH+A (Reproductive, Maternal, Newborn, Child & Adolescent Healthcare) and HIV
Prevention & Control. It has been an active contributor towards the goals of the National Health Mission,
NACP, FP2020, MDGs and post-2015 SDGs, and a chosen collaborator for implementation of programmes
for the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India, State Government bodies, National & Global
Development Agencies, top PSUs and corporate sector. In the last 24 years, HLFPPT has emerged as a
pioneer in Social Marketing & Social Franchising and gradually evolved technical expertise on thematic areas
of its work.

Major achievements during the year are summarized below:
1. RMNCH+A (Reproductive, Maternal, Newborn, Child & Adolescent Healthcare)

A. Merrygold Health Network (MGHN) - India’s largest Social Franchising Network in health sector with
509 hospitals & clinics spread across 152 districts in 6 States

MGHN is a network of social franchisee hospitals & clinics based on Public Private Partnership (PPP)
model that offers quality MCH and Family Planning (FP) Services at affordable rates (50-60% lower than
market price). It's a three-tier network, comprising L1 Hospitals (equipped with MCH facilities including
Emergency Obstetric Care & Family Planning services), L2 Hospitals/Clinics (with MBBS or AYUSH
doctors at sub-divisional level), and Merrytarang Members or L3 (community health volunteers who
provide elementary MCH information to people and eventually link them with L1 and L2).

HLFPPT has instituted the network in six States (Uttar Pradesh, Rajasthan, Bihar, Odisha, Andhra
Pradesh and Telangana). During FY 2015-16, MGHN has facilitated 197,478 Antenatal Care (ANC)
Services, 60,739 Institutional Deliveries, 41,013 IUCD Placements and 25,883 Sterilisations through
a network of 509 Health Facilities & 15,646 Merrytarang Members across 152 districts in the six States.

Following is a brief note on State-wise performance of MGHN:

i. Uttar Pradesh: MGHN has been operational in UP since 2007 with funding support from State
Innovations in Family Planning Services Project Agency (SIFPSA) through National Health Mission.
Currently, it is established across 52 districts in the state with 327 franchisees (147 L1s & 180 L2s) and
11,146 Merrytarang members. During FY 2015-16, MGHN-UP has facilitated 28,130 Institutional Deliveries
(17,665 normal deliveries and 10,465 c-secs), 101,245 ANC Services, 29,165 IUCD Insertions (including
1,842 PPIUCD), 7432 Sterilisations (Male and Female) and 93,980 Family Planning Counselling
services. Moreover, it has undertaken several Behaviour Change Communication activities to elicit a
lasting impact on health seeking behaviour of community members. These include 169 Godbharai
(babyshower) ceremonies involving 3,228 expecting mothers, 297 Health Camps involving 7,123
pregnant women and 554 Family Planning Camps involving 7,608 Clients.

ii. Rajasthan: MGHN has been operational in Rajasthan since 2013 with support from Merck for Mothers.
In FY 2015-16, it has spread across 24 districts with 66 franchisees (26 L1 & 40 L2) and 2,100 Merrytarang
members. During the financial year it has enabled 30,943 Institutional Deliveries, 89,055 ANC services,
38,233 Postnatal Care (PNC), 3105 IUCD Insertions and 3946 Sterilisations. Moreover, it has reached
out to 9,077 expectant mothers through Godbharai Ceremonies and Health Camps and 12472
community members through Community Meetings.

iii. Bihar (Ujjwal Merrygold): Rolled out in 2013 with support from DFID (Department for International
Development, UK), Ujjwal Merrygold has essentially focussed on FP services. It is present across all
38 districts through 60 franchisees (5 L1 & 55 L2) and 1,080 Ujjwal Saathis. In FY 2015-16, it has
achieved 409,797 couple-years of protection (CYP) and benefitted 1,006,266 clients. Moreover, it has
provided 6,696 IUCD Insertions, 9,449 Sterilisations and 5,669 Injectable, besides 1,319 ANC Services
and 645 Institutional Deliveries.

iv.  Odisha (Ujjwal Merrygold): Operational since 2013 with support from DFID, Ujjwal Merrygold is present
across all 30 districts through 40 franchisees (9 L1 & 31 L2) and 760 Ujjwal Saathis. In FY 2015-16, it
has achieved 172,613 couple-years of protection (CYP) and benefitted 501,261 clients. Moreover, it has
facilitated 5,037 Sterilisations, 2,047 IUCD Insertions, 2,957 Injectable, 1634 ANC Services and 585
Institutional Deliveries.
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Andhra Pradesh & Telangana: Instituted in 2014 on self-sustainable mode, MGHN in AP & Telangana
has spread to spread across 9 districts with 16 franchisees (11 L1 & 5 L2) and 529 Merrytarang
members. In 2015-16, it has facilitated 4225 ANC Services and 436 Institutional Deliveries.

Social Marketing Programme

In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has conducted social marketing of condoms in nine States (Uttar Pradesh,
Uttarakhand, Bihar, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, Delhi, Odisha, Andhra Pradesh and Telangana) as a
means of protection against HIV/AIDS & other STDs, promotion of family planning and prevention of
unwanted pregnancies. During the year, it has successfully sold more than 100.5 million condoms
through social marketing across the nine States.

HLFPPT has also promoted Sanitary Napkin Vending Machine, Emergency Contraceptive Pill (Tatkal-72),
IUCD (MCare), Sanitary Napkin (Sakhi, Happy Days), Pregnancy Test Card (P-Test), Contraceptive Injection
(Safe-3), Oral Rehydration Salt (Jal Jeevan) and Zinc Sulphate through social marketing.

Capacity Building of HSPs on IUCD and Pregnancy Test Card

In order to contribute towards India’s FP2020 commitment of training 200,000 health workers on 1UDs,
HLFPPT has initiated “Capacity Building of Health Service Providers (HSPs) on IUCD and Pregnancy
Test Card”. This large-scale, multi-state programme is being implemented under the guidance of the
Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Gol, with financial support from State Health Missions, and in
coordination with the State Institute of Health & Family Welfare since 2012. So far it has been implemented
in 12 states. It aims at providing skill-based training on IUCD insertions to HSPs (ANMs, LHVs, Staff
Nurses & Medical Officers) posted at Sub Centres, Primary Health Centres and Community Health
Centres.

In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has implemented the programme in six States (Rajasthan, Chhattisgarh, Uttar
Pradesh, Jharkhand, Himachal Pradesh and Madhya Pradesh) through varied implementation phases. It
has trained 5,689 HSPs, facilitated 110,829 IUCD insertions and covered 3,958 health facilities.

Amrit Clinics — Chain of comprehensive reproductive clinics that offer informed choice on globally-adopted
Family Planning methods

Shri J P Nadda, Minister of Health and Family Welfare, Government of India, has launched Amrit Clinic at the
National Family Planning Summit in New Delhi. HLFPPT has set up first clinic in Lucknow, UP, and shall
operationalise Amrit Clinics pan-India through Social Franchising.

Besides, HLFPPT has instituted a network of Family Planning Clinics based on Social Franchising Model
in Bihar and Odisha. Rolled out in 2013 with support from DFID, these clinics essentially provide
comprehensive FP solutions, including counseling on all methods available, and facilitate IUCD
placements, injectables and sterilisation (male and female) services. In FY 2015-16, the network has
expanded to 205 clinics in both the states (157 in Bihar and 48 in Odisha).

Family Planning Public Private Engagement Agency (FPPPEA)

HLFPPT has partnered with National Health Mission-UP for implemetation of FPPPEA that aims to promote
involvement of the private sector in provision of Family Planning products & services.

Expand Access & Quality to Broaden Method Choice in UP

It aims to train and accredit health facilities in UP on Family Planning service. Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation
is the Funding Partner and PSl is the Implementing partner for this project.

HIV/AIDS Prevention, Care & Support
Technical Support Units

HLFPPT has continued to provide Technical Assistance to State AIDS Control Society (SACS) in Andhra
Pradesh, Telengana, Madhya Pradesh & Chhattisgarh through Technical Support Units (TSUs). In FY
2015-16, the TSUs have together reached out to 1.6 million vulnerable populations, facilitated 75
million condom distributions and 430,388 HIV testing through 267 targeted interventions across the
four states.
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Project Vihaan

Project Vihaan aims at improving the survival and quality of life of people living with HIV/AIDS (PLHIV),
by providing cost-effective treatment, care and support to them through Civil Society Interventions and
establishment of Care and Support Centres (CSCs).India HIV/AIDS Alliance, as Principal Recipient of
Round 4, RCC Phase Il Grant of GFATM, has partnered with HLFPPT as Sub Recipient for implementing
Vihaan in Punjab, Chhattisgarh, Haryana, Chandigarh& Rajasthan. In FY 2015-16, it has reached out
to 64,077 PLHIV through registrations at 30 CSCs, provided counseling to 14,518 PLHIV, linked 8,078
PLHIV with government social welfare scheme, and conducted TB screening for 6,007 PLHIV. Moreover,
it has brought 5,164 Lost to Follow-up (LFU) back to treatment.

Improving Access to Public Sector PPTCT Services in India (IAPSI)

To accelerate uptake of PPTCT (Prevention of Parent to Child Transmission) services among pregnant
women in most vulnerable 58 districts of Bihar, Odisha and Chhattisgarh, HLFPPT (as Sub Recipient)
has partnered with Plan India as Principal Recipient of a grant by Global Fund to roll out IAPSI (AHANA)
programme in October 2015. With the strategies of Capacity Building, Advocacy and Coordination,
HLFPPT is enhancing skills of peripheral health workers and strengthening response at community
level for PPTCT Services.

In its inception year, the programme has reached out to 619762 expecting mothers and motivated
109,854 of them to undergo HIV testing. It has also brought 113 HIV Positive mothers under care,
linking them with PPTCT & ART centres and conducting follow-ups with their children. Moreover, it has
successfully trained 1,623 heath providers in PPTCT & HIV testing, and developed District Resource
Teams in 36 districts.

Voluntary Blood Donation Programme

HLFPPT has continued promotion of voluntary blood donation in Kerala, with support of KSBTC (Kerala
State Blood Transfusion Council), KSACS and State Blood Banks and ensured collection of 46,625
blood units through 1052 camps.

Health System Strengthening
Skill Development Programme

To address dearth of skilled human resources in the healthcare sector, HLFPPT has initiated Skill
Development Programme in FY 2015-16. It aims at training students in various health-related skills
including: General Duty Assistant (GDA), Home Health Aide (HHA), Basic Lab Technician, OT Assistant,
Diabetes Educator and Dialysis Assistant.

In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has successfully trained 1,860 students as GDA and HHA in Andhra Pradesh,
Bihar, Odisha and Uttar Pradesh. During this period, HLFPPT has developed two Model Skill Centres
in Uttar Pradesh, namely at Kapurthala (Lucknow) and Panki (Kanpur), and has got affiliation from
Health Sector Skill Council (HSSC). It has contributed to Pradhan Mantri Kaushal Vikas Yojana (PMKVY)
by the Ministry of Skill Development and Entrepreneurship, Govt of India, and has also been empanelled
with the Ministry of Rural Development, UP Skill Development Mission, Kerala’s National Urban
Livelihood Mission (NULM) and AP Skill Development Corporation.

Primary Healthcare through CSR initiatives

In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has expanded its CSR portfolio from 7 to 12 companies, including Apollo
Tyres, Ostro Renewables, AkzoNobel, ACC and IDFC Bank, and aligned with companies in Oil & Gas,
Steel, Cement, Tyres, Paint, Real Estate, Renewable Energy and Banking sectors. It has also empanelled
with Vedanta Ltd and NTPC. During the reporting year, CSR team has approached more than 250
companies, including 40 PSUs and nationalised banks.

Further, the CSR team has established network with major trade associations, including CII,
ASSOCHAM, PHD Chambers, FICCI, etc. It has partnered with CII to organise “Cll CSR Conference
2015” in Lucknow and with PHD Chamber to organise “4th Global Summit on Corporate Social
Responsibility” in New Delhi. It has also leveraged various other allied sectoral platforms for networking,
such as HR. It has participated in two mega HR conclaves — TechHR Summit and 32nd HR Conclave
by HT in Gurgaon.
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CSR Team has won recognition in FY 2015-16 for its programmes. These include:

MMU Programme in Dantewada has won Flame Awards Asia 2016 (Silver) under ‘Education and Awareness
imitative programme for rural patient & practitioners’

MMU Jaisalmer has received Certificate of Excellence from District Legal Services Authority, Jaisalmer, for
Outstanding Performance and Lasting Contribution in Public Welfare Camps

During the reporting year, CSR team has implemented the following programmes:

A

e o W o o

e O o

Tm o e

Mobile Medical Unit

MMUs take healthcare services to the underserved communities in far-flung, remote and inaccessible regions
In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has operated 11 MMUs in 7 states (in alliance with govt agencies in 2 states, and
with corporate as CSR partner in 5 states):

Kerala: 3 districts with support from the Department of Scheduled Caste Development, Govt of Kerala

Uttarakhand: Rudraprayag and Udham Singh Nagar districts with support from Uttarakhand Health & Family
Welfare Society

Rajasthan: Jaisalmer district with support from Suzlon Foundation

Chhattisgarh: Dantewada and Sukma districts with support from Essar Group Foundation
Odisha: Malkangiri district with support from Essar Group Foundation

West Bengal: Durgapur district (23 villages) with support from Essar Oil & Gas

UP: Noida (3 villages and 3 slum clusters) with support from DLF Foundation

Community Health Initiative

With HLL Lifecare Ltd in Kerala and Karnataka

Project Arogya with Cairn India in Surat district, Gujarat

Project Care with Ostro Renewables Private Limited in Jaisalmer district (3 villages), Rajasthan
Merrysilver Clinic

with DLF Foundation in Gurgaon (four Villages)

with Akzo Nobel India Ltd in Bengaluru, Karnataka

Anganwadi Centre Improvement Project “Nanhe Kadam” with Cairn India in Surat district, Gujarat
Anaemia Control Project with Apollo Tyres Foundation in Kerala

Apollo Tyres Healthcare Centre with Apollo Tyres Foundation in Yeswanthpur, Bengaluru, to improve health
status of Truckers and allied population in and around transport hub.

School & AWC-led Community Development Project with IDFC Foundation in Hoshangabad district, Madhya
Pradesh

Population Stabilisation Project with Jindal Steel and Power Ltd in Delhi-NCR
Livelihood Generation
Life Skills Education & Career Guidance

HLFPPT has provided Life Skills Education to 1,218 vulnerable adolescents in Kerala in association with
KSACS, KSSM (Kerala Social Security Mission), HLL Lifecare Ltd, and other partners.

Employability Skill Development Programme

HLFPPT has initiated this programme in January 2016 for educated, unemployed fisher women in three
districts of Kerala (Thiruvananthapuram, Kollam and Kasaragod). The project is being funded by Society for
Assistance to Fisher women (SAF), Department of Fisheries, Govt of Kerala. It has trained more than 90
women during the reporting period.
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Strategic Partnerships

In FY 2015-16, HLFPPT has pursued Strategic Partnerships through expansion of its grant portfolio,
diversification of donors’ portfolio, and scale-up of its proven social business models. During the
reporting year, Business Development team has submitted 51 technical proposals and concept notes
to significant development support agencies including States NHM, IPE Global, USAID, UNFPA, Global
Fund, CHMI, World Food Programme, etc, and to leading CSR Foundations such as CITI, DLF, IDFC,
Malabar Cement, Apollo Tyres, Merck for Mothers, etc. Moreover, keeping pace with technology
advancements, HLFPPT has also pursued innovative alliances with World Readers (California, US),
Institute of Reproductive Health (Washington, US) to leverage the power of technology in development
sector.

As a mark of its increasing recognition, HLFPPT CEO has been conferred 2016 Flame Leadership by
Rural Marketing Association of India.

Other achievements during FY 2015-16 include:

Global Giving: HLFPPT has won a permanent slot on Global Giving — charity fundraising website —
through qualifying in an open challenge. Consequently, it has utilised the crowdfunding platform of
Global Giving to raise funds for Safe Delivery Project & Access to Family Planning Project.

Abstracts Selected:

Abstract on “Engaging Pvt. Sector through SM-SF for quality and affordable health solutions” has been
selected for poster presentation at International Conference on Family Planning 2016 in Indonesia.

Paper on “What has not worked in MCH” selected for panel discussion at Global Maternal Newborn
Health Conference 2015 in Mexico.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance

Your Company is renowned for exemplary governance standards since inception and continues to devote its
emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity. Company is committed to adhere to the ethical
values and thereby ensures fairness to all stakeholders including customers, employees, investors and society
at large. The basic objective of Corporate Governance policies adopted by the Company is to attain the
highest levels of transparency, accountability and integrity. This objective extends not merely to complying
with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises issued by the Department
of Public Enterprises, but also to go beyond them by putting in place procedures and systems, which are in
accordance with the best practices of Corporate Governance. The Company has been methodically following
the Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises and consistently scoring
‘Excellent’ grading.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has made the majority of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 effective
from 1st April, 2014. The new Act is a positive step towards strengthening corporate governance regime in the
country. Your Company is already in substantial compliance with most of the governance requirements provided
under the new law.

The Company’s Corporate Governance policies and practices focus on the following principles:

1. To recognize the respective roles & responsibilities of the Board and management.

2 To achieve the highest degree of transparency by maintaining a high degree of disclosure levels.
3 To ensure and maintain high ethical standards in its functioning.

4.  To ensure a sound system of risk management and internal controls.
5

To ensure that employees of the Company subscribe to the corporate values and apply them toin their
conduct.

6.  To ensure that the decision making process is fair and transparent.

7. To ensure that the Company follows globally recognized corporate governance practices.

A brief description of the corporate governance practices followed in your Company is given below.
1. Size and Composition of Board:

The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience and
enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. Your
Company, being a Government Undertaking, the appointment/nomination of all the Directors is done by the
President of India, through the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare. The Board has an appropriate mix of
executive and non-executive Directors. The Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that the number
of Directors shall not be less than three (3) and not more than ten (10).

The present strength of Board of Directors of the Company is eight (8) comprising
- two (2) official Directors representing the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Government of India
- two (2) Independent Directors and

- four (4) Functional Directors namely Chairman & Managing Director, Director (Finance), Director (Technical
&Operation) and Director (Marketing).

Among the eight (8) directors there are three (3) women directors comprising two Govt. Nominee Directors and
one Independent Director on the Board. The composition of the Board is in line with the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India.

The Composition of the Board of Directors as on 31st March, 2016 is given below. None of the Directors are
member of more than 10 Board level Committees of public companies in which they are Directors nor holds
chairmanship in more than five such committees.

Annual Report 2015-2016
77



T 3= 3 &Y T4 A
H9. qE BT A T Bt Soft A 9 B HSd WA T dBi
dqen JEETT / ST
Eilsie:n|
1. SIuHsRwT 3fedeT U4 Feeeh el 5 T
2. & g9 AMareg WRHR AT 7 A< 3 Nl
3. s g A gel WRBR A1 He T 1 N
4. = Eoflg dYR IR ARPRI 3B b T2 5 5
5. SiaRdl 9w IR TRBRI 3BT AP TSD 2 1
6. il AR Ul @USard a9 ((9) 4 4
7. Sl&3RUEHUH T (ATl TG FeTer ) bl Nl
8. Siagard D ( aYUT) 2 2

TAUF HES B & ST 3T WA, aTs Aol G Aad IR & oY & YAGI T4 8 | IS Bl 9 7,
PrIGY, STIRET T AR SIS T ©T 3 A1 &1 FSol 379+ T STHGT AT BT a8 - TS oI
TRITETOT R H FETIRIAT MR AT b A1 PRAT & R G AT PRl & P Jag + Tebell, RGN 3R HHe bRl
P FTETH D] BT AFARY PRAT & | IR PRIUTAD T I & Hod B 8% Aaw Pl Ul 4 d ga Bl 1
BRI BT R 954 © |
2. d5% 3R TSR

STEl % |9 © U8l &1 9% Bl AICKT 3R PIRIYE! Alc TaP] B U@ od $Y Y| FHIET a<iig 9§ & SRM,
14 73, 2015,10@?]1‘5‘,2015,28 Tdax 2015, 14 gdaR 2015, 23 wrast, 2016 iR 28 #Ard 2016 HI B8 dre
3% TN ST B AT |

el 48% SR I 1 AHY d3& BI 8T SR Gl «ird af Sl 8 |

T & IR 2015-16 % IR Yob & 71 o
ASIB BT A T oI Hee .

NP Hedl 355 T TSN TH
SIRGE ] 6 6 EIVEE]
st aorg sharag 6 5 LSl
Sl & <A ST 6 6 LSl
1) Hoflg PR 6 6 SEl
T AIRA aof 6 3 St gt
) & AgTaTd 4 3 EINEH
Y AR G GUSeTdTel 6 6 S &
$1.% AR TH . FOH 6 4 EIVEE
<t a1g dm 6 5 ikl

Tt RUiE 2015-2016

78



~'

17

111 lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

No.of No.of membership/
. . Other Chairmanship
ﬁllc'). Name of the Director Category of Director Director-ship of Board
held Committee
in other companies
1 Dr. M. Ayyappan Chairman and
Managing Director 5 Nil
2 Smt. Vijaya Srivastava Government Nominee
Director 3 Nil
3 Smt. Dharitri Panda Government Nominee
Director 1 Nil
4 Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor Non Official Part time
Director 5 5
5 Dr. Aarti Vij Non Official Part time
Director 2 1
6 Shri. R.P.Khandelwal Director (Finance) 4 4
7 Dr. K.R.S Krishnan Director (Technical &
Operations) Nil Nil
8 Dr. BabuThomas Director (Marketing) 2 2

The Board of Directors plays a primary role in ensuring good governance, smooth functioning of the Company.

The Board’s role, functions, responsibility

and accountability are clearly defined.The Board acts with autonomy

and independence in exercising its strategic supervision, discharging its fiduciary responsibilities and ensuring
that the management observes the highest standards of ethics, transparency and disclosure. Every member

of the Board, including the Non-Executive

2. Meeting and Attendance

Directors, has full access to any information related to the Company.

The notice and Agenda notes of the Meetings are circulated to the Directors as far as possible well in advance.
During the financial year under review, six Board meetings were held on 14" May 2015, 10" July 2015, 28®
September 2015, 14" December 2015, 23 February 2016 and 28" March 2016.

Information of attendance at the board meetings and the last annual general meeting is given below.

N?Dme of the N?ﬁggtﬁ]‘;a;d Attendance of meeting during 2015-16
irector Held during Mz:t”i‘:]d . Last AGM
the tenure 9
Dr. M. Ayyappan 6 6 NA
Smt. Vijaya Srivastava 6 5 No
Smt. Dharitri Panda 6 6 No
Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor 6 6 No
Dr. Aarti Vij 6 3 Yes
Shri. K. Mohandas 4 3 NA
Shri. R.P. Khandelwal 6 6 Yes
Dr. K.R.S Krishnan 6 4 NA
Dr. Babu Thomas 6 5 Yes
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3. Remuneration of Directors

Ministry of Health & Family Welfare (MoHFW), Government of India appoints Chairman & Managing Director and
the other Functional Directors. The remuneration and terms and conditions of their directorship are decided by
Department of Public Enterprises. The Chairman & Managing Director and the Functional Directors are appointed
for a period of five years or till the date of their superannuation or until further orders, whichever is earlier.

Non-official part-time Independent Directors are also appointed by the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare,
Government of India for a period of three years and are paid a sitting fee of ¥10,000/- for attending each meeting
of the Board and the Board appointed Sub Committees.

4. Appointment of Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Appointment &
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, which have come into force from 1st April, 2014 the Board of
directors has appointed the following Directors/Executives as the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company
on their existing terms & conditions of appointment, including remuneration:

1. Dr. M. Ayyappan - Chairman & Managing Director
2. Shri R.P. Khandelwal
3. Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan
4
5

Director (Finance)

Director (Technical & Operation)
Dr. Babu Thomas - Director (Marketing)
ShriR. Ganesan - Chief Financial Officer & Sr. Vice-President (Finance)
6. ShriP. Sreekumar - Company Secretary & Sr.Vice-President (HR)
5. COMPANY POLICIES
5.1 Policy on dealing with Related Party transactions:

The Company strictly follows all relevant provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 on dealing with Related Party transactions.

5.2 Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

HLL being a Government Company, the power to appoint Directors and to fix their remuneration vests with
Government of India. The Company is governed under DPE Guidelines regarding the Remuneration Policies of
Directors. The Company had complied with the relevant guidelines prescribed by the Department of Public
Enterprises in this regard.

6. BOARD CHARTER

As Trustees of the Company, the Board ensures that the Company has clear goals and policies for achievement
which are in alignment with the Vision and Mission of the company. The Board provides strategic directions,
reviews corporate performance, authorizes and monitors strategic decisions, ensures regulatory compliances
and safeguards interest of stakeholders. The Board of Directors adhere to the Board Charter adopted by the
Board of Directors, which clearly sets out the role, structure, responsibilities and operation of Company’s Board of
Directors and its delegation of authority.

7. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

The Board of Directors of your Company has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the Board Members and
Senior Management of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct during the year 2015-16. A declaration to this effect signed by the Chairman
& Managing Director forms part of this report.
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To the Stakeholders of HLL Lifecare Limited

Sub: Compliance with Code of Conduct and Ethics

| hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Board of Directors.

Dr. M. Ayyappan

Chairman and Managing Director
26" May 2016
Thiruvananthapuram

8. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING

Independent Directors are regularly updated on performance of each line of business of the Company, strategies
and new initiatives being taken/proposed to be taken by the Company.

9. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review the Central Government has approved the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of
the Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2). These Standards came
into force on 01t July 2015 respectively. Adherence by the Company to these Standards is mandatory as per
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, your Company has substantially complied with both
the Standards. The SS 1 and SS 2 prescribes a set of principles for convening and conducting the Meetings
of the Board of Directors, meetings of Committees, General Meetings and such other matters related thereto.

10. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been constituted
to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within the authority delegated. As a part of good
governance practice, the Committees of the Company are constituted under the formal approval of the Board
and appointment of members and fixing of terms of reference/role of the Committees done by the Board of
Directors. The Committees also make specific recommendations to the Board on various matters whenever
required. All observations, recommendations and decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board
for information or for approval.

The Company has currently established following committees, namely:
1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. CSR&SD Committee

4. Strategy Formulation & Investment Committee
10.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee at the Board level is one of the main pillars of Corporate Governance mechanism of the
Company. Audit Committee aims to enhance the confidence in the integrity of Company’s financial reporting,
Internal control processes and act as a link between the Auditors and Board of Directors.

10.1.1. Composition

The Company’s Audit Committee comprises three Independent Directors & one Functional Director. The
Audit Committee is headed by Shri Sanjiv Kapoor and the other members are:

a) Shri K. Mohandas
b) Dr. Aarti Vij and
c) Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)

All the members of the Committee have relevant experience in financial matters and the Chairman of the
Committee Shri Sanjiv Kapoor is a senior practicing Chartered Accountant, having extensive accounting and
related financial management expertise.
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10.1.2. Audit Committee reviews the following matters:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes:

i)

xiil)

Xiv)

)

XVi)

Xvii)

Xviii)

Xix)

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;
Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; and
Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees.
Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board
for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board’s report in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013;

=

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

- o o o

Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the internal
control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure,
coverageand frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors any significant findings and follow up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors/agencies into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.
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XX) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.
XX. To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the C&AG audit
XXii) To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of Committee on Public Undertakings

(COPU) of the Parliament.

XXiii) Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal auditor and the
Board of Directors

XXiV) Review all related party transactions in the company. For this purpose, the Audit Committee may designate
a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related party transactions.

XXV) Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness of
coverage,reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.

XXVi) Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management:

- The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system controls and security,
and

- Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal auditor, together
with the management responses.

XXVii) Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the independent auditor:
- Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit recommendations

- Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on the scope of activities
or access to required information.

xxviii)  Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
10.1.3. Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year ended 315tMarch, 2016, five meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 10"June
2015, 10" July 2015, 28" September 2015, 14" December 2015 & 28" March 2016. The attendance of the

members at the meeting was as follows: No. of meetings No. of meetings
Name of the Committee Member held during attended
the tenure

Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor
Shri K. Mohandas
Dr. Aarti Vij

Dr. Babu Thomas

(62 IS B N @)
AN B~ O

10.2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The scope and terms of reference of the Committee was enlarged by including the matters specified in
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

10.2.1. Composition
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of the following 4 directors.
a) Shri Sanjiv Kapoor, Independent Director,(Chairman)
b) Dr. Aarti Vij, Independent Director
c) Shri K. Mohandas, Independent Director
d) Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance)
10.2.2. Meetings and Attendance
During the year under review, the Remuneration committee met once on 28" March 2016.
The attendance of the members at the meetings were as follows:
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Name of the Committee No. of meetings No. of meetings
Member held during the period attended
Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor 1 1
Dr. AartiVij 1 -
Shri K. Mohandas 0 0
Shri R.P. Khandelwal 1 1

10.3 Corporate Social Responsibility & Sustainable Development Committee
10.3.1. Composition

The composition of CSR & Sustainable Development Committee is as under.

a)  Dr. AartiVij, Independent Director,(Chairperson)

b)  Shri K. Mohandas, Independent Director

c¢) Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance)

d) Dr.K.R.S. Krishnan, Director (T&O)

e)  Dr.Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)

10.3.2. Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the CSR Commiittee are as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The following
are the scope/terms of reference of the CSR & SD Committee:

a) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate
the activities to be undertaken by the company

b)  Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the above activities
c)  Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company from time to time.

During the year under report, the CSR&SD Committee met twice on 10 " August 2015 & 19" February, 2016. The
attendance of the members at the meeting was as follows:

Name Position No of Meetings No of Meetings
during the Year Attended
Dr. Aarti Vij Chairperson 2 2
Shri. K. Mohandas Member 1 1
Shri. R.P. Khandelwal Member 2 2
Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan Member 2 2
Dr. Babu Thomas Member 2 1

10.4. Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee
10.4.1. Composition
The composition of Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee [SFIC] is as under.
1)  ShriK. Mohandas, Independent Director — Chairman
2)  Shri Sanjiv Kapoor, Independent Director
3)  Shri R.P. Khandelwal, Director (Finance)
4)  Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan, Director (T&O)
5)  Dr. Babu Thomas, Director (Marketing)
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10.4.2. Terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Committee includes the following

i.  Develop long-term strategies and policies for the company.
ii. Assessmentof HLL's internal and external business environment.
ii. Develop a strategic management process for achieving company’s annual business targets.

iv. Assess and approve for implementation projects that are supportive of goals and plans of HLL as outlined
in the Vision 2020 Plan.

v. Plan periodic senior leadership meetings with a strategic agenda.
vi. Provide guidance for effective functioning of the strategic management department in the Company.

vii. Assistthe Board of directors in monitoring and evaluation of projects by identifying implementation problems
or outstanding performance through project exception reports.

vii. Monitor and evaluate financial and physical performance of all projects.

ix. Recommend investment/project proposals to the Board.

During the year under report, the Strategy Formulation and Investment Committee met six times on 14" May 2015,
28" September 2015, 13" October 2015, 17" November 2015, 23 February 2016 & 28" March 2016. The
attendance of the members at the meeting was as follows:

» No of Meetings No of Meetings
Name Position during the tenure Attended
Shri K. Mohandas Chairman 4 4
Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor, Member 6 6
Shri. R.P. Khandelwal Member 6 6
Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan Member 6 4
Dr. Babu Thomas Member 6 5

11. Information to be placed before the Board of Directors

The Board has completed access to any information within the Company. The information inter alia, regularly
supplied to the Board includes:

a)
b)
c)
d)

e)
f)
9)

h)
i)
)
k)

1)

12.

Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.
Annual Accounts, Directors’ Report, etc.
Quarterly results of the company.

Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the Board including minutes of
Subsidiary Company and Joint-venture Company.

Major Investments, formation of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures, Strategic Alliances, etc.
Award of large Contracts.

Disclosure of Interest by Directors about directorship and committee positions occupied by them in
other Companies.

Monthly Report on Commercial Status of the Company.
Report on the status of various ongoing projects/scheme and Budget Utilization.

Any significant development in Human Resources/Industrial Relations front like signing of wage
agreement, etc.

Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or listing requirements and shareholders’ service such as
non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

Other materially important information.
Post meeting follow-up system:

The Governance process in the Company include an effective post-meeting follow-up, review and reporting
process for action taken/pending on decisions of the Board and the Board Committee(s).
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13. Shareholding Pattern

HLL is not listed at any Stock Exchange in India or abroad. The entire paid up equity share capital of the
Company is held by the President of India and his nominees.

14. General Body meetings: The Date, Time and Venue of the last three Annual General Meetings of the
Company are as follows:

AGM Financial Date Time Venue Whether Special Resolution(s)
Year Passed or Not
47 2012- 6" Sept. 04.00p.m. New None
2013 2013 Delhi
48" 2013- 28"August, 03.30p.m. Thiruvanan- Yes
2014 2014 thapuram Alteration of Clause V of

Memorandum of Association &
Article 4 of Articles of Association.

49t 2014- 28"Sept. 12.00 New Delhi Yes
2015 2015 Noon Ratification of Cost Auditors'
remuneration for the Financial
Year 2014-15 and 2015-16

Date, Time and Venue of 50" Annual General Meeting of the Company

Date Time Venue

23" September 2016 03.00 PM New Delhi

15. Disclosures:

° Details of transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, associates, key managerial
personnel during the year 2015-16 are given as Note No. 2.11 to the Annual Accounts for the year
ended 31 March, 2016. These transactions do not have any potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large. All transactions with the related parties were in the ordinary course of business
and at arm’s length price.

° There were no cases of non-compliance by the company and penalties, strictures imposed on the
company by any statutory authority on any statutory payment requirements.

° Presidential directives issued by the Central government in respect of Official Language Implementation
have been complied with during the year and also in the last three years.

° The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 while preparing the Financial Statements.

° There were no items of expenditure debited in books of accounts, which are not for the purposes of the
business.

° The company has adequately insured all its assets and also the various business risks connected with

the business of the company and that it has duly paid insurance premium.

° The Company has adopted Foreign Exchange & Risk Management Policy to protect Rupee value of
Foreign currency cash flows of the Company from adverse impact of fluctuations in exchange rates
and interest rates.

° The Company has adopted Whistle Blower policy and it is affirmed that no person has been denied
access to the Audit Committee in respect of reporting of suspected violations.
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16. General Information
16.1. Training of Directors:

The Company has adopted Guidelines on Corporate Governance May 2010 issued by Department of
Public Enterprise. Based on the DPE guidelines the company has adopted Training policy for board
members.

16.2. Means of communication:

Timely disclosure of relevant and reliable information is at the core of good Corporate Governance practice.
Toward this end your Company has taken following initiatives:

Annual Audited The company publishes its annual audited statement of accounts in the official website

Financial www.lifecarehll.com

Statements

News All updates on company’s development and changes are published through

Releases Company’s Monthly photo newsletter, monthly bulletin and quarterly mangazine and
are also displayed on the company’s website www.lifecarehll.com

Website The Company’s Corporate Website www.lifecarehll.com provides comprehensive

information about the products, business segments, upcoming projects etc. The
company videos are displayed through webinar in the website

Annual Report The Annual Report of the Company is circulated to the shareholders, Ministry of Health

& Family Welfare, Comptroller and Auditor General of India and all others entitled thereto
like Statutory Auditors etc.

16.3. Plant Locations

Address
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Manufacturing Plant Name and Location

Contraceptives Peroorkada Factory,

Hospital Products

Contraceptives

Contraceptives and
Pharma Products

Hospital Products

Pharma Products

Thiruvananthapuram
(PFT),Kerala
Akkulam Factory,
Thiruvananthapuram
(AFT),Kerala
Kakkanad Factory
Kochi, (KFC), Kerala

Kanagala Factory,
Belgaum, (KFB) Karnataka

Manesar Factory,
Gurgaon, (MFG), Hariyana

Sanver Road Factory,
Indore, Madhya Pradesh

Peroorkada Factory, Peroorkada
Thiruvananthapuram - 695005
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Akkulam Factory, Akkulam,
Thiruvananthapuram - 695017
HLL Lifecare Ltd

Cochin Special Economic Zone Division,
Plot No:16A/1,

Kakkanadu, Cochin -682037

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum,
Karnataka - 591225

HLL Lifecare Ltd

Manesar Unit, Plot No: 71 Sector 7,
Gurgaon, Haryana -122050

HLL Lifecare Ltd,

Sector-E, Sanver Road Industrial

(PFI) Area, Indore - Madhya Pradesh
Contraceptives Irapuram Factory, Cochin, HLL Lifecare Ltd
(IFC), Kerala Re-Sy.No 156/3, Block No.29

Rubber Park, Valayanchirangara
Irapuram,Cochin-683 556
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

Healthcare has become one of India’s largest sectors - both in terms of revenue and employment. Healthcare
comprises hospitals, medical devices, clinical trials, outsourcing, telemedicine, medical tourism, health insurance
and medical equipment. The Indian healthcare sector is growing at a brisk pace due to its strengthening coverage,
services and increasing expenditure by public as well private players.

The overall Indian healthcare market today is worth US$ 100 billion and is expected to grow to US$ 280 billion
by 2020, a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 22.9 per cent. Healthcare delivery, which includes
hospitals, nursing homes and diagnostics centres, and pharmaceuticals, constitutes 65 per cent of the overall
market.

There is a significant scope for enhancing healthcare services considering that healthcare spending as a percentage
of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is rising. Rural India, which accounts for over 70 per cent of the population, is
set to emerge as a potential demand source.

As a Public Entrepreneur, HLL can help the Government to use new delivery and organizational models to
improve efficiency in the delivery of public services and boost the impact of Government investments in healthcare
sector.

The global contraceptive market is estimated to grow at 4.3% during 2015 - 2022 and is estimated to be $32.85
billion by 2022. The global contraceptive market is majorly driven by various factors such as growing prevalence of
sexually transmitted infections (STIs), such as HIV. The introduction of new products, exhibiting improved efficacy
are expected to drive the contraceptive market over the forecast period. Awareness programs run by government
and NGOs to promote the use of contraceptives across the globe are also contributing positively to the growth of
contraceptive market. However ethical and social issues are some major factors restricting the use of contraceptives
in some countries. In addition, rising prevalence of infertility among women and aging population are limiting the
use of contraceptives thereby restricting the market growth.

The market for contraceptives is segmented by products and geography. Segmentation by product is further
divided into drugs, such as topical contraceptives, injectable, and oral contraceptive pills. Out of all the segments,
contraceptive devices hold the biggest market share, at about 62%, presently. The primary reason for the growth
of this segment is the growth of contraceptive devices such as copper IlUDs, male condoms, and inexpensive
sub-dermal contraceptive implants which is also known as sino-implants. In addition, the sub-segment comprises
of male contraceptive devices (such as condoms) and female contraceptive devices such as female condoms,
sub-dermal contraceptive implants, intrauterine devices, contraceptive diaphragm, contraceptive sponges,
contraceptive vaginal rings and non-surgical permanent contraception device.

Latin American market is an emerging market with great opportunities due to its untapped nature, constantly
improving healthcare infrastructure, economic development, and rising patient awareness. Regionally, Asia-Pacific
has potential to influence the industry in terms of demographics and lack of awareness within the large population.
Favorable government initiatives pertaining to sex education of individuals are one of the key factors expected to
push the contraceptive market over the forecasted period.
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3. PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE

HLL is a leading manufacturer and marketer of a range of contraceptive products around the globe. It also provides
a variety of hospital products, pharma products and healthcare delivery services.

Areview of HLL's manufacturing activities is given below:

Sl. Installed Quantity Capacity
No. Product Unit Capacity Manufactured utilization (%)
(Previous
year)

1 Condoms M.pcs 1892.00 1795.45
(1819.00) 95%

2 Blood Bags M.pcs 12.50 11.80
(12.52) 94%

3 Suture L. Doz 6.00 1.91
(1.74) 32%

4 Copper-T M.pcs 5.50 5.95
(4.87) 108%

5 Sterioidal OCP Million 98.67 44.32
cycle (41.25) 45%

6 Non-Steroidal OCP Million 30.00 29.77
Tablets (38.81) 99%

7 Sanitary Napkin M.pcs 392.00 228.48
(126.44) 58%

8 Pregnancey Test Card M. pcs 26.00 8.55
(13.67) 33%

4. MAJOR MARKETING INITIATIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS

Your Company plans to implement the modern marketing practices viz. Digital marketing, E-commerce
strategy, M-Commerce in the ensuing years to strengthen the Company’s domestic and global presence.

The significant marketing initiatives and achievements of the company during the year 2015-16 are stated
below:

° Moods was identified as POWER BRAND 2016 “the most recognized brand of India” featuring in the
selected 67 brands from India.

° Moods Deos has become a %2 cr brand.

° Happydays has become a %1 cr brand.

° Hinglact became %9 crore brand.

° Five pharma brands reached 1 crore mark (Xoom, M-care, Novex, Mifepro and Emily).
° Improved the blood component yield through Hicare CX in 7 places in TN

° Launched OB kit sutures and soft hernia kits and medigard-I

° Pharma Division Achieved 100% of the target and registered a growth of 45%.

° Velvet — Latex based Female condom was launched during the National Family Planning Summit
on 5th April 2016 at New Delhi by the Honorable Health Minister of India, Sri. J P Nadda.
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MOOQODS Silver launched in Domestic Market.

Installed 2117 Vending machines (MINI) and 1034 Sanitary Napkin Incinerators till date. These vending
machines have sold 1.72 million Sanitary Napkins (Happy Days) till date.

VENDIGO- Sanitary Napkin Vending Machine and Incinerators are approved by SWACHH BHARAT
MISSION, Ministry of Urban Development - Government of India.

HLL is ranked 41st company among 425 Gynec companies (improved by 11 ranks).
Export Division gained entry in 17 new markets globally.

MOODS GOLD now available in UAE, Oman, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia,Qatar, Bahrain, Zambia, Namibia,
Botzwana, Bangladesh.

Expanded business with IDA foundation. (321.28 Crs).
Long Term Agreement (LTA) signed with UNFPA for supplying IUD, Female Condoms & Male Condoms.
Launched AMRIT pharmacy in AIIMS Delhi on 16th November 2015.

18915 patients benefited from AMRIT Pharmacy in AIIMS, New Delhi with an average patient footfall of
161 patients per day till 31st March 2016.

14 AMRIT Pharmacies to be functional before 30th June 2016.

Free Generic Pharmacy (FGP) at AIIMS serviced 4,46,740 patients during 2015 - 16.
We are in process of setting up 39 “Jansanjivani” outlets in Karnataka.

The LCC operations showed an annual growth of 52 %.

The LCCs at Cuttack and Trivandrum achieved monthly sales figure of more than 100 Lakhs. LCC
Cuttack achieved an annual turnover of¥11.88 Cr.

5. RISKS AND CONCERNS

Risk: Government as a customer segment is expected to contribute 65% of HLL's revenues by
2020. Loss of ‘preferred vendor to government’ status may impact HLL's vision and strategies
significantly.

Mitigation plan: The Company plans to mitigate this risk by two-pronged strategies of ‘introducing
new products and services’ and ‘continuously increasing market share’, which are low to medium
risk strategies.

Risk: Increasing levels of compliance required for both export and domestic markets increases
cost of products and services.

Mitigation plan: The Company is confident of mitigating this risk by establishing dedicated teams
to ensure compliance with applicable regulations in target territories.

6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Given the nature of business and size of operations, your Company’s internal control system has been designed
to provide for:

Accurate recording of transactions with internal checks and prompt reporting.
Adherence to applicable Accounting Standards and Policies.
Compliance with applicable statutes, policies and management policies and procedures.

Effective use of resources and safeguarding of assets.

Annual Report 2015-2016
103



3T I AT YOIl 376! TRE A Vel W =1 71/ AN a2, U1 9bR0I iR AT ¥ HABI Pl Y& Bl ¢ |
MY ST T3 HHI &b TG AGTHRI Yd 1T B BIURT AT/ HdT 9T (1 U 7)) &9t g, a4t
I TR 3719 g RATIRIETT AR SGTIRIE T 7 T §IRT AT G ATSIT ST I HRIBEAT] BRI BT & 3R A 3P
T G HAT & Y DI M TS 81 Al 8 | B DT 3 2T T4 G & Y AGT b WY H 37 g w@aid
AQYHT & A1 Y GO A AT 2| GTORIen & < vt Bl Hay iR wrafaad &) I T 391 9 MR W)
AR G H T $ TP HSel DI IR B 8 | AHI I &b BRI B R T 9 7 MR IR IGToed 9 4
ERT GHIET B SN € IR TS B I AT € Al 91 B TUIC Bl ST 81 IRGTaien 9 A7 AT I ETaRIeTdhi
3R |1 T g% oRATIRIETD] o A1 A g% WU W Iadid Bl © IR B H 3fid I T YoITell B ura Ud
T G ARIT B & AY b qIR BT I S 21 395 §RT IS¢ G &l Bl I I ©Y A BRATs I
A HY S &1 HUN B o] At T & rguTer G ARId FRA B AT S I YISl AN B | B A I 298
gorall & 1T T FH! U Hamell 3R T Bl HHdg @ & Y I7UAT I IR ¥ |

7. @Ad% qaRol

S & ST, FEIUI, SRIGET Ud el & auid dRalel Ted U SR FEET F9f U4 avelyur H - gaxvT are]
ATATT T A9 P MR W & | B TSP HUA & IR 9 G I0MH, TG AT SYATEAT P HROT &l AhdT 8, S H T

P RO, TG T SUATSIT H 3 g AT H AT BN, g8 VA A gaR0I §IRT 3 Heawh AT J I bl SeT |
UI3HI A ANME AT ST & & GRa¥il 9] UR 3 Id g6 a%ard 7 I |

fe9Te ded & "B |9

26.052016 S1.09. 3gwH
3 faeen 3rezel vd yde feere
$4: 00117374

¥ RYIE 2015-2016
104



o A
~ = . . .
)7 HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

The internal control system provides for well documented policies/guidelines, authorisations and approval
procedures. Your Company, through independent firms of Chartered Accountants and its own Corporate
Audit/Assurance Service Division (CAS), carries out periodic audits at all locations and functions based on
the plan approved by the Audit Committee and brings out any deviation to internal control procedures. The
Company has an Audit Committee with majority of Independent Directors as members to maintain the
objective. The summary of the Internal Audit observations and status of implementation are submitted to the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The status of implementation of the
recommendations is reviewed by the Audit Committee on a regular basis and concerns, if any, are reported
to the Board. The Audit Committee periodically interacts with the Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors
and seeks their views to ensure quality and adequacy of the internal control systems in the Company. All the
issues raised by them have been suitably acted upon and followed up. Proper systems are in place to
ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the Company. The Company continues its efforts to align all its
processes and controls with best global practices.

7. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Directors Report and Management Discussion &Analysis describing the Company'’s objectives,
projections, expectations and estimates are based on current business environment. Many factors could cause
the actual results, performances or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future
results, performances or achievements that may be expressed or implied by such forward looking statements.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue conviction on the forward looking statements.

For and on behalf of Board of directors

Sd/-
26.05.2016 Dr. M. Ayyappan
New Delhi Chairman & Managing Director

DIN: 00117374
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Form No. AOC-2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions

Annexure |

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31,
2016, which were not on arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions on arm’s length basis for the year ended
31st March 2016 are as follows:

Name (s) of the
related Party &
Nature of
relationship

Hindustan Latex Family
Planning Promotion
Trust

LifeSpring Hospitals
Pvt Ltd

HLL Biotech Limited

Nature of
contract/
arrangements/
transactions

Sales

Sales
Commission

Rental Income
Other expenses
Sundry Debtors

Debenture
Interest

Other expense
Sundry debtors

Investment in
shares

Investment in
debentures

Sales
Commission

Consultancy/
Services

Other Expenses
Sundry Debtors

Investment in
shares

Duration of
contract/
arrangements/
transactions

NA

NA
NA
NA
NA

NA
NA
NA

NA

NA

NA

NA
NA
NA

NA

Salient terms

including the
value, if any
® in lakhs

846.21

17.72
42.69
531.00
334.84

19.34
0.25
58.55

783.42

125.00

0.06

78.49
50.12
238.83

27,489.00
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Date of
Board
approval,
if any

26.05.2016

26.05.2016

26.05.2016

Amount
paid as
advance, if
any

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil\
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
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Name (s) of the Nature of Duration of Salient terms Date of Amount
related Party & contract/ contract/ including the Board paid as
Nature of arrangements/ arrangements/  Vvalue,if any approval, advance, if
relationship transactions transactions (R in lakhs if any any

Goa Antibiotics and

Pharmaceuticals

Limited Consultancy/
Services NA 36.32 26.05.2016 Nil
Other expenses NA 6.72 Nil
Sundry Debtors NA 92.55 Nil
Investment in
shares NA 708.75 Nil

HLL InfraTech

Services Limited Rental Income NA 63.54 26.05.2016 Nil
Consultancy/
Services NA 1,096.20 Nil
Sundry debtors NA 413.26 Nil
Investmentin
shares NA 5.00 Nil

HLL Management

Academy Other Expenses NA 27.61 26.05.2016 Nil
Sundry Debtors NA 87.01 Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

DR. M. AYYAPPAN
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00117374

Date : 26.05.2016
Place : New Delhi
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ANNEXURE I

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31t March, 2016
of HLL LIFECARE LIMITED

[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

|. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN : U25193KL1966G0I1002621

i) Registration Date : 01/03/1966

iii) Name of the Company: HLL Lifecare Limited

iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company

V) Address of the Registered Office and contact details :

HLL Bhavan, Mahilamandiram Road, Poojappura, Trivandrum-695 012

Vi) Whether listed company : NO

Vii) Name, Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA), if any : N/A
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

SI. No. Name and Descriptionof NIC Code of the % to total turnoverof the
main products/services Product/service company
1. Contraceptive Products 39.18%
2. Health Care Products 21.22%
& Trading Products 18.59%

IIl. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SILNo  Name and address CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Shares Applicable
of the Company Subsidiary/ Held Section
Associate

1. Goa Antibiotics &
Pharmaceuticals
Limited U24231GA1980SGC000412 Subsidiary 74% 2(87)

2. HLL Infra Tech
Services Limited U45200KL2014GO0I036617  Subsidiary 100% 2(87)

3. HLL Biotech Ltd. U24290KL2012G0OI030732 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
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(v) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl Share Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
No holder’s beginning of the year end of the year % change
In share
Name No. of % of total %of Shares No. of % of total %of Shares holdlng
Shares Shares  Pledged/ Shares ~ Shares  Pledged/ ;0 e
of the encumbered of the encumbered year
company to total company to total
shares shares
1 Govt. of
India 193535000 100% - 290415000  100% - 66.64%
(vi) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
S Shareholding at the Cumulative
No beginningof the year Shareholding
during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the ..o shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year 193535000 100% 193535000 100%

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters

Shareholding during the Year specifying

the reasons for increase/decrease

(eg. allotment/transfer/bonus/

sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year 290415000 100% 290415000 100%

vii) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRSs):

Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
S|

For Each of the Top 10 Sharehol
No or Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of % of total . % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the Year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease (eg.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc):

3. At the end of the year (or on the date of

separation, of seperated during the year) Nil Nil Nil Nil
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(viii) TTeTRI SR T FHLBT HIHDI Bt IRRET Il
g & URY ¥ TR ¥ $ IRE F9U TR

% 6.9 UAF F29d R b tH ft F @ WA FTHREFT SRR R E T
e WRIB % e IR B %

Y & URY H
1) <fud e, @ € 100 100
2) it IR WuSeaTd, FASYdH 100 100
3) <P IIRIAFUH 100 il 100 T
4) s aorT SaR<d 100 100
5) st g3 der 100 100
g E/BH & RO Bl G AGE b dY &
<RI RRYT Il H TRIGAR g §/BH!
(T<T1. e/ AR/ S99/ ISeH
it an <) I T T N
Iy & URY H
1) SI.gH3™gwH, S uF $f 100 100
2) i IR Ul gvSdre, Aa9d 100 S 100 oY
3) SIPIARTAFUM 100 100
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5) st g3 der 100 100
(ix) o1
/ST TS | & HUAT B FUPRIAT, & B YA & o 37 & | (Bug it #)
ST Bl 39 T T ST P R
BISHY
9 T T
NG a9 & TR § F#OT
i) HAIDPH 4503617 - - 45,036.17
i) TS, o H USd A8l HY Y 88.04 - - 88 .04
i) SR <o, of S 9T TR = = T -
e (i+ii+iii) 45,124 21 - - 45,124 21
FNT 9 F SR FT A 9 IGqed
. TS 31588 5,000.00 - 531588
L] m‘ﬂ' -_ -_ e e
Jael 9 T 31588  5,000.00 531588
T af & i | o
) "= DA 45 352 05 5,000.00 - 50,352 05
i) T S, o B UG el By Y 108 58 - - 108 58
iiiy  SUIRTT =TT, of B < &l 53.29 779 - 61.08
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(viii). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl

No

1
2)
3
4)
5)

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

iX).

For Each of the Directors and KMP

At the beginning of the year
Dr. M.Ayyappan, CMD

Shri R. P.Khandelwal, Director
Dr. K.R.S Krishnan, Director
Smt. Vijaya Srivastava

Smt. Dharitri Panda

Date wise Increase/Decrease in Share
holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/decrease

(e.g. allotment /transfer/bonus/

sweat equity etc)

At the end ofthe year

Dr. M.Ayyappan, CMD

Shri R. P.Khandelwal, Director
Dr. K.R.S Krishnan, Director
Smt. Vijaya Srivastava

Smt. Dharitri Panda

INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year

i)
i)
i)

Principal Amount
Interest due but not paid
Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)
Changein Indebtedness
duringthe financial year

Addition
Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year

i) Principal Amount

i) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

No. of
shares

100
100
100
100

100
NIL

100
100
100
100
100

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

45,036.17

88.04

45,124.21

315.88

315.88

45,352.05
108.58
53.29
45,513.92

% of total
shares of the
company

Negligible

NIL

Negligible

Unsecured
Loans

5,000.00

5,000.00

5,000.00

7.79
5,007.79
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Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year

No. of
shares

100
100
100
100

100
NIL

100
100
100
100
100

Deposits

% of total
shares of the
company

Negligible

NIL

Negligible

(Rs. in lacs)

Total
Indebted-
ness

45,036.17
88.04

45,124.21

5,315.88

5,315.88

50,352.05
108.58
61.08
50,521.71
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Rs. in lacs)
Sl. Particulars of Dr. M Shri. R P Dr.KRS Dr. Babu Total
No. Remuneration Ayyappan Khandelwal Krishnan Thomas
1. Gross salary
@) Salary as per provisions 33.87 27.31 22.92 24.24 108.34

contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act,1961]

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 3.09 2.86 2.02 2.28 10.25
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
& Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
4. Commission- as % of
profit- others, specify... Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
5. Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (A) 36.96 30.17 24.94 26.52 118.59
Ceiling as per the Act 288.83
B. Remuneration to other directors: (Rs. in lacs)
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Shri. Sanjiv Kapoor  Dr. Aarti Vij Shri. K.Mohandas Total
No/ Amount

1. Independent Directors

* Fee for attending board/ 2.50 0.60 1.40 4.50
committee meetings
e Commission

e Others, please specify

Total (1) 2.50 0.60 1.40 4.50
2. OtherNon-Executive Directors
* Fee for attending board/ Nil Nil Nil Nil
committee meetings
e Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
e Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (B)=(1+2) 2.50 0.60 1.40 4.50

Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl.
No.

@)

(b)
(©)

Particulars of Remuneration

Gross salary

Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

Value of perquisites u/s17(2)
Income tax Act, 1961

Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Others, please specify

Total

CEO

N.A

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

the Companies Description

Section of
Type Act

A. COMPANY

Penalty NIL
Punishment NIL
Compounding NIL
B. DIRECTORS

Penalty NIL
Punishment NIL
Compounding NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL
Punishment NIL
Compounding NIL

Brief

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

Detail

(Rs. in lacs)

Key Managerial Personnel

Company
Secretary

17.40

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

17.40

S

of Penalty

/[Punishment/
fees imposed

Comp

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
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ounding

CFO

19.08

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

19.08

Total

36.48

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

36.48

Authority[RD Appeal

INCLT/
Court]

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

made, ,if
any (give
Details)

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
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Annexure. I
BVR & ASSOCIATES "Swsthika", TR/53/3933, Lal Salem Road
Company Secretaries LLP Off Convent Road, Pommirunni

Vytila P.O., Cochin-682019
Ph:+91-484-4046696, +91 98956 30786
LLP Identification Number : AAE-7-79 Email : info@directus.co.in

Form No: MR 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2016
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members

HLL LIFECARE LIMITED

CIN: U25193KL1966G0I1002621.

HLL Bhavan, Mahila Mandiram Road, Poojappura
Thiruvananthapuram, Kerala-695012, India

We, BVR & ASSOCIATES, Company Secretaries LLP, have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s.HLL LIFECARE LIMITED
[CIN: U25193KL1966G01002621](hereinafter called the Company). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the M/s. HLL LIFECARE LIMITED’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records produced to us and according to information and explanations given to us by the
Company, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31.03.2016 complied with the statutory provisions listed here under and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by M/s HLL LIFECARE LIMITED (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31.03.2016 according to the
provisions of:

1 The Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under.
2 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the applicable rules and regulations made there under.

As informed to us the following other Laws specifically applicable to the Company as under:

1.  The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981
2. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

3. The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
4. Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948

5.  Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

6. The Factories Act, 1948

7.  The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946
8.  Maternity BenefitAct, 1961

9. Legal Metrology Act, 2009

10. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

11. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

12. The Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881
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The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1974
Kerala Soaps & Est. Welfare Fund Board Act.
Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and the rules made there under

Sexual Harassment of Women at the work place (prevention, prohibition and redressal) Act, 2013

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1) Secretarial Standards to the extent applicable issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of

India.

2) Corporate Social Responsibility Voluntary Guidelines, 2009 issued by the Ministry of Corporate

Affairs, Government of India;

We report that, during the year under review:

1.

10.

The status of the Company during the financial year has been that of an Unlisted Public Company. The
Company has been a holding of another company but has not been a subsidiary of another company.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors.The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda are sent atleast seven days in advance, a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.Majority decision is carried through, while the dissenting members’ views are captured
and recorded as part of the minutes.

The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of appointment,
their being independent and compliance with the code of Business Conduct & Ethics for Directors and
Management Personnel and also with regard to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts and
arrangements, shareholdings/debenture holdings and directorships in other companies and interests in
other entities.

The amount borrowed by the Company from its bank(s)/ financial institution(s) and others were within
the borrowing limits of the Company. Such borrowings were made by the Company in compliance with
applicable laws.

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of unsecured loans, facilities granted by bank(s)/
financial institution(s) and non-banking financial companies. The Company has not issued Debentures
and collected Public Deposits.

The Company has not modified an existing charge on the assets of the company.

All registrations under the various state and local laws as applicable to the company are valid as on the
date of report.

The Company has issued rights shares to the existing share holders of the Company and allotted the
securities during the period under scrutiny.

The Company has declared dividend and paid dividends to its shareholders during the period under
scrutiny. The Company has no unpaid dividend during the financial year due for transfer to Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

The Company has paid all its statutory dues and satisfactory arrangements have been made for arrears
of any such dues.

The Company has provided a list of statutes in addition to the laws as mentioned above and it has been
observed that there are systems in place to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the company.
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We further report that:

1. the Company has complied with the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility Voluntary Guidelines,
2009 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India;

2. the Company has followed the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India;

3. the company has complied with the Provisions of The Competition Act, 2002 with regard to prohibition
of anti-competitive agreements, abuse of dominance and ensuring of competition advocacy. As per the
verification, the company is ensuring fair competition in the market among its competitors.

We further report that:

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.

For BVR & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Sd/-

ACS Gokul R

Designated Partner

Place: Thiruvananthapuram FCS No.A21269
Date: 24.05.2016 C P No. 14245
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‘Annexure A’
To,

The Members,
M/s. HLL LIFECARE LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

3. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We
believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

4.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

5.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

6. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test
basis.

7.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For BVR & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Sd/-

ACS Gokul R I

Designated Partner

Place: Thiruvananthapuram FCS No.A21269
Date: 24.05.2016 C P No. 14245
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To

The Members of HLL Lifecare Limited
HLL Bhavan

Poojappura P.O.
Thiruvananthapuram-695012

We have examined the Compliance of conditions of Coporate Governance by HLL Lifecare Limited for the
financial year ended on 31%'March 2016, as stipulated by DPE OM No. 18 (8)/2005-GM dated 14™ May 2010.

The compliance of the conditions of Coporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limted to prcocedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the conditions of
Corporate Governance. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information to the explanation given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned DPE O.M.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For M/s Abraham & Jose,
Chartered Accountants

CA . Mukesh K.P.
Kochi Partner, M.No. 214773
30.05.2016 F.R. No. 000010S
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
To the Members of
HLL LIFECARE LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements, that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion of financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2016, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to :

1) Note No.2.19 regarding the uncertainity on final prices applicable for supplies to Government of
India during the year 2015-16, as the same is yet to be notified by the Government and accordingly
the effect of the same has not been considered in the financial statements; and in respect of
supplies for the previous years, though the Government has sought recovery of price difference
from the Company to the extent of ¥30.65 crores, the Company has raised objections and has not
provided for the same in the financial statements.

2) Note No. 2.23 regarding delay in capitalisation of the Uni-pill Plant beig setup by the Company at
Kanagala Belgaum which was scheduled to be commissioned in January 2012. There is also a
cost overrun of 24.02 crores, the recoverability of the same has been assessed by the
management and not provided for.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A " statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended);

Vide notification No. GSR 463(E) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5" June 2015, provisions
of sub-section (2) of section 164 regarding disqualification of directors are not applicable to the company.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure B";

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements vide Note N0.30 to the standalone financial statements;

ii)  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, as required on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

iii) There were no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to be examined
in terms of sub-section (5) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, the compliance of which is given
hereunder:
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Directions issued under
section 143 (5)

Whether the Company has clear title/

s

17

Report

We are informed

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Action Taken

Impact on accounts and
financial statements

lease deeds for freehold and that the Company il Nil
leasehold land respectively? If not has clear title/
please state the area of freehold and |ease deeds for
leasehold lands for which title/lease freehold and
deeds are not available. leasehold land
respectively
Whether there are any cases of  1here are 112 Amountof362.38
waiver/ write off of debts/loans/ ~ ¢ases where |akhs adjusted
interest etc., if yes, the reasons there ~ Claims amounting  towards provision Nil
for and the amount involved. to ¥62.38lakhs, created against
being irrecover the same in
able have been earlier years.
written off.
The company is
Whether proper records are | jintaini ng
maintained for inventories lying with proper records
third parties & assets received as gift  ¢;. " ihventories
from Govt. or other authorities. lying with third .
Nil Nil

parties.As
informed, the
company has not
received any
asset as gift from
Government/
other authorities.

For Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000010S)

Place : New Delhi
Date : 26.05.2016

Mukesh. K.P
Partner (M. No. 214773)
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent
Auditors' Report of even date to the members of HLL Lifecare Limited ("the Company"), on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended 31t March 2016]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(i)  (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed
assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the informatin and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company;

(i)  The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year. We are informed that no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification ;

(iii) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions
of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has compiled
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees
and security;

(v) During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). However, we report
that an amount of Rs.10,000 accepted during earlier period is outstanding under fixed deposit not
repaid due to dispute between the legal heirs.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under subsection (1) of Section
148 of the Act in respect of Company'’s products and services and are of the opinion that, prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

(vii) (a) According to the records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Excise
Duty, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

According to the Information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of customs,
Duty of Excise, Values Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to it, were outstanding, as
on the last date of the financial year, for a period more than six months from the date they become
payable ;
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, customs Tax, Excise Duty or Cess not deposited on account of any dispute
except:-

Name of the Statute Forum where the AmountinvolvedPeriod

matter is pending (Rs. lakhs)
The Income Tax Act, 1961 CIT (Appeals) 10.12 Asst.Yr 2008-09
Do Do 18.28 Asst.Yr 2009-10
Do ITAT (Appeals) 19.82 Asst.Yr 2010-11
Do CIT (Appeals) 24.62 Asst.Yr 2011-12
Do ITAT (Appeals) 39.23 Asst.Yr 2011-12
Do CIT (Appeals) 32.41 Asst.Yr 2012-13
Do CIT (Appeals) 75.34 Asst.Yr 2013-14
Customs Act,1962 Commissioner of

Customs 22.15 2007-08

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to the financial institutions, banks and debenture
holders during the year;

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us
the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which these loans were obtained;

Based on the audit procedures performed and the representations obtained from the management we
report that no material fraud on or by the Company by its officers or its employees has been noticed or
reported during the year under audit;

In view of exemption given Vide naotification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act regarding managerial
remuneration are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not
applicable;

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not
applicable to the Company;

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
the Companies Act,2013,where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting Standards;

(xiv) The Company has issued 9,68,80,000 equity shares of 10 each to Government of India vide orders

dated 18th March 2015 and 19th August 2015. The amount raised was invested in shares of HLL
Biotech Ltd, a subsidiary Company, in compliance with directions of Government of India;

(xv) Based on the audit procedures perform and the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

(xvi) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For Abraham and Jose

Chartered Accountants

(FRN 000010S)

Place: New Delhi Mukesh K. P.
Date: 26.05.2016 Partner(M. No. 214773)
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent
Auditors Report of even date to the members of HLL Lifecare Limited ("the Company") on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2016]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal fiancial controls over financial reporting of HLL LIFECARE LIMITED (‘the Company")
as of 31 March 2016 in conjuction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of the internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparatin of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Control over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAl and deemed
to be prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respecs.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivenes. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion of the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that :

1.  pertainto the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detailsm accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company ; and

3.  provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internaol financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditons, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedure may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31%
March, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Abraham and Jose
Chartered Accountants

(FRN 000010S)
Place : New Delhi Mukesh. K.P
Date : 26.05.2016 Partner (M.No. 214773)
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Office of the Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-Officio Member Audit Board-IV, New Delhi
File No. 420-PDCA/HS/MAB-IV/Standalone/HLL Lifecare Ltd./AA/2016-17

Date 13.07.2016

CONFIDENTIAL
To

The Chairman and Managing Director,
HLL Lifecare Ltd.

HLL Bhavan, Poojappura P.O.
Thiruvananthapuram-695012

Sub : Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under 143 (6) (b) of the Companies Act,
2013 on the accounts of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31t March 2016.
Sir,
I am to enclose herewith the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under 143 (6) (b) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 on the accounts of the HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The receipt of the letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully

(Dr. Ashutosh Sharma)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Encl: As above Ex-Officio Member Audit Board-1V, New Delhi

8th & 9th Floor, Annexure Building, 10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002
Tel: 23239413, 23239415, 23239420, Fax: 23239416
Email: mabNewdelhi4@cag.gov.in
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE HLL
LIFECARE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2016

The preparation of financial statements of HLL LIFECARE LIMITED for the year ended 31 March, 2016 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutory auditor/auditors appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act is/are responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with standards on
auditing prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 26.05.2016.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India have conducted a supplementary audit under
section 143 (6) (a) of the Act of the financial statements of HLL LIFECARED LIMITED for the year ended 31st
March 2016. The supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and the company personnel and
a selective examination of some of the accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come
to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors' report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

(Dr.Ashutosh Sharma)
Place : New Delhi Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Date : 13.07.2016 Ex-Officio Member Audit Board-1V, New Delhi

Annual Report 2015-2016
151



31 #rd, 2016 &l WU aY &I JoI=-93

EER

sfedt 9 Suand
SEETAT P A
(®) TR Yol

() TR &I qAT 3F IRy

e o 9 @ IR AT &
AT, T

(&) SEBI IR

(@) SR I PR I ( qdel)
(1) <efprele g

EIGECRRIY
) BEBICIT IR
@) MR <
) I ATl TG
H) ITUDIci AT

s

P —

Pl P AR AH & JH g5 T AN &b Y

e O It
ES

(9) 9 39 =i

1.

R-da1e U w9 A
(@) /e Y | AT
() 7 T
(i) orqd <=
(iii) =re] G0 Prf

Pl & AR A9 $ I g5 T A8 &

RIds 9 96 AV

Xl

AEAYUl dEiEa At adt

T gaR0 b T P 09 A o' < VR < |

HEA B TWRE A

1. TH. W
aregey vd

EY ASYD

(ST 00117374)
g Tooll
26.05.2016

SIRCICESIGE
RS ((gUUH)
(=T 00342401)

qr. sfipHR
U | =g vd

q IS IUTeel (T 3R)
(T W w : 5875)

¥ RYIE 2015-2016

152

Tooft ¥ 31032016 ™1 31.03.2015 &1
% o § % o §
8 29,041 50 19,353 50
4 25697 .70 2327532
54,739 20 42 628 82
- 4.000.00
5 4,095 11 5,153 60
6 116559 1,198.20
7 12178 13167
5,382 48 6,483 47
8 44 378 .06 37 657 56
9 1921908 20,949 49
10 1718135 23,316 .53
11 1,239.48 142930
82,017 .97 83,352 .88
96,764 50 7372393
2,38,904 .15 2,10,189.10
12 23540.73 22 62096
696 86 828 29
8,720.22 745427
32,957 81 30,903 52
13 28,204 .75 19,425 17
500.00 -
14 307 .06 4,628.15
i3 908 42 -
15 9,740.60 10,117 97
16 60,264 61 62,261 .05
17 221179 1,888,77
18 6,742.78 7,261 .85
19 301.83 533.69
80,170.03 81,508.33
96,764 50 7372393
2,38,904 .15 2,10,189.10
1
2

it IR ) R OIS Hel B

o AT TR TS i

A AETHR

¥ . 0000107

IR O Y. gHY. Fd

q 75 JTee ( 9T) WRIER

UG g gy STEHR] qewrdr |. 214773

(v ¥ T 26723)



s

)7 HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2016

ASAT
31.03.2015

X lacs)

19,353.50
23,275.32
42,628.82

4,000.00

5,153.60
1,198.20

131.67
6,483.47

37,657.56
20,949.49
23,316.53

1,429.30
83,352.88

73,723.93
2,10,189.10

22,620.96
828.29
7,454,27
30,903.52
19,425,17

4,628.15

10.117.97
62,261.05
1,333.77
7,261.85
533.69
81,508.33

73,723.93
2,10,189.10

Vide our report of even date attached

For M/s. Abraham & Jose

Particulars Note No ASAT
31.03.2016
X lacs)
A. EQUITYAND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds
(@) Share Capital 3 29,041.50
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 25,697.70
54,739.20
2. Shareapplication money pending allotment -
3. Non-current liabilities
(&) Long-term borrowings 5 4,095.11
(b) Deferred tax liabilites (net) 6 1,165.59
(c) Long-term provision 7 121.78
5,382.48
4. Current liabilities
(@) Short-term borrowings 8 44,378.06
(b) Trade payables 9 19,219.08
(c) Other current liabilities 10 17,181.35
(d) Short-term provisions n 1,239.48
82,017.97
4. Advances Received for Projects held under Trust
as per contra 96,764.50
TOTAL 2,38,904.15
B. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(@) Fixed assets 12
i) Tangible assets 23,540.73
ii) Intangible assets 696.86
iii) Capital work-in-progress 8,720.22
32,957.81
(b) Non-currentinvestments 13 28,204.75
(c) Long-term loans and advances 500.00
(c) Other Non-Current assets 14 307.06
2. Current assets
(@) Current Investments 13 908.42
(b) Inventories 15 9,740.60
(b) Trade receivables 16 60,264.61
(c) Cash and cash equivalents 17 2,211.79
(d) Short-term loans and advances 18 6,742.78
(e) Other current assets 19 301.83
80.170.03
3. Cashand Bank balances of Projects held under
Trust as per contra 96,764.50
TOTAL 2,38,904.15
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Explanatory notes to Financial Statements 2
For and on behalf of the Board
Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan

Chairman &
Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016

Director (Marketing)
[DIN: 00342401]

CS & SVP (HR)
[FCS: 5875]

SVP (F) & CFO
[FCA: 26723]
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CA. Mukesh. K.P
Partner
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HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

Particulars

1. Revenue from operations (gross)
Less: Excise duty
Revenue from operations (net)

2. Other income

Total revenue (1+2)

4. Expenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed

(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade

(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

(d) Employee benefits expense

(e) Finance costs

() Depreciation and amortisation expense

(g) other expenses

(h) Contract Expenses

Total expenses

Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional items and tax (3-4)

Exceptional items [Income /Expense]

Profit/(Loss) before tax (5-6)

Tax expenses :

(a) Current tax expenses for current year

(b) Prior year tax adjustments

(c) MAT Credit Entitlement

(d) Deferred tax

@9

© N o O

9. Profit/ (Loss) for the year (7-8)
10. Earnings per share () - Basic
(Face value of ¥ 10/- share)
Diluted
Significant Accounting Policies
Explanatory notes to Financial Statements

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. Babu Thomas
Director (Marketing)
[DIN: 00342401]

P. Sreekumar
CS & SVP (HR)
[FCS: 5875]

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman &
Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016
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Note No Year ended Year ended
31-03-2016 31-03-2015
X lacs) X lacs)
20 1,07.208.46 1,06,438.70
917.27 633.74
1,06,291.19 1,05,804.96
21 876.89 398.37
1,07,168.08 1,06,203.33
22 23,180.03 20,585.80
23 25,740.75 20,981.27
24 (157.55) 1,908.01
25 14,934.22 14,677.14
26 2,872.39 2,594.34
12 3,652,03 2,983.12
27 27,103.66 28,100.04
6,039.51 11,351.99
1,03,365.04 1.03.181.71
3,803.04 3,021.62
- (731.17)
3,803.04 3,752.79
1,115.99 954.26
(168.59) (157.67)
- (133.68)
(32.63) (65.26)
914,77 597,65
2,888.27 3,155.14
2.10 1.13 1.63
1.13 1.63
1
2
Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P

Partner
Membership No : 214773

SVP (F) & CFO
[FCA: 26723]
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
X lacs) ® lacs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before extraordinary items and tax 3,803.04 3,752.82
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 3,652.03 2,983.12
Exceptional item for Depreciation = (731.17)
Loss on sale of fixed assets 1.48 4.40
Profit on sale of fixed assets (4.71) (4.52)
Finance costs 2,872.39 2,594.34
Interest income (156.30) (103.64)
Operating profit/(Loss) before working capital changes 10,167.93 8,495.35
Changes in working capital :
Adjustment for (increase)/decrease in operating assets :
Inventories 377.77 1,586.76
Trade receivables 1,996.44 (19,112.80)
Short-term loans and advances 522.03 2,615.31
other current assets 231.86 (149.24)
Changes in other non-current assets 38.43 38.42
Adjustment for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities :
Trade payables (1,730.41) 10,667.62
Other current liabilities (6,135.18) 5,353.34
Long-terms provisions (9.89) 19.60
Short-term provisions (189.82) 145.80
5,268.76 9,660.16
Cash flow from extraordinary items
Cash generated from operations 5,268.76 9,660.16
Net Income tax (paid)/refunds (667.70) (847.67)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 4,601.06 9,012.49
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital Work in Progress (1,265.95) (454.37)
Investment in Fixed Assets (4,464.94) (7,045.06)
Sale of fixed assets 27.80 7.61
Interest received 156.30 103.64
Investment in Shares of HBL (5,688.00) (4,000.00)
Investment in HLL Infratech Services Ltd. - (5.00)
Changes in Long-term loans & advances (500.00) =
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more
than twelve months) (55.31) (28.84)
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) (12,790.10) (11,422.02)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long-term borrowings (1,058.49) (2,568.78)
Proceeds from other short-term borrowings 6,720.50 3,890.65
Advance for investment from Govt. of India - 4,000.00
Investment from Govt. of India 5,688.00 -
Finance cost - Interest paid (2,872.39) (2,594.34)
Dividend paid (387.07) (387.07)
Tax on dividend (78.80) (78.80)
Net Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) 8,011.75 2,261.66
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Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(X in lacs) ( in lacs)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 822.71 (147.87)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,104.66 1,252.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,927.37 1,104.66
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet
(Refer Note 17) 2,211.79 1,333.77
Less : Bank balances not considered as cash and cash
equivalents as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Statements 284.42 229.11
Net Cash and cash equivalents (as defined inAS 3
Cash Flow Statements) included in Note 17 1,927.37 1,104.66
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*
* Comprises
(@) Cashonhand 19.53 11.62
(i) InDepositaccount 418.40 257.12
(i) Incurrentaccounts 1,448.00 788.18
(i) In EEFC accounts 41.44 47.74
1,927.37 1,104.66

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in the AS - 3
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2 The previous year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary in order to confirm to this
year’s presentation.

3 Transactions of project funds held under Trust and balance of 96,764.50 lacs (previous year
373723.93 lacs) are not included in the Cashflow

For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
Chairman & Director (Marketing) CS & SVP (HR) SVP (F) & CFO Partner
Managing Director [DIN: 00342401] [FCS: 5875] [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773
[DIN: 00117374]
New Delhi
26.05.2016
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T T1000/- sfaae! 3rR-19,35,35,000 = 19,353 50
Bl 29,041 50 19,353 .50
¥RR Yoft &1 A A
EER| 31.03.2016 @l 31.03.2015 @l
IR B HT BUC Gl H IIRI D G BUT oAl
sfaRpt IR ot
a1 gpd
37 Y
(El?éﬁ‘cﬁ 310/~ & 3 B 31?1) 3000,00,000 30,000.00 3000,00,000 30,000.00
LRG| - - - -
3 9 9y
(QcﬁEﬁ 310/- & 37 P 11@1) 3000,00,000 30,000.00 3000,00,000 30,000.00
SRl HT T
37 Y
(El?éﬁ‘cﬁ ?10/- & I Bd W) 1935,35,000 19,353 ,50 1935,35,000 19,353 50
q ¥qeS 968,80,000 9,688 00 - -
3 99 9y
(EI?Q?EE 310/- & 37 P 11@1) 2904 15,000 29,041 50 1935,35,000 19.353 50
3 e 3R ye+
37 Y
(El?éﬁ‘cﬁ ?10/- & I Bd W) 19,35,350 00 19,353 50 19,35,35,000 19,353 50
q ¥qeH 968,80,000 9,688 00 - -
3 99 9y
(El?éﬁ‘cﬁ ?10/- & I Bd W) 2904 15,000 29,041 50 1935,35,000 19,353 50
5% ¥ 31 P IR I I U IRRERE &b IR F qaR0]
31.03.2016 &I 31.03.2015 =i
IRINYRSG hI 419 ELc| HIROT BI YRU] ®U YR bl
IR B G GOl SERI a) A& 9 qeradl
HRT A¥DN 2904 15,000 100% 193535000 100%
e Rdié 2015-2016
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Note 3 Share Capital
Particulars AS AT AS AT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of of ¥ 10/- each - 30,00,00,000 Nos. 30,000.00 30,000.00
(b) Issued Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 29,04,15,000 Nos. 29,041.50
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos. 19,353.50
(c) Subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 29,04,15,000 Nos. 29,041.50
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos. 19,353.50
Total 29,041.50 19,353.50

Reconciliation of Share Capital

Description

AS AT 31.03.2016

AS AT 31.03.2015

Equity Share Capital
Authorized

Opening Balance

(Face value of T 10/- each)
Additions

Closing Balance

(Face value of ¥ 10/- each)
Issued

Opening Balance

(Face value of ¥ 10/- each)
Additions

Closing Balance

(Face value of ¥ 10/- each)
Subscribed & Paid up
Opening Balance

(Face value of I 10/- each)
Additions

Closing Balance

(Face value of ¥ 10/- each)

No. of Amount

shares in lacs
3000,00,000 30,000.00
3000,00,000  30,000.00
19,35,35,000 19,353.50
968,80,000 9,688.00
2904,15,000 29,041.50
19,35,35,000 19,353.50
968,80,000 9,688.00
2904,15,000 29,041.50

No. of Amount

shares in lacs
3000,00,000 30,000.00
3000,00,000 30,000.00
19,35,35,000 19,353.50
1935,35,000 19,353.50
19,35,35,000 19,353.50
1935,35,000 19,353.50

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of shareholder AS AT 31.03.2016 AS AT 31.03.2015

Number of % of Number of % of
shares held Holding shares held Holding
Govt. of India 2904,15,000 100% 1935,35,000 100%
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cuofl 4 3R & FAT 3 U9y
31.03.2016 &I 31.03.2015 &I

= T orai | T ol §

(%) BrARe A oid Svel Ted (FTHIR)

KRN - 3680

Sire: a¥ % SR T gE/RidR0T . i

=F: 9§ P SR WHE AR & Pl 3fcl I - 36.80

a9y - 36.80
(@) wnieT THHERUT IR & 129 74 129 74
(371) AT 3R &

3T Ay 23,145 58 20,419 47

SIE : oY 9 819 & 9axuT § 31 9919 ¥ 3fd ¥ 2422 40 2,689 .31

SIS : 9§ & SR A U R ¥ Ad I - 3680

SiTH Ay 25,567 98 23,145 58
(77) MM T BT F JaRUT | I rEN/(EeT)

3 AY - -

SIS : 9§ & g /(3T ) 288827 315515

A I I AT

Sl SRR URBI Bl IR 9 i (YH I10/- & T 01333 ya

IR, g4 a9 7% % 10/- $ % 0. 20/- 97 IR ) 387 07 387 07

AT R IR 7880 7880

AMFT TR &7 2422 40 268928

T Ay

Bl 25,697 70 23,275 32

cuoft 5 Siefer o SUR
31.03.2016 &I 31.03.2015 &I

% ol d % ot A
() 31 T ST
gael qgT HOT - ¥ aYd 752 62 1,65533
31a g 0T TIAT - ¥ T 193279 289917
(@) 3= U1 9 3 UH
TN o shall $I WE-SUR 140970 599.10
e 4,095.11 5,153.60
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Note 4 Reserves and surplus

ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserve
Opening balance - 36.80
Add : Additions/transfers during the year - -
Less : Transferred during the year to General Reserve - 36.80
Closing balance - 36.80
(b) Dividend Equalisation Reserve 129.74 129.74
(c) General Reserve
Opening balance 23,145.58 20,419.47
Add : Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 2,422.40 2,689.31
Add : Transferred during the year from CSR - 36.80
Closing balance 25,567.98 23,145.58

(c) Surplus/ (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance - -
Add : Profit/ (Loss) for the year 2,888.27 3,155.15
Less : Proposed Dividend

Dividends proposed to equity shareholders (30.1333 per share

of 310/- each, Previous year 30.20 share of I 10/- each) 387.07 387.07
Tax on dividend 78.80 78.80
General Reserve 2,422.40 2,689.28
Closing balance - -
Total 25,697.70 23,275.32
Note 5 Long-term borrowings
ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(@) Term Loans
Foreign currency loan-Secured 752.62 1,655.33
Rupee Term Loan-Secured 1,932.79 2,899.17
(b) Other loans and Advances
Foreign currency Buyers Credit 1,409.70 599.10
Total 4,095.11 5,153.60
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Tl 6 Al AFH-22 P IJefT ThSIBIU-3T TR B & U ol

31.03.2016 @ 31.03.2015 &I

T o # T omai |
IR T BN (T /4 9 T
TRET (1949.18) (1980.36)
IR T HY AT B dTell HAI & B THIG (1949 .18) (1980.36)
IR A HR B dTell YIHYTAT & F&I & DR YW
S RO b Y UG 73950 707 47
THAG Y FHTT & Y TTIETH - 29 .42
9 & Y Y 20.78 1428
33 23 .31 30.99
3R I PR B dTell U HI AT & Al b PR YU 78359 782 .16
Sael 37 T B (IT) /9 76 T (1165 .59) (1198 .20)

ool 7 Seiprens wEe

31.03.2016 &1 31.03.2015 @i

T ar@l | % ol |

(®) DHTR BIAH P I WG
TTE Wl 9 P Y UTaEn 121.78 13167
121.78 13167
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Note 6 Disclosures under Accounting Standards-22 Accounting for Taxes on Income

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs % lacs
Deferred tax (liability)/asset
Depreciation (1949.18) (1980.36)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability (1949.18) (1980.36)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts 739.50 707.47
Provision for Overtime arrear - 29.42
Provision for Bonus 20.78 14.28
Others 23.31 30.99
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 783.59 782.16
Net deferred tax (liability)/asset (1165.59) (1198.20)
Note 7. Long-tern provisions
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Provisions for employee benefits :
Provisions for Performance related pay 121.78 131,67
121.78 131,67
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TWUT 8 3[BT TTh SUR

31.03.2016 %I 31.03.2015 @i
o]

T ot # T omat |
() AR R T q9T HOT (FHal 0T) - T A4
e 9% 3% g 3T A 8,259 32 13,753 .56
BT 96 A 3.26 481189
FERSIR i o 328423 420625
P 11,546 .81 22,771.70
() 901 | THBIAT FHO-T TYd ATRGIIS
PRI b A 7,500.00 250000
v e W 7,500.00 249252
Pl 15,000.00 4,992 52
(1) oYg R 9 FUH - ¥ IYd
TN HST bl DI ARG - SUR 12,740 24 9,842 08
() T SR < @t
PRI dB 35.35 15 .40
e 9@ i g = 47 87 -
g I UG W §6 - 35.86
Pl (WaYd) 39,370.27 37,657 .56
(S) T &t & A AeuDIel I GoT 0T (319 TYd) 5,007.79 -
P 44,378 .06 37,657 56

T oRit : (i) U STUDT b SUR B A HAY T F qaRvl
31.03.2016 ®1 31.03.2015 @i

= A 3 i # g o A
dpi ¥ A W T qQ R BU BT Al YA T W WX U 8,259.32 13,753 .56
CEall TSt | RGN e 96 @t 3R A
T o ams qOTR], TOATAYRH P APBI F &
YA W A & w9 AeIs
e |
PRI 9P 326 4811389
g S UG 4l §6 3,284 23 4242 11
TPl & IR T FT-T THA AT
CENICEI] 9 AT ST I a9 753535 251540
T d1 g 9 7,547 87 2492 52
15,083 .22 5,007 .92
T KU1 d 3JUH
Exiicaliie] ERCIEEIRSEIRCRIS G| 14,149 94 10,441 .18
R : SR dD SUR 1,409.70 599.10
1274024 9,842,08

Gl 39,370 .27 37,657 .56
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Note 8 Short-term borrowings

ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31-03-2016 31-03-2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Loans repayable on demand (Cash Credit) -Secured
From State Bank of India 8,259.32 13,753.56
From Canara Bank 3.26 4,811.89
From HDFC Bank 3,284.23 4,206.25
Total 11,546.81 22,771.70
(b) Short Term Loans from Banks - Secured Overdraft
From Canara Bank 7,500.00 2,500.00
From SBI 7,500.00 2,492.52
Total 15,000.00 4,992.52
(c) Other loans and advances - Secured
Foreign Currency Buyers Credit 12,740.24 9,842.08
(d) Interest Accrued & due
Canara Bank 35.35 15.40
State Bank of India 47.87 -
HDFC Bank - 35.86
Total (Secured) 39,370.27 37,657.56
(e) Short Term Foreign Currency Loan from SBT (Unsecured) 5,007.79 -
Total 44,378.06 37,657.56
Notes : (i) Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings :
AS AT AS AT
Particulars Nature of security 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Loans repayable on demand from
banks :
SBI 8,259.32 13,753.56
Parripassu charge over current
assets of the company. Equitable
Canara Bank Mortgage as collateral over the 3.26 4,811.89
land with building at Poojappura,
HDFC Bank Trivandrum towards State Bank 3,284.23 4,242.11
of India
Short Term Loans from Banks -
Secured Overdraft
From Canara Bank 7,535.35 2,515.40
From SBI Secured by Project Deposits 7,547.87 2,492.52
15,083.22 5,007.92
Other Loans and Advances :
Buyers Credit Secured by Project Deposits 14,149,94 10,441.18
Less : Long Term Borrowings 1,409.70 599.10
12,740.24 9,842.08
Total 39,370.27 37,657.56
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T ar@l |

256 85

18,962 23
19,219.08

T @@l |

238.03

20,711 46
20,949 49

31.03.2016 &1  31.03.2015 &l

T ar@i |
1,995 25

487063
3,184 20
5329
0.10
7,077 38

17,181.35

T @@l |
227627

10,711 64
257862
29 98
0.10
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29 23
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31.03.2016 B 31.03.2015 &I

9901

T ST
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(®) HHART EAAH & Y ATILT
() S SR UIATEd & Y WTaE
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T ar@l |

1,002.08
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17197
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Note 9 Trade payables

ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016
3 lacs
Trade payables :
For material, services and expenses
- Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 256.85
- Others 18,962.23
Total 19,219.08
Note 10 Other current liabilities
ASAT
Particulars 31-03-2016
3 lacs
(a) Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note (i) below) 1,995.25
(b) Others
Advance from Customers/Clients 4,870.63
EMD & Security Deposits 3,184.20
Interest Accrued but not due 53.29
Fixed Deposit 0.10
Other Liabilities 7,077.88
Contributory Pension Scheme -
Total 17,181.35

AS AT
31.03.2015

T lacs

238.03
20,711.46
20,949.49

ASAT
31-03-2015
3 lacs
2,276.27

10,711.64
2,578.62
29.98
0.10
7,690.69
29.23
23,316.53

Note (I) : Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Notes (i) in Note 5 - Long-term borrowings for details

of security) :

AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016
3 lacs
Term loans
Rupee Term Loan from HDFC Bank 991.75
Foreign Currency Term Loan from State Bank of India 1,003.50
Total 1,995.25
Note 11 Short-term provisions
AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016
3 lacs
(a) Provision for employee benefits :
(i) Provision for bonus and incentive 244.09
(ii) Provision for gratuity 357.55
(iii) Provision for group EL Premium 171.97
773.61
(b) Provision - Others :
(i) Provision for proposed equity dividend 387.07
(i) Provision for tax on proposed dividends 78.80
465.87
Total 1,239.48
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AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

1,002.08
1,274.19
2,276.27

AS AT
31.03.2015

3 lacs

129.71
628.97
204.75

963.43

387.07
78.80
465.87
1,429.30
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Note 14. Other Non-Current Assets

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Fee for RoC for enhancing Authorised Share Capital to the extend
not written off 28.00 56.00
ECB Loan Upfront charges 17.37 27.80
MAT Credit Entitlement 261.69 544.35
Advance against Investments - 4,000.00
Total 307.06 4,628.15
Note 15 Inventories
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
a. Raw Materials (Valued at cost) 1,506.88 2,266.55
Raw Materials with others (Valued at cost) - =
1,506.88 2,266.55
b. Packing Materials (Valued at cost) 1,325.89 998.42
1,325.89 998.42
c. Work-in-progress (Valued at Actual Process Cost) 2,338.72 1,499,93
2,338.72 1,499,93
d. Finished goods (Valued at Lower of cost or NRV)
Manufactured Products 1,578.14 2,510.20
Social Marketing Products 95.88 36.79
Trading Products 1,518.50 1,338.45
Goods-in-transit 35.64 23.96
3,228.16 3,909.40
e. General Stores and Consumables (Valued at cost) 170.01 95.80
170.01 95.80
f.  Other materials, machinery, spare parts, building materials
etc. (Valued at cost) 1,064.85 1,232.30
1,064.85 1,232.30
g. Tools revalued & certified by management 9.52 5.11
9.52 5.11
h. Others
Scrapped/Surplus Assets (at lesser of cost or net realisable value) 57.90 28.89
Gift items (at cost) 47.98 105.21
Stationery (at cost) 58.06 65.68
163.94 199.78
9,807.97 10,207.29
Less:Provision for Obsolete Stock 67.37 89.32
Total 9,740.60 10,117.97
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Note 16 Trade receivables

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months
from the date they were due for payment
Secured, considered good* 1,837.63 965.62
Unsecured, considered good 29,258.16 40,959.08

31,095.79 41,924.70
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they were due for payment

Secured, considered good* 2,020.16 -
Unsecured, considered good 27,148.66 20,336.35
Considered doubtful 1,153.33 1,062.69
30,322.15 21,399.04

Less : Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1,153.33 1,062.69
29,168.82 20,336.35

Total 60,264.61 62,261.05

* secured against letter of credit, bank guarantee & customer deposit.

Note 17 Cash and cash equivalents

ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(A) Balances with banks

(i) (a) In Term Deposit accounts with less than 12 months maturity 418.40 257.12
(b) In Term Deposit accounts with more than 12 months maturity 284.03 228.83

(c) In Term Deposits held for margin money for borrowings and
guarantee 0.39 0.28
(ii) In Current Accounts 1,448.00 788.18
(iii) In EE Foreign Currency accounts 41.44 47.74
(B) Cash/stamps on hand 19.53 11.62
Total 2,211.79 1,333.77
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Note 18 Short-term loans and advances

ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
% lacs 3 lacs
(a) Security deposits & EMD 315.93 350.46
Secured, considered good - -
Sub Total 315.93 350.46
(b) Loans and advances to employees
Secured, considered good 17.64 17.65
Unsecured, considered good 429.59 372.57
Considered Doubtful 1.17 1.17
448.40 391.39
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 1.17 1.17
Sub Total 447.23 390.22
(c) Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, considered good 225.84 180.02
225.84 180.02
(d) Balances with government authorities
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Advance Income Tax (Net of Provisions) 817.78 814.82
(i) Sales Tax Advances 1.90 2.05
819.86 933.97
(e) Others (Advance to creditors, deposit to various agencies etc.)
Secured, considered good 101.24 148.94
Unsecured, considered good 4,832.85 5,375.34
Considered Doubtful 982.30 1,017.53
5,916.39 6,541,81
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 982.30 1,017.53
Sub Total 4,934.09 5,524.28
Total 6,742.78 7,261.85
Note : Short-term loans and advances include amounts due from :
ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
% lacs 3 lacs
Directors 0.40 0.40
Other officers of the Company 56.40 53.19
56.80 53.59
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Note 19 Other current assets

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

3 lacs 3 lacs

(a) Accruals
(i) Interest accrued on FDR 0.06 0.16
0.06 0.16

(b) Others

(i) Export Incentives/Duty Draw back 301.77 262.84
(i) Asset Under Insurance Claim - 245.31
(iii) Forward Contract Premium Receivable - 25.38
301.77 533.53
Total 301.83 533.69
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Note 20 Revenue from operations

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

3 lacs 3 lacs

(a) Sale of products 85,742.91 80.904.73
(b) Sale of services 8,264.34 6,158.21
(c) Income from Contract 8,197.62 15,096.00
(d) Other operating revenues 5,003.59 4,279.76
1,07,208.46  1,06,438.70

Less :

(e) Excise duty 917.27 633.74

Total 1,06,291.19  1,05,804.96

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs

(i) Sale of products comprises

Sale of Contraceptive Products 41,643.22 43,316.43
Sale of Healthcare Products 22,555,38 21,729.77
Sale of Social Marketing Products 1,468.27 1,034.75
Sale of Trading Products and Others 19,761.13 14,522.82
Product subsidy on saheli 314.91 300.96
Sub Total 85,742.91 80,904.73
Sale of services 8,264.34 6.158.21
Income from Contract 8,197.62 15,096.00
Other operating revenues 5,003.59 4,279.76
Grand Total 1,07,208.46 1,06,438.70

Other operating revenues comprise :

Cost of free sample supplied 2,739.34 2,692.21
Incentive on Social Marketing 423.35 122.54
Promotional Subsidy on Saheli and Novex sales 466.76 522.54
Duty Rebate/Duty drawback/Other export incentives 853.15 389.89
Sale of scrap, waste condoms and other misc. items 477.42 490.67
Sale of tender form 43.57 61.93
Total 5,003.59 4,279.78
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Note 21 Other income

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs % lacs
(a) Interest income (Refer Note (i) below) 156.30 103.64
(b) Other non-operating income (Refer Note (ii) below) 720.59 294.73
Total 876.89 398.37

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs % lacs
0] Interest income comprises :

Interest from banks on :

a) On short term deposit 29.80 5.63
b) On Others 126.50 98.01
Total - Interest income 156.30 103.64

(ii) Other non-operating income comprises :

Rental income from Staff quarters 3.56 3.58
Profit on sale of fixed assets 4.71 4.52
Insurance claims 78.22 1.73
Excess provision/credits written back 73.91 44.58
Lease rent 114.38 47.09
Other Misc. Income 445.81 193.23

Total - Other non-operating income 720.59 294.73
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Note 22 Cost of materials consumed

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

3 lacs % lacs
Opening stock 3,264.97 3,106.72
Add : Purchases 22,747.82 20,744.05
26,012.79 23,850.77
Less : Closing stock 2,832.77 3,264.97
Cost of material consumed 23,180.02 20,585.80

Materials consumed comprises :
Raw Materials 12,336.82 10,985.44
Chemicals 2,742.44 3,015.11
Packing Materials 6,880.77 5,862.72
Cost of Quality and Sub contract expense 1,220.00 722.53
Total 23,180.03 20,585.80

Note 23 Purchases of Stock-in-trade

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Trading Products 24,346.02 18,968.34
Social Marketing Branded Products 1,394.73 2,012.93
Total 25.740.75 20,981.27

Note 24 Changes in inventories of finished goods, and work-in-progress

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
% lacs T lacs

Inventories at the end of the year :

Finished goods 3,228.16 3,909.40
Work-in-progress 2,338.72 1,499.93
5.566.88 5,409.33

Inventories at the beginning of the year :
Finished goods 3,909.40 5,771.96
Work-in-progress 1,499.93 1,545.38
5,409.33 7,317.34
Net (Increase) / decrease (157.55) 1,908.01
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Note 25 Employee benefits expense

Particulars

(a) Salaries and incentives
(b) Contribution to -
Provident fund
New pension scheme
Gratuity fund contributions
Earned Leave Fund
Contribution to ESI

(c) Staff welfare expenses

Note 26 Finance costs

Particulars

(a) Interest expense on :
(i) Cash Credit
(ii) Term Loan

(b) Other borrowing costs

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Year Ended
31.03.2016
% lacs

11,667.56

1,136.31
175.29
371.04
171.97

38.61

1,373.44

Total 14,934.22

Year Ended
31.03.2016
% lacs

2,507.90
219.80
144.69

Total 2,872.39
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Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

11,140.12

1,080.50
173.07
653.64
209.75

47.38

1,372.68

14,677.14

Year Ended
31.03.2015
3 lacs

2,290.85
223.74
79.75
2,594.34
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Note 27 Other expenses

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

3 lacs 3 lacs

Advertisement & Publicity and Sales Promotion Expenses 4,239.59 4,891.60
Power & fuel charges 2,995.31 3,902.48
Freight & Other Selling Expenses 3,031.70 3,299.56
Travelling & Conveyance 1,704.61 1,723.35
Other Production expenses 2,601.30 1,870.69
Wages to Contract Labourers 1,791.75 1,654.40
Consultancy & Service Charges 2,899.56 2,395.24
Free sample distribution 2,798.83 2,749.21
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,476.49 1,006.15
Provision for bad & doubtful debts/Advances 117.78 813.41
Repairs & Maintenance Machinery 560.99 492.44
Postage & Telegram, Telephone 351.46 357.60
Research & Development Expenses - 35.07
Corporate R & D Centre Expenses 696.70 656.79
Rent 313.86 297.44
Printing & Stationery 229.34 220.46
Repairs & maintenance of other assets 212.99 164.90
Water charges 214.67 174.13
Insurance charges 190.68 210.85
Bank charges 86.58 85.20
Exchange Fluctuation (52.46) 305,57
Staff recruitment expenses 96.55 64.91
Rates & Taxes 68.15 139.93
Provision for obsolete stores written off 11.97 12.01
Book value of obsolete assets/stores written off 70.25 85.60
Training program expenses 82,87 108.62
Repairs & Maintenance of buildings 138.50 200.43
Bad debt & advances written off 3.60 28.06
Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 20.34 18.50
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 1.48 4.40
Loss on sale of scrapped assets 20.97 14.23
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 76.18 132.05
Royalty paid 2.30 4.75
Donation 0.84 0.25
Grant to HMA 25.00 -
Prior period items (net) (Refer Note (ii) below) 22.93 (20.84)
Total 27,103.66 28,100.04
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il HLL Lifecare Limited
e # 7 |nnovaiing for Healhy Generations I

Note 27 Other expenses (Contd.)
Year Ended Year Ended

remie s 31.03.2016  31.03.2015
3 lacs T lacs
(i) Payments to the auditors comprises
Audit fees 14.97 13.50
Tax Audit fees 2.37 2.00
Audit expenses 3.00 3.00
Total 20.34 18.50
(if) Details of Prior period items (net)
Prior period income
Other Income 14.30 43.21
Total 14.30 43.21
Prior period expenses
Administrative Expenses 37.23 22.37
Total 37.23 22.37
Prior period items (net) 22.93 (20.84)
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 28 : Additional Information to the Financial Statement
A. Value of Imports (CIF)

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Zin lacs gin lacs

Raw Materials 2,265.77 2,658.67
Components and Spares 64.59 171.71
Capital Goods 648.79 1,265.60
Finished Products 12,093.09 8,793.87
Total 15,072.24 12,889.85

B. Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

3 in lacs 3 in lacs

Travelling 80.94 76.01
Service Charges 45.80 25.57
Sales Promotion Expenses 339.26 672.14
Freight and Clearing expenses 168.10 676.45
Interest and other charges 198.04 212.99
Total 832.14 1,663.16

C. Earning in Foreign Exchange

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

3 in lacs 3 in lacs

Export Sales / Samples (FOB Value) 12,260.67 13,552.31
Freight & Insurance 567.13 1,105.71
Total 12,827.80 14,658.02

D. Remuneration to Directors

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

3 in lacs 3 in lacs

Salary 110.33 104.62
P.F. Contribution 9.21 9.88
Contributory Pension Contribution 1.80 1.71
Perquisites 10.25 48.33
Total 131.59 164.54

The Gratuity & Earned leave Liabilities are funded through Group Scheme of LIC of India. As such the
premium is not ascertainable on individual basis and hence not included.

For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
Chairman & Director (Marketing) CS & SVP (HR) SVP (F) & CFO Partner
Managing Director [DIN: 00342401] [FCS: 5875] [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773
[DIN: 00117374]
New Delhi
26.05.2016
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Notes forming part of the financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

SI.No.

11

1.2

1L

Particulars

Corporate information

HLL Lifecare Limited, incorporated in the year 1966, is a Mini Ratna Enterprise, fully owned by
Government of India, domiciled in India and governed by the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. HLL Lifecare Ltd was converted into a Public Limited Company with effect from 21st
February 2012. The company is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of a range of
Contraceptive products, Hospital products, Women Health Pharma products, providing
Consultancy &Contract services for healthcare infrastructure , Procurement and Diagnostic
services. The company caters to both domestic and international markets.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 besides the pronouncements/guidelines of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and
under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
financial statements are consistent with those of previous years, unless specified separately.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, requires the Management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent
liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Future results could differ due to changes in these estimates and the difference between the
actual results and the estimates are recognized in the periods in which the results are known /
materialized.

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all
incidental expenditure net of CENVAT credit wherever applicable. Revenue expenses incurred
for identification of new projects/ new line of businesses are treated as capital work in progress.
This will be absorbed into the project cost in the first year of commencing the business. If the
new project/ new line of business do not materialize within a period of three financial years, the
entire expenses shall be charged to Revenue in the 3 year.

The cost of fixed assets includes interest on borrowings (calculated at the weighted average
rates) and administrative expenses specifically attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets.

Expenditure during construction period is included under capital work-in-progress and the same
is allocated to the respective fixed assets on the completion of construction.

In respect of Pharmaceutical manufacturing facility, expenditure incurred are included under
Capital Work in Progress till the validation process is completed.

Intangible Asset

Cost of computer software and License fee incurred from 1.4.2003 are classified as intangible
assets.

Trade Mark Expenses

Expenses incurred on trade mark registrations will be treated as Capital work in progress and
will be capitalized under ‘intangible assets’ when licenses are received. Subsequent expenditure
incurred on licences which is already capitalized will be recognized as revenue expenses in the
period in which such expenses are incurred.
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Method of depreciation/Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets has been made in line with the requirement under Schedule II
of the Companies Act 2013. Further, Depreciation has been charged on straight line method for
all assets under Plant & Machinery and written down value method for other assets (except
intangible asset and lease hold assets) so as to write off the cost of the assets after retaining
residual value of 5% of the cost, over the useful lives of the assets prescribed in the Act, except for
those assets whose useful lives are determined based on any technical advice.

Components of main assets were identified and determined separately, if they have a useful life
that is materially different from that of the principal asset. 10% of original cost of the principal
asset has been considered as threshold limit to determine whether component is material or
not.

With respect to Leasehold Assets, depreciation/amortization has been charged on straight line
method over the primary period of lease or over the specified period, whichever is shorter.
Depreciation/amortization in respect of leasehold improvements is provided on the straight line
method over the primary period of the lease.

The cost of computer software other than ERP Software Solution is amortized equally over a
period of 3 years , whereas ERP software solution is amortized over a period of 8 years on pro-
rata basis. License fee paid is amortized equally over the agreement period.

Additions to Fixed Assets from 01.04.1993, costing I5000/- each or less are fully depreciated,
during the year of purchase irrespective of the date of addition, retaining the residual value of
assets.

Machinery spares acquired with the equipment are depreciated using the same rates and method
applicable for the original machinery. In the case of Machinery spares procured separately for
future use, rate equivalent to accumulated depreciation for the expired life of the relative machinery
are charged in the year of acquisition along with depreciation for the year.

Trade Mark expenses are amortized over a period of 5 years from the date of recognition of
intangible asset.

Leases
Fixed Assets acquired and given on lease are shown as part of fixed assets.

In regard to operationg leases, rental are expensed with reference to terms of the lease
agreement. Lease rental income is accounted on accrual basis.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of assets is recognized when there is an indication of Impairment. On such indication
the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and if such estimation is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary, if any.
Inventories

The weighted average formula is used for the valuation of raw materials, stores and spares.
Work-in-progress, materials in transit/under inspection is carried at actual process cost. Unused
Loose Tools are revalued every year taking into account the useful life of the tools and carried at
the revalued cost. Finished goods manufactured/goods purchased for trading are valued at
lower of cost/net realizable value, including excise duty, wherever applicable. Manufactured /
traded finished goods in stock whose shelf life expires within three months from the Balance
Sheet date are taken at NIL value.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on audited financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Sales comprise of value of sale of goods (net of returns) excluding sales tax and discounts but
including excise duty. Insurance claims are accounted on receipt basis. Interest on investments
is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the fixed rate
of interest. Revenue from services business is recognized on accrual basis.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized pro rata over the period of the contract.
Revenue from Infrastructure - development division and Procurement Consultancy division related
activities are recognized as follows:

a) In case of turnkey contracts ,on the basis of progress billing to the contract value under survey
method.

b) In the case of other contracts, on the basis of completion of obligation as per the terms of
contract with the agencies concerned.

Other Operating Revenues

The revenue against realization of waste latex, empty drums, rejected products and other scrap
items are accounted on cash basis.

Duty drawback/export incentive in respect of export sales are accounted in the year of export. The
realization in respect of obsolete assets/materials written off is accounted on cash basis.

Other Income

Interest income if any for delayed realization from sundry debtors as stipulated in invoices is not
recognized, unless realized. Income other than the above are accounted on accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign exchange are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transactions. Foreign currency receivables/payables are translated at the exchange rates as
on the Balance Sheet date. Gain or losses arising out of such transactions are adjusted to the
statement of Profit and Loss.

Premium or discount on foreign exchange forward contracts booked for hedging existing assets/
liabilities are amortised and recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the
contract. Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding as at the year end on account of firm
commitment transactions are marked to market and the losses, if any are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss and gains are ignored in accordance with the announcement of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting of Derivatives issued in March 2008.

Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences on translation or settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items
(i.e., whose term of settlement exceeds twelve months from the date of its origination) at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded or reported in the previous financial
statements, in so far as it relates to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to the cost of
the assets as per GOI notification dated 31.03.2009 and 29.12.2011 and this will be amortized
over the remaining life of the Asset.

Government grants
Grants in the form of investment subsidy are credited to separate reserve.

Revenue grants/subsidy (other than product subsidy) relating to sales are disclosed separately
under other operating revenues, whereas product subsidy is disclosed under sales and services.
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Employee benefits

a) Gratuity and Leave Encashment The Gratuity liability and Leave Encashment liabilities are
determined under separate group schemes maintained with LIC of India. The liabilities towards
these schemes are estimated yearly, based on actuarial valuation.

b) Voluntary Retirement Benefits

The entire liability on account of payments under VRS, if any is charged off to the Profit and Loss
Account in the same year.

c) Post Employment Medical Benefits

The Employees (including their spouse) on the rolls of the Company from 01.07.2005 are
covered under Group Medical Insurance Scheme maintained with Insurance Company.

d) Bonus/ Performance Related Payment

Provision for bonus for the employees is made on the basis of Productivity Linked Incentive
Scheme as per the Long Term Agreement entered into with the recognized trade unions. Executives
at the Board level and below the Board level are covered for Performance Related Pay (PRP) as
per the guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprise.

e) Pension Scheme

Company has introduced a contributory pension scheme from 1-4-2011 for the permanent
employees who are on the rolls of the company as on 9-10-2012. Company contributes 3% of
basic plus DA with a matching contribution from employees. The pension scheme is managed
by LIC of India.

f) Encashment of Half Pay Leave on Superannuation

Company has introduced (w.e.f 15.05.2014) the facility of encashment of Half Pay leave to the
permanent employees at the time of superannuation, subject to an overall ceiling of 300 days
along with Earned Leave. The liability towards the same has been estimated and provided for in
the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

The borrowing cost incurred / attributable to the acquisition for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset is capitalized. Interest on loan taken specifically for the acquiring assets and the interest
thereon are proportionately allocated to respective assets based on asset value.

Segment reporting

The Company has identified its reportable segments for Segment Reporting, in accordance with
Accounting Standard 17, as Contraceptive Products, Healthcare Products, Trading Products,
Services and Contracts which are the primary groups. In addition, the following specific accounting
policies have been followed for Segment Reporting.

(a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the
segment, including inter segment revenue.

(b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment results. Expenses which relate to the company as a whole and not
allocable to segments are included under “Unallocable expenditure”.

(c) Income which relatesto the company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
“Unallocable Income”.

(d) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable Corporate assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the
company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.
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Taxes on income

Provision for current Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting
period in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred Tax resulting from timing difference between book and taxable profit for the year is accounted
for using the Tax rates and laws that are applicable as on the Balance sheet Date .The deferred Tax
assetis recognized and carried forward only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization
in future.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act 1961, which
gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered
as asset in the balance sheet.

Research and development expenses

Capital expenditure on Research and Development is treated in the same manner as Fixed Assets.
The revenue expenditure on Research and development is charged off in the year in which it is
incurred.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their
present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed
in financial statement.

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses of items of ¥10000/- each and below are charged off to the revenue.
Prior Period Expenses/Income

Income and expenditure relating to prior period exceeding I 25000/- in each case only is accounted
under prior period.

General Stores/Spares/ Raw Materials/ Finished Products

The provision for loss if any in respect of slow moving items of materials/finished products are
accounted after obtaining the technical opinion regarding the usability/marketability.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
the nature of products and time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents, 12 months has been considered by the Company for the purpose
of current or non-current classification of assets and Liabilities.

EXPLANATORY/CLARIFICATORY NOTES

Authorized Share capital of the Company was increased from 320 Cr to 300 Cr during the year

2012-13. The expenditure amounting 3140 Lacs incurred towards the same is amortized over a
period of five years.

HLL Biotech Limited 100% subsidiary of HLL Lifecared Limited, has alloted ¥ 968,80 lakh shares of
% 10/- during the period against the capital infusion of ¥ 96.88 Cr.

Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development [MSMED] Act, 2006
are as under :
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(% in lacs)

Sl 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
No.
(@  The principal amount remaining unpaid atthe end

of the year. 256.85 238.03
(b)  The delayed payments of principal amount paid

beyond the appointed date during the year. Nil Nil
c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the

MSMED Act . Nil Nil
(d)  Normal interest due and payable during the year,

for all the delayed payments, as per the agreed terms. Nil Nil
(e)  Total interest accrued during the year and remaining

unpaid . Nil Nil

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

The extent of ownership in Subsidiary/Joint Venture Companies are as follows :

Name of the Company Country of Relationship Ownership
Incorporation Interest as on
31.03.2016

HLL Biotech Limited (HBL) India Subsidiary 100%
Goa Antibiotics and
Pharmaceuticals Limited (GAPL) India Subsidiary 74%
HLL Infra Tech Services Limited
(HITES) India Subsidiary 100%
LifeSpring Hospitals Pvt. Ltd India Joint Venture 50%

Matured fixed deposit of ¥10000/- has not been paid due to dispute in claim from the legal heirs
of the deceased deposit holder. Interest does not accrue beyond maturity date and hence not
provided for.

The Company had received from M/s. Female Health Company (UK) equipment’s valuing ¥ 89.27
Lakhs on loan basis for the manufacture of female condom FC2 Nitrile version at its unit located
in Cochin Export Processing Zone. No accounting entries have been passed as the property &
title of the equipment supplied vests with M/s. Female Health Company, U.K.  Further, rental
charges on the said assets are recognized on actual utilization basis.

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year is 380.23 lakhs (Previous Year is 3154.64 lacs)

During the year to fall in line with the requirement as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013
for charging of depreciation, the Company has identified and determined separate useful life for
each major component of the fixed asset, if they have a useful life that is materially different from
that of principal asset based on technical advice, The Company has considered 10% of original
cost to the principal asset as threshold limited to determine the component is material or not

The additional depreciation charged in the statement of Profit and Loss for the year on account of
the above is ¥ 13.31 lacks.

The Company has spent 376.18 lakhs on CSR for the year 2015-16.

In cash Yet to be Total
(Rlacs)  paid in cash  (Zlacs)
(Jacs)
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 2.95 - 2.95
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 69.04 4.19 73.23
Total 71.99 4.19 76.18
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2.10 Basic and Diluted Earnings per share *

2.11

2.12

2.13
2.14

2.15

31.03.2016 31-03-2015
Numerator Net Profit ¥ In Lacs
Profit after Tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 2,888.27 3,155.14
Denominator- Average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year 25,53,08,333 19,35,35,000
No. of Shares - Basic & Diluted 29,04,15,000 19,35,35,000
Earnings per share (%)
Basic (Face Value of ¥ 10/- per share) 1.13 1.63
Diluted (Face Value of ¥ 10/- per share) 1.13 1.63

Disclosure in respect of Related Party transactions and Segment Reporting are presented in
Annexure | & Il respectively.

Insurance premium includes installment of medical insurance premium paid for post-retirement
medical benefits
During the year there was no payment towards voluntary retirement scheme.

The cash and bank balances held by the Company under trust and the corresponding liabilities
are disclosed as contra items in the Balance Sheet in accordance with the opinion of the Expert
Advisory Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Assets &Liabilities of
the Procurement Projects, & Infrastructure Development Projects are disclosed in Annexure Il

Employee Benefits

a) Gratuity

The Fund disclosures/assumptions
Discount rate

Salary Escalation

Fund value (X Lacs)

Valuation Method

Withdrawal rate

Valuation (% Lacs)

Provision made in the books (R Lacs)
Interest earned actual (3 Lacs)
Upper limit for Gratuity

Sum insured per employee under
Group Gratuity Policy (% Lacs)

b) Leave Encashment

The Fund disclosure/assumptions
Discount rate

Salary escalation

Fund value (X Lacs)

Valuation method

Withdrawal rate

Valuation (3 Lacs)

Provision made in books (Z Lacs)
Interest earned actual (3 Lacs)
Upper limit for earned leave

31.03.2016
8%

5%
4,701.23
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
5,043.76
357.55
355.17
10

10

31.03.2016
8%

5%
1,457.84
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
1,629.07
171.96
110.33
300 days
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31.03.2015
8%

5%
4,043.17
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
4,654.73
626.32
319.76
10

10

31.03.2015
8%

5%
1,265.87
Projected unit
Credit method
1% to 3%
Depending on age
1,474.92
209.75
99.31
300 days
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Pending forward contracts as on 31.03.2016 for hedging Foreign Currency receivables/payables
amounts to EURO 9.67 lacs and USD 92.11 lacs. (Previous year : EURO 13.80 lacs and USD
27.45 lacs)

M/s Life Spring Hospitals Private Limited was formed in February 2008 as a Joint Venture entity with
50:50 equity shareholding between HLL Lifecare Ltd. [HLL] and M/s Acumen Fund Inc., USA [Acumen].
HLL had contributed ¥ 783.42 Lacs towards the equity Share Capital of the Joint Venture Company, as
per the terms of Shareholders agreement entered into with Acumen. This JV was formed with the
objective of providing High Quality, Affordable Maternal Health Care for Low-Income Women across
India. It operates small-sized (20 bed) maternity hospitals in the proximity of urban slums. The hospitals
also provide paediatric care (including immunisations), diagnostic and pharmacy services, and health
care education to the communities in which its hospitals are located.

Presently, the JV is running a cluster of 12 hospitals in Hyderabad and one Hospital at Vishakhapatanam
in Andhra Pradesh. The JV's performance at the enterprise level also has been steadily improving.

During April 2013, HLL and Acumen had provided further financial assistance of ¥ 125.00 Lacs each
to LifeSpring, in the form of Unsecured Compulsorily Convertible Debentures carrying interest of
12.5% compounded per annum and convertible to equity shares latest by seven (7) years. The net
worth of the JV Company will improve further on conversion of these debentures.Lifespring business
model has been well appreciated both in national and international forums and earned prestigious
awards. Lifespring has earned a good brand value over the years and the Joint Venture fetches good
valuation.

HLL has decided to sell its entire holding in the JV to a prospective buyeer and has received an offer
for purchase of investments for a consideration exceeding the carrying cost. Therefore the investment
has been classified as current investment during the year, HLL has accepted the offer and the same
is pending for completion of legal due diligence by the prospective buyer.

Considering all the above, the diminution if any, in the carrying value of the investment in the JV
company is purely of temporary nature only and hence management is of the view that no provisioning
towards diminution in value of investment is required as on 31.03.2016.

The Company is in possession of 430.10 acres of land since January 2008, allotted on lease for a
period of 99 years from the Central Leprosy Teaching Research Institute (CLTRI), Tamil Nadu, under
directives from Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Govt. of India. The Public Investment Board
(PIB), Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India in its meeting held on 10.02.2012 had recommended to
earmark 100 acres of land out of the 430.10 acres in possession with the Company at Chengalpattu
for setting up of the Integrated Vaccine Complex (IVC), for a value of 310.12 crores (56 acres @316.50
lacs per acre and 44 acres of hillock @ < 2 lacs per acre).

The recommendations of the PIB are approved by the Cabinet Committee of Economic Affairs (CCEA).
The Company in March 2012 has formed a fully owned subsidiary company, M/s HLL Biotech Limited
(HBL), for setting up the IVC, in line with the PIB recommendations. As the legal formalities of
transfer of 100 acres of land in the name of HLL and in turn to HBL are yet to be completed, the
Company has, on 20thFebruary 2014, sub-leased the 100 acres identified for the purpose, in favour
of HBL @ 1/- for 94 years.

Out of 430.10 acres in possession, 3.38 Acres of land, is to be given on lease to Tamil Nadu Generation
and Distribution Corporation Ltd. [TANGEDCO)] (Subsidiary of TNEB Ltd.) for a period of 92 years, on
an annual lease rent of 1/- only. However, the sub-lease deed between HBL and TANGEDCO is yet to
be executed

Govt. of India has accorded “captive status" to HLL vide Order dated 26.08.2005 for the supply of
condoms and other Contraceptive products to the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare. The Company
has been supplying Contraceptive products (Condoms, Oral Contraceptive Pills, EC Pills, Copper-T
and Tubal Rings) and also Pregnancy Test Kits and Sanitary Napkins to the Ministry. As per the
Cabinet orderand its subseqgent amendments, the Ministry shall place the supply orders on HLL in the
beginning of the year at the provisional rates based on the L1 rates of the previous year. Subsequently
the L1 price determined through the open tender shall be made applicable to hll as the final rate for its
supplies during the same financial year. In the absece of L1 rate determination through the tender
process, reference shall be made either to Tariff Commission (TC) of the Ministry of Commerce &
Industry or Cost & Accounts Branch (CAB) of the Ministry of Finance for determining the fair price for
the supplies from HLL.
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Ministry could not either finalise the tender or notify the final rate concluded in the tender/fair rates determined
through cost study by TC/CAB, to be made applicable for HLL supplies for different years in the past during
the same financial year, as per the Cabinet Order. Hence, Condom supplies for the current year and past 3
years (2012-13 to 2014-15) and Emergency Contraceptive Pills for the current year and past seven years
(2008-09 to 2014-15) were billed at provisional rates. Ministry had floated open tender for procurement of
condoms during 2015-16 and concluded the same in March 2016. However, the rates finalised if any, are
yet to be notified. The Oral Contraceptive Pills, Copper T and Tubal Ring supplied during the year2015-16
were provisionally billed at L1 rate of 2014-15. PTK supplies were billed at the L1 rate of 2014-15 tender,
concluded during 2015-16.

Ministry has recently sought recovery from HLL towards rate difference, amounting Rs.19.56 crore towards
condoms for the years 2012-13 & 2013-14, Rs.5.22 crore towards Emergency Contraceptive Pills for the
years 2008-09 to 2011-12 and Rs.5.87 crore towards Pregnancy Test Kit for the year 2014-15. Since the
conditions of cabinet order to finalize the rates in the respective financial year had not been compiled by the
MOHFW and the accounts of the company pertaining to these years have been finalized and closed, the
company has raised objcetions against the recovery and in view of the above no provision has been
considered in the books of accounts. However this has been disclosed in contingent liability under the head
claims against the company not acknowledged as debt.

The Ministry has also referred to Tariff Commission for determining prices to be paid for Sanitary Napkin
supplies made during 2011-12 & 2012-13. Tariff commission has submitted their report in Jun 2014 indicating
higher price for HLL supplies. However Ministry is yet to decide on the implementation of the Report and the
final price payable to HLL. Hence the pricing benefit on the same is not recognised In the books of accounts.

2.20 During the year, the company has received insurance claim of ¥ 3.19 Cr against the assets
damaged at Kakkanad factory due to fire . The net income of ¥ 0.74 Cr is recognised in P&L
Account under the head other income.

2.21 Details of Contract Revenue and costs

X lacs)
31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Contract revenue recognised during the year 8,197.62 13,288.24
Aggregate of amount of costs incurred

upto reporting date 49,960.12 41,565.39
Recognized profits up to reporting date 17,544.86 15,547.37
Advances received for contracts in progress 13,188.88 57.07
Retention money for contracts in progress - -
Gross amount due from customers for

contractwork (asset) 16,745.34 19,376.38

2.22 The Public Investment Board (PIB), Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India in its meeting held on
10.02.2012 had given its recommendations for setting up of the Integrated Vaccine Complex (IVC),
with an investment of ¥594 crores, wherein the Equity portion shall be 285 crores from Govt. of
India. The recommendations of the PIB were approved by the Cabinet Committee of Economic
Affairs (CCEA) and accordingly HLL had formed a fully owned Subsidiary Company, HLL Biotech
Limited (HBL), in line with the PIB recommendation. Govt. of India has been infusing funds into
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HLL for the investment in Integrated Vaccine Complex and HLL in turn has been investing the same
funds into the Equity capital of HLL Biotech Limited.

Till date Gol has released I 274.88 Crs to HLL and equity shares were issued to Gol towards the
same. In line with the decision of Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs 100 acres of land is ear-
marked out of the 430.10 acres in possession, for HBL valued @ 310.12 crore. Upon transfer of land
by Gol, HLL will issue equivalent equity shares to GOI towards its consideration.

Capital Work in Progress includes investments made in UniPill plant,a WHOcGMP(Geneva) compli-
ant facility being set up by the company at Kanagala, Belgaum. An amount of I64.02 crore is in-
vested till date in the project, as against the budgeted cost of T40 crore. The project was scheduled
to be commissioned in January 2012. The increase in project cost is largely due to higher product
development & validation costs and other expenses incurred till date. Capitalisation of the project is
pending as the product development complying the WHO standards were progressing. The Dossier
developed for the first product (unipill) from the plant is accepted by WHO in May 2016 and the facility
audit is now awaited. On completion of the audit, the project will become WHO cGMPcompliant,
which is a pre-requisite for most of the regulated markets outside India. Company expects to recover
the increased cost of the project, by introducing more products from this facility.

Pursuant to the Accounting Standard (AS-29)- Provisions,ContingentLiablities and Contingent As-
sets, the disclosure relating to provisions made in the accounts for the year ended 31st March 2016
is as follows:

(X lacs)
Provision Provision for **Provision for
against Trade Loans and
Inventories* Receivables** Advances**

Year 15-16 14-15 15-16 14-15 15-16 14-15
Opening Balance 89.32 95.96 1,062.69 987.92 1,018.70 441.96
Additions 20.23 23.15 152.78  210.05 - 620.94
Utilisations 12.30 3.65 62.14  130.61 0.23 44.20
Reversals 29.78 26.14 - 4.67 35.00 0
Closing Balance 67.37 89.32 1,153.33 1,062.69 983.47 1,018.70

* Provision created against obselete inventories.
** Provision created against receivables & loans and advances outstanding for more than 3 years.

Company has entered into a lease agreement with Thiruvananthathapuram Development Authority
(TRIDA) to lease out two floors of their building at Sopanam Complex, Medical College Junction,
Thiruvananthathapuram for a period of 20 years from December 2015. An interest free refundable
security deposit of 500 lakhs has also been paid during the year 2015-16, which is disclosed under
Long Term Loans and Advances.

Balance in Debtors, Creditors and loans and advances are subject to confirmation / reconciliation.
Receivable in Foreign Currency out of Export sales is subject to reconciliation and consequently
Foreign Currency Valuation gain or loss may vary.

Figures for the previous year have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary.
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ANNEXURE | - Referred to in Note No. 2.11
Disclosure in respect of related party pursuant to Accounting Standard 18

Description of relationship
Subsidiaries

Joint Venture
Associates

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Names of related parties

HLL Biotech Ltd.
GAPL
HITES

LifeSpring Hospitals Private Ltd.
Hindustan Latex Family Planning Promotion Trust
HLL Management Academy (HMA)

Dr. M. Ayyappan -
Mr. R.P. Khandelwal -
Dr. K.R.S. Krishnan -
Dr. Babu Thomas =
Mr. P. Sreekumar =
Mr. R. Ganesan =
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Chairman & Managing Director
Director (Finance)

Director (Technical & Operations)
Director (Marketing)

Company Secretary & SVP (HR)
SVP (F) & CFO
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ANNEXURE Il - Referred to in Note No. 2.11

Disclosures under Accounting Standards-17 SEGMENT REPORTING

1. Primary Segment Information

Segment Revenue

Net Sales & Services

Other Unallocable Revenue

Total

Capital Employed

Profit before Interest & Tax

Less: Interest

Less : Other Unallocable Expenditure

Prior period items

Add : Other Unallocable Income

Profit before tax

Capital Employed

Allocated Fixed Assets (a)

Allocated Current Assets (b)
(ath)

Allocated Current Liabilities

Capital Employed Allocation

Unallocable portion of Capital

Employed

Total Capital Employed

Contraceptives

42,058.43

7,009.94
1,845.65

5,266.61

17,289.44
42,672.69
59,962.13
18,502.72
41,459.41

Particulars
Health Care Trading
23,131.52  15,394.50
435.09 1,029.16
483.68 352.27
49.06 676.88
6,182.69 1,114.22
23,469.36  15,619.33
29,652.05 16,733.55
10,176.23 6,772.49
19,475.83 9,961.07

2.Secondary Segment Information - Geographical Revenue

India
Outside India

Captial Employed
India
Outside India

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. M. Ayyappan

Dr. Babu Thomas

Chairman & Director (Marketing)
Managing Director [DIN: 00342401]
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi

26.05.2016

P. Sreekumar

CS & SVP (HR)

[FCS: 5875]

Procurement
and
Consultancy
Services

17,899.48

1,866.61
108.60

1,758.00

1,990.88
18,160.90
20,151.79

7,874.50
12,277.29

Contract
Services

6,538.72

6,542.79

1,328.18
1.19

1,326.99

0.74
6,634.21
6,634.95
2,876.57
3,758.38

% lakhs

Total

1,05,022.64
2,145,44
1,07,168.08

11,669.07
2,872.39
5,095.49

17.43
119.28
3,803.04

26,577.97
1,06,556.51
1,33,134.48

46,202.50

86,931.98

(55,822.11)
31,109.87

96,335.68
10,832.40
1,07,168.08

30,485.71
624.16
31,109.87

Vide our report of even date attached

R. Ganesan
SVP (F) & CFO
[FCA: 26723]
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For M/s. Abraham & Jose

Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
CA. Mukesh. K.P

Partner

Membership No : 214773
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ABRAHAM & JOSE Mission Quarters Road, Thrissur-680001
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Tel : 0487-2423225, 2426225, Fax : 0487-2424245
Email : trc_aajca@sancharnet.in

www.abrahamandjose.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HLL LIFE CARE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of HLL LIFE CARE LIMITED (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”), its subsidiaries (The Holding company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as the “Group”) and jointly controlled entity, comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows of the Group including Jointly controlled entities in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and its jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities, the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. While
conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding
Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

In the case of Goa Antibiotics and Pharmaceuticals Ltd. (GAPL),a subsidiary, due to the absence of sufficient
appropriate audit evidence, it was unable to determine whether any adjustments might have been necessary
on the accounts in respect of the following cases:

a. Adequacy of provision maintained against outstanding receivables in the absence of an age wise analysis
report with customer wise analysis of outstanding;

b. Inadequate internal controls and accounting procedures followed by the company in respect of certain
units as stated in Note No. C.8 and inability to obtain proper records and documents from certain units not
visited by the statutory auditors of the subsidiary;

The management of GAPL has revised the financial statements of the company in order to rectify the discrepancies
pointed out by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India in their supplementary audit C& AG vide letter
dated 08™ July 2016 directed the holding company to revisit the consolidated financial statements to include the
impact of the revision of financial statements by GAPL on the consolidated financial statements. The overall
impact of the revision on various items of consolidated financial statements is considered not material by the
management and hence the effect of such revision has not been incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements. Had the revised financial statements of GAPL been incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements, the effect of various items of consolidated financial statements would have been as under :

SI.No. Particulars Impact (%) Increase/(Decrease
Rs.in Lacs)

1 Profit Before Tax (PBT) -2.32% (-) 97.69

2. Profit After Tax (PAT) -1.55% (-) 48.03

3. Reserves & Surplus -0.19% (-) 48.02

4. Minority Interest -2.72% ) 411

5, Deferred Tax Liabilities 0.60% 6.59

6. Current Liabilities 0.03% 28.64

7. Non-Current Liabilities 0.00% () 0.18

8. Current Assets 0.02% 17.08

In veiw of the observation of C& AG, our audit report dated 30th May 2016 has been revised.
QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs above, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group, and jointly controlled entity as at 31st March, 2016, and their consolidated profit and their
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
We draw attention to the following:

1) There is uncertainity on final prices applicable for supplies made by the Holding Company to
Government of India, during the year 2015-16, as the same is yet to be notified by the Government
and accordingly the effect of the same has not been considered in the financial statements, and
in respect of supplies for the previous years, though the Government has sought recovery of price
difference from the Holding Company to the extent of ¥30.65 crores, the Company has raised
objections and has not provided for the same in the financial statements.

2) There is delay in capitalization of the Uni-pill Plant being setup by the Holding Company at
Kanagala, Belgaum which was scheduled to be commissioned in January 2012. There is also a
“cost overrun of Rs. 24.02 crores, the recoverability of the same has been assessed by the
management of the Holding Company and not provided for.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
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OTHER MATTERS

(@) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of three subsidiaries and one jointly
controlled entity, whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets (net asset) of
¥ 28069.29 lacs as at 31st March, 2016, total revenues of .7684.78 lacs and net cash outflows amounting
to 3.8722.96 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements.
These financial statements / financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entity, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

(b) Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements / financial information certified by the
Management.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
1. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and, except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph above, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the
reports of the other auditors.

(c) Except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph relating to the
effect of revision of financial statements by one subsidiary not being considered in the consolidated financial
statements, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) The matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs above, in our opinion, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Group.

(f) In view of the exemption given vide notification No. G.S.R 463 (E) dated June 05, 2015, issued by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, provisions of Section 164 (2) of the Act, are not applicable to the Holding Company and
in case of other Companies, on the basis of report of the statutory auditors of the respective Companies of
the Group and jointly controlled entity incorporated in India, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(9) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs above.

(h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and
jointly controlled entity and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
'Annexure A" and

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Group and its jointly controlled entities have disclosed the impact of the pending litigations on its
financial position in the Consolidated Financial Statements -Refer Note No. C.7, and C.9 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements

ii. Except for the possible effect of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph
above, the Group, and jointly controlled entities did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled entity incorporated in

India.
For Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
(FRN: 000010S)
Place: Chennai Mukesh. K.P.
Date: 27.07.2016 Partner (M. No. 214773)
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 (h) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in the Independent
Auditors Report of even date to the members of HLL Lifecare Limited (“the Company") on the consolidated
financial statementsof HLL Lifecare Limited, its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act")

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31% March 2016, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HLL LIFECARE
LIMITED (‘'The Holding Company') its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled entity which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and jointly controlled
entity, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the esstential components of the internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparatin of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013. ("the Act")

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Control over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respecs.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectivenes. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in
terms of their reports preferred to the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide ab
basis for our audit opinion on internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company,
iits subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that :

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detailsm accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company ; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internaol financial controls over financial reporting
may become inadequate because of changes in conditons, or that the degree of compliance with policies or
procedure may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidary companies and jointly controlled entity which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31¢
March, 2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India, considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under section 143 (3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relate to three subsidiaries and one jointly
controlled entity, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the
auditors of such companies incprporated in India.

For Abraham and Jose
Chartered Accountants

(FRN 000010S)
Place : Chennai Mukesh. K.P
Date : 27.07.2016 Partner (M.No. 214773)
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Office of he Principal Director of Commercial
Audit & Ex-officio Member Audit Board-IV, New Delhi
File No. 444-PDCA/HS/MAB-IV/Consolidated/HLL Lifecare Ltd/AA/2016-17

Date: 05.08.2016

CONFIDENTIAL
To

The Chairman and Managing Director,
HLL Lifecare Ltd.

HLL Bhavan, Poojapura P.O.
Thiruvananthapuram-695012

Sub : Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under 143 (6) (b) of the Companies
Act, 2013 on the Consolidated Financial Statements of HLL Lifecared Limited for the year
ended 315 March 2016.

Sir,

| am to enclose herewith the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under 143 (6) (b)
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Consolidated Financial Statements of HLL Lifecared Limited for the year
ended 31°% March 2016.

The receipt of the letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully,

(Ritika Bhatia)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-Officio Member, Audit Board-IV

Encl : As above

8th & 9th Floor, Annexure Building, 10, Bahadur Shah Zafar Marg, New Delhi-110002
Tel : 23239413, 23239415, 23239419, 23239420, Fax : 23239416
Email : manNewdelhi4@cag.gov.in
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COMMENTS ON THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECION 143 (6) (b)
READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF HLL LIFECARE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2016.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2016 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutory auditor/auditors appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act is/are responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of the Act based on independent audit in accordance
with the standares on auditing prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by
them vide their revised Audit Report dated 27.07.2016.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of Inda, have conducted a supplementary audit under section
143 (6)(a) read with section 129 (4) of the Act of the consolidated financial statements of HLL Lifecare Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2016. We conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of HLL Infra Tech
Services Limited, HLL Biotech Limited and Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Limited for the year ended on that
date. Further, section 139 (5) and 143 (6) (b) of the Act are not applicable to LifeSpring Hospitals (P) Limited being
private entity for appointment of their Statutory Auditor nor for conduct of supplementary audit. Accordingly, C & AG
has neither appointed the Statutory Auditors nor conduted the supplementary audit of this company. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory
auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and the company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowlege which would give rise to any comment upon
or supplement to statutory auditors' report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Ritika Bhatia)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit &
Ex-officio Member Audit Board-IV

Place : New Delhi
Date :05.08.2016
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2016

Particulars

A. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Shareholders' funds

(@) Share Capital

(b) Reserves and Surplus

2. Share application money pending allotment
Minority Interest
4. Non-current liabilities

(@) Long-term borrowings

(b) Deferred tax liabilites (net)

(c) Long-term provisions

w

5. Current liabilities
(@) Short-term borrowings
(b) Trade payables
(c) Other current liabilities
(d) Short-term provisions

6. Advances Received for Projects held under Trust
as per contra

TOTAL
B. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Fixed assets

i) Tangible assets
i) Intangible assets
iii) Capital work-in-progress
iv) Intangible asset under development
v) Goodwill on consolidation

(b) Non-currentinvestments
(c) Long Term Loans and Advances
(d) Other Non-Current assets
2. Current assets
(@) Inventories
(b) Trade receivables
(c) Cash and cash equivalents
(d) Short-term loans and advances
(e) Other current assets

3. Cash and Bank balances of Projects held under
Trust as per contra
TOTAL
Significant Accounting Policies
Explanatory Notes to Financial Statement

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar
Chairman & Director (Marketing) CS & SVP (HR)
Managing Director [DIN: 00342401] [FCS: 5875]
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi

26.05.2016
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Note No ASAT ASAT
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
% lacs % lacs
3 29,041.50 19,353.50
4 25,289.35 22,656.13
54,330.85 42,009.63
- 4,000.00
151.07 87.12
5 4,726.49 5,997.11
6 1,092.33 1,225.22
7 159.19 131.67
5,978.01 7,354.00
8 44.417.78 37,669.84
9 23,848.73 23,420.14
10 18,213.09 21,198.83
1 1,782.58 1,809.98
88,262.18 84,098.79
100,606.27 74,223.93
249,328.38 211,773,47
12
24,245.94 23,380.35
735.96 886.99
34,319.03 14,880.06
969.06 709.13
481.55 541.74
60,751.54 40,398.27
13 2.25 2.25
14 1,093.36 127,05
15 386.85 711.93
16 10,091.93 10,328.49
17 61,887.02 64,071.85
18 5,169.86 13,009.81
19 8,862.68 8,316.62
20 476.63 583.27
86,488.12 96,310.04
100,606.27 74,223.93
249,328.38 211,773.47
1
2

Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose

Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
SVP (F) & CFO Partner
[FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2016

: Note No
Particulars

1. Revenue from operations (gross) 21
Less: Excise duty

Revenue from operations (net)

2. Other income 22
Total revenue (1+2)
4. Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed
(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
(g) other expenses
(h) Contract Expenses
Total expenses
5. Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional and extra
ordinary items and tax (3-5)
6. Exceptional items
7. Profit/(Loss) before extra ordinary items
and tax (6-7)
8. Extra-ordinary item
9. Profit/(Loss) before tax (8-9)
10. Tax expenses :
(a) Current tax expenses for current year
(b) Current tax expenses relating to prior years
(c) MAT Credit Entitlement
(d) Deferred tax

@

23
24

25
26
27
12
28

(d)
(e)
()

11.
12.
13.

Profit/ (Loss) for the year

Minority Interest on Net Income

Profit/ (Loss) for the year after taxes & minority
interest

14. Earnings per share () - Basic C.1

(Face value of ¥ 10/- share)
- Diluted C.1

Significant Accounting Policies 1
Explanatory notes to Financial Statements 2

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. Babu Thomas
Director (Marketing)
[DIN: 00342401]

P. Sreekumar
CS & SVP (HR)
[FCS: 5875]

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman &
Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016
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Year ended Year ended

31-03-2016 31-03-2015
X lacs) X lacs)
113,825.19 111,363.76
1,089.54 810.69
112,735.65 110,553.07
816.33 455.49
113,551.98 111,008.56
24,613.21 22,178.93
26,887.33 21,484,71
(175.35) 1,857.15
16,740.84 15,913.83
2,940.78 2,583.88
3,840.45 3,185.74
28,445.20 29,057.49
6,039.51 11,351.99
109,331.96 107,613.72
4,220.01 3,394.84
17.54 (508.28)
4,202.48 3,903.12
4,202.48 3,903.12
1,334.55 980.11
(169.23) (157.67)
- (157.43)
(132.88) (75.79)
1,032.44 589.22
3,170.04 3,313.90
63.95 46.82
3,106.09 3,267.08
1.22 1.69
1.22 1.69

Vide our report of even date attached

R. Ganesan
SVP (F) & CFO
[FCA: 26723]

For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
CA. Mukesh. K.P
Partner
Membership No : 214773
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
X lacs) X lacs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before extraordinary items and tax and excluding minority
interest 4,138.53 3,856.30
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 3,840.45 3,185.74
Exceptional items for Depreciation - (508.28)
Loss on sale of fixed assets 1.48 14.66
Profit on sale of fixed assets (4.71) (4.52)
Finance costs 2,940.78 2,583.88
Interest Income (150.03) (92.78)
Operating profit/(Loss) before working capital changes 10,766.49 9,035.00
Changes in working capital :
Adjustments for (increase/(decrease) in operating assets :
Inventories 236.56 1,524.97
Trade receivables 2,184.83 (19,545.23)
Short-term loans and advances (162.04) 1,837.56
Long-term loans and advances (966.31) 2,063.09
Other current assets 106.64 (77.85)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities :
Trade payables 428.59 11,931.64
Other current liabilities (2,985.75) 2,945.30
Long-term provisions 27.52 19.60
Short-term provisions (168.53) 454.06
9,468.00 10,188.14
Cash flow from extra ordinary items - -
Cash generated from operations 9,468.00 10,188.14
Net Income tax (paid)/refunds (1,132.54) (632.84)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 8,335.47 9,555.30
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital Work in Progress (19,438.97) (5,819.99)
Investment in fixed assets (4,779.33) (7,729.01)
Sale of fixed assets 27.80 8.42
Interest received 150.03 92.78
Changes in other non-current assets 42.43 (44.84)
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more
than one year) (49.05) (41.90)
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) (24,047.09) (13,534.54)
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Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
X lacs) (X lacs)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (1,270.62) (2,790.26)
Payment to Minority Interest 63.95 46.82
Proceeds from other short-term borrowings 6,747.94 3,800.61
Investment from Govt. of India 5,688.00 4,000.00
Finance cost - Interest paid (2,940.78) (2,583.88)
Dividend paid (387.07) (387.07)
Tax on dividend (78.80) (78.80)
Net Cash flow from/(used in) financing activities (C) 7,822.62 2,097.42
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (7,889.00) (1,881.82)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,217.34 14,599.16
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,828.34 12,717.34
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balancesheet :
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer Not 14) 5,169.86 13,009.81
Less : Bank balances not considered as cash and cash
equivalents as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow Statements 341.52 292.47
Net cash and cash equivalents (as defined in AS 3 Cash Flow
Statements) included in Note 18 4,828.34 12,717.34
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year*
* Comprises
(@) Cashonhand S5 18.99
(b) Balances with bank
(i) InDepositaccounts 3,074.72 11,199.99
(i) Incurrent accounts 1,501.06 1,167.35
(i) In EEFC accounts 207.89 296.61
(i) In OD accounts 13.14 34.40
4,828.34 12,717.34

Notes :

1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in the AS - 3
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2 The previous year’s figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary in order to conform to this year’s

presentation.

3 Transactions of project funds held under Trust and balance of ¥100,606.27 lacs (previous year
374,223.93 lacs) are not included in the Cashflow.

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman &

For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P
Director (Marketing) CS & SVP (HR) SVP (F) & CFO Partner
[DIN: 00342401] [FCS: 5875] [FCA: 26723] Membership No : 214773

Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016
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Note 3 Share Capital (Consolidated)

Particulars

(a) Authorised Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 30,00,00,000 Nos.
(b) Issued Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 29,04,15,000 Nos.
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos.
(c) Subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 29,04,15,000 Nos.
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- each - 19,35,35,000 Nos.

Total
Reconciliation of Share Capital
Description AS AT 31.03.2016

No. of 3 lacs

shares
Equity Share Capital
Authorized
Opening Balance 30,00,000.00 30,000.00
Additions - -
Closing Balance 3000,00,000.00 30,000.00
Issued
Opening Balance 1935,35,000.00 19,353.50
Additions 968.80.000.00 9,688.00
Closing Balance 2904,15,000.00 29,041.50
Subscribed & Paid up
Opening Balance 1935,35,000.00 19,353.50
Additions 968,80,000.00 9,688.00
Closing Balance 2904,15,000.00 29,041.50

AS AT
31.03.2016

% lacs

30,000.00

29,041.50

29,041.50

29,041.50

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

30,000.00

19,353.50

19,353.50
19,353.50

AS AT 31.03.2015

No. of
shares

30,00,000.00

30,00,000.00

1935,35,000.00

1935,35,000.00

1935,35,000.00

1935,35,000.00

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of shareholder AS AT 31.03.2016

Number of

shares held Holding

% of

Govt. of India 2904,15,000 100%
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Note 4 Reserves and surplus (Consolidated)

Particulars

(a) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) reserve

Opening balance
Add : Additions/transfers during the year
Less : Transferred during the year to General Reserve
Closing balance
(b) Dividend Equalisation Reserve
(c) General Reserve
Opening balance
Add : Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Add : Transferred during the year from CSR
Less : Depreciation adjustment - Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013
Closing balance
(d) Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
Add : Profit/ (Loss) for the year
Less : Proposed Dividend
Dividend proposed to equity shareholders (30.1333 per share

of %10/- each, Previous year ¥ 0.20 per share of ¥ 10/- each)
Tax on dividend
Transferred to :
Reserves for CSR
General Reserve
Closing balance
Total

Note 5 Long-term borrowings (Consolidated)

Particulars

(@) Term Loans (Secured)
Foreign currency loan-Secured
Rupee Loan
(b) Term loan (Unsecured)
(c) Other loans and Advances
(i) Foreign currency Buyers Credit
(i)  Security Deposits
(i)  Interest on Security Deposits
Total
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ASAT
31.03.2016

3 lacs

1.73

173
129.74

22,526.39
2,631.49

25,157.88

3,106.09

387.07
85.80

173
2,631.49

25,289.35

AS AT
31.03.2016

3 lacs

752.62
2,274.17

271.57

1,409.70
16.39
2.04

4,726.49

ASAT
31.03.2015

% lacs

36.80

36.80

129.74

19,708.54
2,801.22
36.80
(20.17)
22,526.39

3,267.10

387.07
78.80

2,801.22

22,656.14

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

1,655.33
3,447.77
277.41

599.10
15.46
2.04

5,997.11
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(i) Details of security provided in respect of the secured long-term borrowings :

Particulars

Term loan from banks :

Foreign currency loan

From State Bank of India

Rupee Term Loan
From HDFC Bank

From State bank of India

From State Bank of India

Total - Term loan from banks

Less : Payable within next 12
months treated as Current
Liabilities

Payable after 12 months

Other loans and advances :
Buyers Credit

Less : Short Term Borrowings

Details of security*

(a) First charge over the fixed
assets of the company

excluding Land & Buildings (HLL)
(b) Equitable Mortgage over the

land at Noida (HLL)

(c) Equitable Mortgage as
collateral over the land with
building at Poojappura,
Trivandrum. (HLL)

First charge over movable assets

purchased out of the loan at

Peroorkada Factory-Balaramapuram
facility, Corporate R & D Centre at
Akkulam, Sanitary Napkin Manu-
factoring unit at Kanagala (HLL)

(d) Secured by an equitable mortgage
of leasehold rights of the land, building
and other structures on the land,
Hypothecation of plant & machinery,
laboratory equipments, electrical
Installations, furniture & fixtures,
vehicles and other movable assets,
(Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals

Limited

(e) Secured against Hypothecation of

Lease Hold Rights & Hospital

Equipmemts-Life Spring Hospitals

(P) Ltd

Secured by Project Deposits

AS AT
31.3.2016

1,756.13

2,924.53

381.58

107.30
5,169.54

2,142.75
3,026.79

14,149.94
12,740.24

1,409.70

AS AT
31.3.2015

2,929.51

3,901.26

564.08

167.02
7,561.87

2,458.77
5,103.10

10,441.18
9,842.08

599.10

Note : Foreign Currency Buyers Credit are for Capital item procurement, eligible for roll over upto three
years subject to availability, or else shall be converted into sanctioned Term Loan.
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Note 6 Disclosures under Accounting Standards - 22 Accounting for Taxes on Income (Consolidated)

ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
% lacs 3 lacs
Deferred tax (liability)/asset
Depreciation (1,842.91) (2,013.53)
Tax effect of item constituting deferred tax liability (1,842.91) (2,013.53)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
V.R.S. Payment = =
Provision for doubtful debts 739.50 707.47
Provision for Overtime arrear - 29.42
Provision for Bonus 20.78 14.28
Others (9.70) 37.14
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 750.58 788.31
Net deferred tax (liability)/asset (1,092.33) (1225.22)
Note 7 Long-term provisions (Consolidated)
ASAT ASAT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Provision for employee benefits :
(i) Provision for Performance related pay 121.78 131.67
(i) Provision for gratuity 5.21 -
(iii) Provision for group EL Premium 32.20 -
159.19 131.67
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1 A BT b FUI-H TYA ARSI
PRI 9 A (TITATS) T AT ST §RT ¥ TG 763535 2.500.00
ESGESECEAR - -
T 4 o ¥ 7,547 87 2492 52
15,083 22 4,992 52
T VT 3MR 3T TA
TRl & G - SUR (TATATS) U AT ST gRT A aqd 14,149 94 10,441 .18
g : DI AIh YR 1,409.70 59910
12,740 24 9,842 08
Pl 39,409 .99 37 669 .84
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Note 8 Short-term borrowings (Consolidated)

AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016
3 lacs
(a) Loans repayable on demand (Cash Credit)
From State Bank of India - Secured 8,299.04
From Canara Bank 3.26
From HDFC Bank 3,284.23
Total 11,586.53
(b) Short Term Loans from Banks - Secured-Overdraft
From Canara Bank 7,500.00
From Indusind Bank -
From SBI 7,500.00
Total 15,000.00
(c) Other loans and advances - Secured
Foreign Currency Buyers Credit 12,740.24
(d) Interest accred and due
State Bank of India 47.87
Canara Bank 35.35
HDFC Bank -
Total 39,409.99
(e) Short term foreign currency loan from SBT-Unsecured 5,007.79
Total 44,417.78
Notes : (i) Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings :
AS AT
Particulars Nature of security 31.03.2016
3 lacs
Loans repayable on demand from
banks :
SBI 8,259.32
Parri passu charge over current
assets of the company. Equitable
Mortgage as collateral over the 3.26
Canara Bank land with building at Poojappura,
HDFC Bank Trivandrum towards State Bank 3,284.23
of India
From SBI Hypothecation of Lease Hold 10.11

Short Term Loans from Banks -
Secured Overdraft

From Canara Bank

From Indusind Bank

From SBI

Other Loans and Advances :
Buyers Credit
Less : Long Terms Borrowings

Rights & Hospital Equipments-Life

Spring Hospitals (P) Ltd.

Secured by Lease land of Goa Govt

-Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals 29.61
Ltd

7,5635.35

Secured by Project Deposits (HLL) -
7,547.87

15.083.22

Secured by Project Deposits (HLL) 14,149.94
1,409.70
12,740.24

Total 39,409.99
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AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

13,765.84
4,811.89
4,206.25

22,783.98

2,500.00

2,492.52
4,992.52

9,842.08

15.40
35.86

37,669.84

37,669.84

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

13,753.56

4,827.29
4,242.11

12.28

2,500.00

2,492.52
4,992.52

10,441.18
599.10
9,842.08

37,669.84
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Tooft 9 3T AR (A &)
qaROT 31.03.2016 &1 31.03.2015 &I
T ot § T arEl §
T IR :
I, AT 3R W b AT
- g g RMR wemE S 865.13 23803
- 3 22,983 60 23,182 11
Dl 23,848.73 23,420.14
Tooft 10 3 aTe], ITATT (| &)
qIROT 31.03.2016 @I 31.03.2015 &1
T ot | T o @l |
(@) dratg = FoT B AT TGN (R B WO (i) FTHH ) 214275 245877
(@) s
Ireh/Hafdbell & 3 T 487420 10,717 51
$ TH S 3R gaq d o 3,526 28 261120
TS YT of B < T8 62.80 3165
A9 & ST 0.10 0.10
3T qIaATY 7604 27 534693
Frererit U9 areTn - 2923
FTH WY A U 065 117
TRIRTEITEAT 3R B & ST 204 227
El 18,213.09 21,198 .83

Tugoft (i) : A @Y F FHof B gl g IR (e dh FOT B A T AT b AR <ol 5 H et (i)

BT ded ) ¢
ER] 31.03.2016 9% 31.03.2015 d&
T ar@ ¥ T arE |

qATST K0T

HATG! 0T TIU 99175 1,002.08

=it T FATET T 1,151.00 1,456 69
El 2,142 75 2,458 .77
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Note 9 Trade Payables (Consolidated)

AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016
3 lacs
Trade payables :
for materials, services and expenses
- Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 865.13
- Others 22,983.60
Total 23,848.73
Note 10 Other current liabilities (Consolidated)
AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016
3 lacs
(a) Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note (i) below) 2,142.75
(b) Others
Advance from Customers/Clients 4,874.20
EMD & Security Deposits 3,526.28
Interest Accrued but not due 62.80
Fixed Deposit 0.10
Other Liabilities 7,604.27
Contributory Pension Scheme -
Income Received in Advance 0.65
Deposits from laboratories & Pharmacies 2.04
Total 18,213.09

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

238.03
23,182.11

23,420.14

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs
2,458.77

10,717.51
2,611.20
31.65
0.10
5,346.93
29.23
1.17

2.27
21,198.83

Note (I) : Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Notes (i) in Note 5 - Long-term borrowings for details

of security) :

Particulars

Term loans
Rupee Term Loan
Foreign Currency Term Loan

AS AT
31.03.2016

% lacs

991.75
1,151.00

Total 2,142.75
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AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

1,002.08
1,456.69
2,458.77



Twofl 11 3rcudl dd Iau (FH &)

TRl 31.03.2016 @& 31.03.2015 @&
T o | T ot |
(®) HHAR TASTH & Y WG :
(i) 99 3R WATed & ¢ Yrae 24413 129 91
(ii) SISl iR w1 & Y yraeT 31043 134 34
(iii) SYSH & Y Yrage 423 20 82219
(V)JU S T M7 $ ¢ Jrae 17197 231.82

1,149.73 1,318.26
(@) 3= graern :

(i) U< ad fae) SmvieT & oY T 387.07 387.07
(ii) TR<TT I SR R PR & AV TdE 8578 7880
(iii) PRI & T UTaer 160.00 2585
632 85 491.72
Pl 1,782 58 1,809.98
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Note 11 Short-term provisions (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

% lacs 3 lacs

(a) Provision for employee benefits :
(i) Provision for bonus and incentive 244.13 129.91
(i) Provision for Perks & Allowance 310.43 134.34
(iii) Provision for gratuity 423.20 822.19
(iv) Provision for group EL Premium 171.97 231.82
1,149.73 1,318.26

(b) Provision - Others :

(i) Provision for proposed equity dividend 387.07 387.07
(i) Provision for tax on proposed dividends 85.78 78.80
(iii) Provision for taxation 160.00 25.85
632.85 491.72
Total 1,782.58 1,809.98
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HLL Lifecare Limited
Innovating for Healthy Generations
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)7 HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 14. Long Term Loans & Advances (Consolidated)

Particulars

LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances
Lease Building deposits
Security Deposits
Total

Note 15. Other Non-Current Assets (Consonlidated)

Particulars

Fee for RoC for enhancing Authorised Share Capital to the extend
not written off
ECB Loan Upfront charges
Preliminary Expenses
MAT Credit Entitlement
Total

Annual Report 2015-2016
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AS AT
31.03.2016

% lacs

1,001.08
60.02
32.26

1,093.36

AS AT
31.03.2016

% lacs

28.00
17.37
79.78
261.70
386.85

AS AT
31.03.2015

% lacs

40.83
64.60
21.62
127.05

AS AT
31.03.2015

? lacs

56.00
27.80
83.78
544.35
711.93
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 16 Inventories (Consolidated)
(At lower of cost and net realisable value)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
a. Raw Materials (Valued at cost) 1,623.65 2,294.33
1,623.65 2,294.33
b. Packing Materials (Valued at cost) 1,365.21 1,014.60
1,365.21 1,014.60
c. Work-in-progress (Valued at Actual Process Cost) 2,366.02 1,516.16
2,366.02 1,516.16
d. Finished goods (Valued at Lower of cost or NRV)
Manufactured Products 1,612.48 2,554.84
Social Marketing Products 95.88 36.79
Trading Products 1,588.20 1,391.12
Goods-in-transit 35.64 23.96
3,332.20 4,006.71
e. General Stores and Consumables (Valued at cost) 233.55 148.37
233.55 148.37
f.  Other materials, machinery, spare parts, building materials
etc. (Valued at cost) 1,064.85 1,232.29
1,064.85 1,232.29
g. Tools revalued & certified by management 9.52 5.11
9.52 511
h. Others
Scrapped/Surplus Assets (at lesser of cost or net realisable value) 57.90 28.89
Gift items (at cost) 47.98 105.21
Stationery (at cost) 58.42 66.14
164.30 200.24
10,159.30 10,417.81
Less:Closing Provision for Obsolete Stock 67.37 89.32
Total 10,091.93 10,328.49
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 17 Trade receivables (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months
from the date they were due for payment
Secured, considered good* 1,837.63 965.62
Unsecured, considered good 28,467.10 40,867.72

30,304.73 41,833.34
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they were due for payment

Secured, considered good 2,020.18 -
Unsecured, considered good 29,562.13 22,238.51
considered doubtful 1,416.27 1,327.63
33,000.56 23,566.14

Less : Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1,418.27 1,327.63
31,582.29 22,238.51

Total 61,887.02 64,071.85

* Secured against Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantee & Customer Deposit.

Note 18 Cash and cash equivalents (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs % lacs
(A) Balance with banks

(i) (a) In Term Deposit accounts with less than 12 months maturity 3,074.72 11,199.99
(b) In Term Deposit accounts with more than 12 months maturity 313.33 269.39

(c) In Term depsoits held for margin money for borrowings
and guarantee 28.19 23.08
(ii) In Current Accounts 1,501.06 1,167.35
(iii) In EE Foreign Currency Accounts 207.89 296.61
(iv) In Overdraft A/c (Debit balance) 13.14 34.40
(B) Cash/stamps on hand 31.53 18.99
Total 5,169.86 13,009.81
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

Note 19 Short-term loans and advances (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
(a) Security deposits & EMD
Secured, considered good 0.48 0.13
Unsecured, considered good 1,080.34 1,086.86
Sub Total 1,080.82 1,086.99
(b) Loans and advances to employees
Secured, considered good 17.64 17.65
Unsecured, considered good 472.39 414.73
Considered Doubtful 117 117
491.20 433.55
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 117 117
Sub Total 490.03 432.38
(c) Prepaid expenses - Unsecured, considered good 239.27 182.26
239.27 182.26
(d) Balances with government authorities
Unsecured, considered good
(i) Advance Income Tax 1,404.73 1,020.71
(i) Sales Tax Advances 175.76 2.13
(iii) Others 523.16 55.56
2,103.65 1,078.40
(e) Others (Advance to Creditors, Deposit to various agencies etc)
Secured, considered good 101.24 148.94
Unsecured, considered good 4,847.67 5,387.65
Considered Doubtful 982.30 1,017.53
5,931.21 6,554.12
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 982.30 1,017.53
Sub Total 4,948.91 5,536.59
Total 8,862.68 8,316.62
Note : Short-term loans and advances include amounts due from :
AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Directors 0.40 0.52
Other officers of the Company 56.40 88.45
56.80 88.97
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Note 20 Other current assets (Consolidated)

AS AT AS AT
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

3 lacs 3 lacs

(a) Accruals
(i) Interest accrued on FDR 27.93 36.32
(ii) Interest accrued on Deposits 4.87 2.76
32.80 39.08

(b) Others

(i) Export Incentives/Duty Draw back 301.77 262.84
(i) Interest on Subsidy Receivable 17.47 -
(iii) Contractually reimbursable expenses 3.47 6.48
(iv)\Other Non-Operating Income 121.12 4.18
443.83 544.19
Total 476.63 583.27
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Note 21 Revenue from operations (Consolidated)

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

3 lacs 3 lacs

(a) Sale of products 90.598.33 84,935.43
(b) Sale of services 9,985.74 7,029.19
(c) Income from Contract 8,197.62 15,096.00
(d) Other operating revenues 5.043.50 4,303.14
1,13,825.19 1,11,363.76

Less :

(e) Excise duty 1,089.54 810.69

Total 1,12,735.65 1,10,553.07

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs % lacs

0] Sale of products comprises

Sale of Contraceptive Products 41.643.22 43,316.43
Sale of Healthcare Products 27,410.80 25,760.47
Sale of Social Marketing Products 1,468.27 1,034.75
Sale of Trading Products and Others 19,761.13 14,522.82
Product subsidy on saheli 314.91 300.96
Sub Total 90,598.33 84,935.43
Sale of services 9,985.74 7,029.19
Income from Contract 8,197.62 15,096.00
Other operating revenues 5,043.50 4,303.14
Grand Total 1,13,825.19 1,11,363.76

Other operating revenues comprise :

Cost of free sample supplied 2,739.34 2,692.21
Incentive on Social Marketing 423.35 122.54
Promotional Subsidy on Saheli and Novex sales 466.76 522.54
Duty Rebate/Duty drawback/Other export incentives 853.16 389.89
Sale of scrap, waste condoms and other misc. items 477.42 490.67
Sale of tender form 43.56 61.91
Others 39.91 23.38
Total 5,043.50 4,303.14
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Note 22. Other income (Consolidated)

@)
(b)

@)

(ii)

Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2016
3 lacs
Interest income (Refer Note (i) below) 150.03
Other non-operating income (Refer Note (ii) below) 666.31
Total 816.34
Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2016
% lacs
Interest income comprises :
Interest from banks on :
a) On shortterm deposit 42.87
b) On Others 107.16
Total - Interest income 150.03
Other non-operating income comprises :
Rental income from Staff quarters 3.56
Profit on sale of fixed assets 4.71
Insurance claims 78.22
Excess provision / credits written back 80.82
Lease rent 50.84
Other Misc. Income 448.16
Total - Other non-operating income 666.31
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Note 23 Cost of materials consumed (Consolidated)

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs % lacs
Opening stock 3,308.22 3,149.00
Add : Purchases 24,293.13 22,338.87
27,601.35 25,487.87
Less : Closing stock 2,988,15 3,308.94
Cost of material consumed 24,613.20 22,178.93

Materials consumed comprises :

Raw Materials 13,421.51 12,128.25
Chemicals 2,742.44 3,023.63
Packing Materials 7229.27 6,174.32
Cost of quality and sub contract expense 1,220.00 722.53
Consumables - 130.20

Total 24,613.22 22,178.93

Note 24 Purchases of Stock-in-trade (Consolidated)
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
3 lacs 3 lacs
Trading Products 25,492.59 18,282.53
Social Marketing Branded Products 1,394.73 3,202.19
Total 26,887.32 21,484.72

Note 25 Changes in inventories of finished goods, and work-in-progress (Consolidated)

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
% lacs T lacs

Inventories at the end of the year :

Finished goods 3,262.51 3,954.04
Work-in-progress 2,366.02 1,516.16
Stock in trade 69.70 52.67
5,698.23 5,522.87

Inventories at the beginning of the year :
Finished goods 3,954.04 5,790.40
Work-in-progress 1,516.17 1,552.05
Stock in trade 52.67 37.57
5,522.88 7,380.02
Net (Increase) / decrease (175.35) 1,857.15
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Note 26 Employee benefits expense (Consolidated)
Particulars

() Salaries and incentives
(b) Contribution to -
Provident fund
New pension scheme
Gratuity fund contributions
Earned Leave Fund
Contribution to ESI

(c) Staff welfare expenses

Total
Note 27 Finance costs (Consolidated)
Particulars
(a) Interest expense on :
(i) Cash Credit
(if) Term Loan
(b) Other borrowing costs
Total
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Note 28 Other expenses (Consolidated)

Particulars

Advertisement & Publicity and Sales Promotion Expenses

Power & fuel charges

Freight & Other Selling Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance

Other Production expenses

Wages to Contract Labourers

Consultancy & Service Charges

Free sample distribution

Miscellaneous Expenses

Provision for bad & doubtful debts/Advances
Repairs & Maintenance Machinery

Postage & Telegram, Telephone

Research & Development Expenses
Corporate R & D Centre Expenses

Rent

Printing & Stationery

Repairs & maintenance of other assets
Water charges

Insurance charges

Bank charges

Exchange Fluctuation

Staff recruitment expenses

Rates & Taxes

Provision for obsolete stores written off
Book value of obsolete assets/stores written off
Training program expenses

Repairs & Maintenance of buildings

Bad debt & advances written off

Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below)
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets/scrapped assets
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
Royalty paid

Donation

Grantto HMA

Prior period items (net) (Refer Note (ii) below)

Year Ended
31.03.2016
% lacs
4,271.51

3,154.50
3,365.23
1,768.09
2,625.34
1,795.83
3,082.94
2,798.83
1,526.81
117.78
591.68
357.56
696.71
437.10
234.44
216.77
214.80
195.09
93.29
(52.46)
101.53
321.01
11.97
70.25
90.10
164.14
13.33
28.65
1.48
20.97
76.47
2.30
0.59
25.00
25.63
Total 28,445.21
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Note 28 Other expenses (Consolidated) (Contd.)

; Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31.03.2016  31.03.2015
% lacs 3 lacs

(i) Payments to the auditors comprises

Audit fees 21.18 16.33
Tax Audit fees 3.15 2.36
Audit expenses 4.32 5.73

Total 28.65 24.42

(i) Details of Prior period items (net)
Prior period income
Other Income 14.30 54.02
Total 14.30 54.02

Prior period expenses

Administrative Expenses 37.23 22.60
Other Expenses 2.70 36.85

Total 39.93 59.45
Prior period items (net) 25.63 5.43
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Particulars
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relates to HLL Lifecare Limited (‘the Company'), its
subsidiary and Joint Venture. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
following basis :

The financial statements of the Parent Company and its Subsidiary Companies are consolidated
on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses, after eliminating the intra-group balances, intra-group transactions in
accordance with Accounting Standard-21 on "Consolidated Financial Statements".

The financial statements of Joint Venture are combined by applying proportionate consolidation
method of line-by-line basis on items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after in
accordance with Accounting Standard-27 on "Financial Reporting of Interest in Joint Ventures".
As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and events in similar circumstances and are presented
to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Parent Company's separate financial statements.

The Subsidiary/Joint Venture Companies considered in the financial statements are as follows

Name of the Country of Relationship Ownership

Company Incorporation Interest as on
31.03.2015

HLL Biotech Limited India Subsidiary 100%

(HBL)

GoaAntibiotics and India Subsidiary 74%

Pharmaceuticals Limited

(GAPL)

HLL Infra Tech Services

Limited (HITES) India Subsidiary 100%

LifeSpring Hospitals India Joint Venture 50%

Pvt. Ltd.

The excess of cost to the parent of its investments in a subsidiary over the parents portion of equity
at the date on which investment is made, is recognised as goodwill on consolidation and recognised
separately under Non-Current Assets. Starting from 2014-15, we have amortised the Goodwill on
Consolidaton over a period of 10 years.

Minority Interest in the net assets of subsidiary, consists of the amount of equity attributable to
the minority shareholders at the date on which investment is made in subsidiary company and
further movements in the equity, subsequent to the date of investment.

HLL InfraTech Services Limited was incorporated as al100% subsidiary of HLL on 3" April 2014.
The Company is engaged in providing the services in the area of construction, infrastructure
development, engineering services, procurement management, supply chain management, facility
management services etc.

Significant Accounting Policies
Significant accounting policies of parent company are enclosed as Annexure-I.
Inventories

The weighted average formula is used for the valuation of raw materials, stores and spares.However
FIFO Method of valuation of inventories has been followed by Goa Antibiotics and Pharmaceuticals
Ltd. (GAPL)

Fixed Assets
The brand name “Lifespring” of Joint Venture is amortized over a period of 10 years.
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Trade Mark Expenses

In parent company (HLL), expenses incurred on trade mark registrations is treated as Capital
work in progress and is capitalised under ‘intangible assets' when licenses are received.
Subsequent expenditure incurred on licenses which is already capitalized will be recognised
as revenue expenses in the period in which such expenses are incurred.

Method of depreciation/Amortisation

Consequent to the Companies Act, 2013, in the case of the parent Company, Depreciation has
been charged on straight line method for all assets under Plant & Machinery and written down
value method for other assets (other than intangible asset and lease hold assets) so as to write
off the cost of the assets after retaining residual value of 5% of the cost, over the useful lives of
the assets prescribed in the Act, except for those assets whose useful lives are determined
based on any technical advice.

Components of main assets were identified and determined separately, if they have a useful life
that is materially different from that of the principal asset. 10% of Original Cost as been considered
as Threshold Limit to determine the component to be material or not.

HLL Biotech Limited has provided depreciation on the Written down value method based on
the useful specified in the Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

Goa Antibiotics & Pharmaceuticals Ltd (GAPL) & Life Spring Hospitals have adopted Straight
line method of depreciation based on the useful life specified in the Schedule Il of Companies
Act, 2013.

Research and Development expenses directly attributable to generating asset are capitalized at
cost as ‘Intangible Asset’ and will be amortized over a period of 10 years in HBL and amortized
over a period of 5 years in GAPL. Preliminary expenses will be written off over a period of 5
years from the year of commencement of commercial operation.

Trade Marks shall be amortised over a period of 5 years from the date of recognition of intangible
asset. In case of GAPL, trade mark is amortised on straight line basis on its useful life as per
Companies Act.

Revenue recognition

HBL is yet to commence the commercial operation and the project is under construction stage.
Interest earned during the construction period on un-utilised surplus funds is deducted from
the revenue expenditure incurred during the construction period and the net amount of such
revenue expenditure will be capitalised when the construction is completed.

Segment reporting

The Company has identified its reportable segments for Segment Reporting, in accordance

with Accounting Standard 17, as Contraceptive Products, Healthcare Products, Trading Products,

Services and Contracts which are the primary groups. In addition, the following specific accounting

policies have been followed for Segment Reporting.

(a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to
the segment, including inter segment revenue.

(b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment results. Expenses which relate to the company as a whole and
not allocable to segments are included under “Unallocable expenditure”.

(c) Income which relates the company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included
in “Unallocable Income”.

(d) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective
segments. Unallocable Corporate assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities
that relate to the company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

In respect of business segments of subsidiaries and Joint venture, the same has been

considered under Health Care in the Consolidated Segment Reporting except HITES. This has

been grouped under Procurement and Consultancy Service.
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Explanatory Notes

These notes are to be read in conjunction with the explanatory notes forming part of the stand alone
financial statements of the parent company.

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share

31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Numerator Net Profit ¥ In Lacs
Profit after Tax as per Statement o f Profit & Loss 3,106.09 3,267.08
Denominator- Average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year 25,53,08,333 19,35,35,000
No. of Shares - Basic & Diluted 29,04,15,000 19,35,35,000
Earnings per share ()
Basic (Face Value of ¥ 10/- per share) 1.22 1.69
Diluted (Face Value of 10/- per share) 1.22 1.69

Balance in Debtors, Creditors and loans and advances are subject to confirmation /
reconciliation.

Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development [MSMED] Act,
2006 are as under :

® in lacs)

SI No Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
(@) The principal amount remaining unpaid

at the end of the year. 865.13 238.03
(b) The delayed payments of principal amount

paid beyond the appointed date during the year. Nil Nil
c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of the

MSMED Act .Nil Nil
(d) Normal interest due and payable during the year,

for all the delayed payments, as per the agreed terms. Nil Nil
(e) Total interest accrued during the year and

remaining unpaid . Nil Nil

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information available with the Company.

Consolidated Segment Report is presented in Annexure 2
Financial information regarding the subsidiary/joint ventures is given in Annexure 3.

In the case of GAPL, secondary geographical segment as required under Segment Reporting,
has not been identified, Hence, this is grouped as Domestic business,

The subsidiary company GAPL had marketing arrangements with M/s Goa Food & Pharma (P)
limited. The party owes the company an amount of ¥8.50 Cr as per the terms of Arbitration Award
out of which ¥4.13Cr is towards substantive claims and ¥4.37Cr towards interest.

Provision for bad debts amounting to ¥2.65 Cr only is made towards interest. In case of two other
parties M/s Emcee Enterprises and M/s Madhur Pharma, also the Company has preferred an appeal
against them for recovering dues amounting to ¥55.27 lacs and ¥15.05 lacs respectively. No
provision for bad debts has been created for the same.
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GAPL has taken on sub-lease, two factories at Ajmer and Jaipur in Rajasthan for manufacture of
Ayurvedic and Homeopathic products. The company accounts for all purchases and all expenses
based on statements provided.

The consolidated Contingent liabilities forming part of the financial statements, is presented in
Annexure 3.

On the land leased by Govt. of Goa in Survey No. 47/0 of Village Tuem, over a period it is noticed
that there are about 40 encroachment reported as on Balance Sheet date. The Company has
taken up the matter with the Revenue/Appropriate Authorities for eviction of these illegal structures,
encroaching around 15000 Sq, Meter area.

Figures of the previous year have been rearranged and regrouped wherever necessary to suit
current year’s requirements and rounded off to the nearest lakhs.

Additional Information , as required under Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013, of entities consolidated
as Subsidiaries/Joint Venture is presented as Annexure-IV.

Annual Report 2015-2016
321



HH .

1.1

1.2

1.3

Y 1 - A HU Bt ARIE < A a3t
Jaxo
T HA I
TAUAS ASHHIR A AcS 9¥ 1966 # FATaT HUt g 999 2013 & §RI oM Ad iR 9Rd H
31 gaT I HRA TRBR §RT U1 WY I W AT W, 7 R STH 2 | Tavellel ASHHIR o ACS Bl
21 BRaxy, 2012 ¥ AraS 9 of 7S HUHl &b =Y H Y Xafad oA T 8 | Y=t T4 TRIED Seq1al Bl
SO & g A0 Gd qUU, AT ST, F Tl TR BT SIS IR TR Jef] qHRaT 3R HT901
3R AIET Teh A3 & Y URTHY Ud ST AdT¢ &I bRl H ol k&< & | Dol <2 3R SfeRisiy
ST ITART BT Jdg BT 2 |
e er@r = @t
HRA H A ©Y ¥ WIghd ol 1 731 (3 $I9 St T T UT) & IR SUl & a<iig qav9l 9911 T 2 |
BT 7 R b Fa] TEIBR ARIAT & ISET0N/ ARG FEidl & 3refrar dusit 739 2006 (Jer
He &) F (T Ad) 3R BT 37 ¢ T 2013 & G TraeTi o SrEfi of o 7« o A b
A1y [ AEIYUl A P IJUTT HRb §9 IR gaRVN Bl IR HAT | T<ig GaR0T Higwd MR
TR IR IRURA o’ g9 P JdT TR Y T & | AT Y A g AfCe B S b, axiig qavol
B TART H YA oG T TB Ul P F1 AR I 8 |
AMHET & AN
I gaRUT Bl JART Y& BT a9 & SR JUIE DI T3 T Y AT IR AN B IBH (URF Th
AT W &) MR RUIC HY Y 3 AR I H qaR P bl 3R GaTGAT a1 379 &1 § | Jaiel
I PRAT T & Ieid GaRVT B TAR H TGTh MMbeld qaa! 3R I ad © | 9 I U 0T 37 AHei
P BROT 9 BRI AR T IV f 9l 81 dTol/P1A=ad 81 dTell 37d 9 H 8= &I Sl & |
Tl 9 THY AT
Hqd u IHy Tt
3 T A TAT WIRTI A R ¥ I JeIg™ B9 B ol T8 & | AN ¥ A9aIe 3 8¢ & Ade
STEl Pl ar] &, A IR T @ WA & | T8 U RASHIG/Y JGERT Bl gg e b oY @ gy 1o
2 F1e] Yol BRI & WY H A1 1§ | I8 FGATI JRH DR b H2H g9 H T AT AR H 37 A
BT ST | T 7S Y IAISHT/Y Faarg 3 a<iig guf ot 19 el # Hraffd 781 oy 79 € o 9t =g
TR a9 # Iova § g Id BRI | /e U IEY 1 B AR H SUR IR TSl (W7 I 3T &Y R
Y I ) AR TS Y Y TN & 37 TRV & AU JUNY U F IR Y 9F g AHA & | A0
TS DI 379 & BT T dTe], oil S & A A A HAT AT & AR T§ TA0T Bl FHIG TR Ae &
7], U XY <A Bl 3ATe S HAT ST 8 | BHRYG Shed G AV G F€1 & Ade H gY & F-4d1 ¥ 1
TRT B O AT, Goil B1d & eI 3 A HAT Sl 2 |
3 9 Y <t
1.4.2003 ¥ @9 g HRICY WICIIR Bl AN iR A6 Yodb HI 3Fd U WY A1 & w9 H§ qHipd
HY O & |
2T Wh _qY
TS WId USNRYT W W g IY, A1 Yot 1 & wY § AT S MR AHE U B & IR
T Y A & 1 Topd ST ST | S AISH-A1 IR W Y SaRdd) I, $I V4 T T g8 ad o
H IS I b Y H AT &1 ST |

¥ RYIE 2015-2016
322



SI. No.

1.1

1.2

13

o A
~ = . . .
)7 HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

Annexure 1 Significant Accounting Policies of Parent Company
Particulars
Corporate information

HLL Lifecare Limited, incorporated in the year 1966, is a MiniRatna Enterprise, fully owned by
Government of India, domiciled in India and governed by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
HLL Lifecare Ltd was converted into a Public Limited Company with effect from 21st February 2012.
The company is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of a range of Contraceptive products,
Hospital products, Women Health Pharma products, providing Consultancy & Contract services for
healthcare infrastructure, Procurement and Diagnostic services. The company caters to both domestic
and international markets.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, (as amended) and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 besides the pronouncements/guidelines of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and
under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial
statements are consistent with those of previous years, unless specified separately.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, requires the Management to make estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities)
and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates
used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ
due to changes in these estimates and the difference between the actual results and the estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the results are known / materialized.

Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all
incidental expenditure net of CENVAT credit wherever applicable. Revenue expenses incurred for
identification of new projects/ new line of businesses are treated as capital work in progress.
This will be absorbed into the project cost in the first year of commencing the business. If the new
project/ new line of business do not materialize within a period of three financial years, the entire
expenses shall be charged to Revenue in the 3@ year. The cost of fixed assets includes interest
on borrowings (calculated at the weighted average rates) and administrative expenses specifically
attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets. Expenditure during construction period is included
under Capital Work-in-Progress and the same is allocated to the respective fixed assets on the
completion of construction.In respect of Pharmaceutical manufacturing facility, expenditure incurred
are included under Capital Work in Progress till the validation process is completed

Intangible Asset
Cost of computer software and License fee incurred from 1.4.2003 are classified as intangible assets.
Trade Mark Expenses

Expenses incurred on trade mark registrations will be treated as Capital work in progress and will be
capitalized under ‘intangible assets’ when licenses are received. Subsequent expenditure incurred on
those licences will be recognized as revenue expenses in the period in which such expenses are
incurred.
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Method of depreciation/Amortization

Depreciation on tangible assets has been made in line with the requirement under Schedule Il
of the Companies Act 2013. Further, Depreciation has been charged on straight line method for
all assets under Plant & Machinery and written down value method for other assets (other than
intangible asset and lease hold assets) so as to write off the cost of the assets after retaining
residual value of 5% of the cost, over the useful lives of the assets prescribed in the Act, except for
those assets whose useful lives are determined based on any technical advice.Components of
main assets were identified and determined separately, if they have a useful life that is materially
different from that of the principal asset. 10% of original cost of the principal asset has been
considered as threshold limit to determine whether component is material or not. With respect to
Leasehold Assets, depreciation/amortization has been charged on straight line method over the
primary period of lease or over the specified period, whichever is shorter. Depreciation/
amortization in respect of leasehold improvements is provided on the straight line method over
the primary period of the lease.The cost of computer software other than ERP Software Solution
is amortized equally over a period of 3 years , whereas ERP software solution is amortized over
a period of 8 years on pro-rata basis. License fee paid is amortized equally over the agreement
period.Additions to Fixed Assets from 01.04.1993, costing Rs.5000/- each or less are fully
depreciated during the year of purchase, irrespective of the date of addition retaining the residual
vale of assets.Machinery spares acquired with the equipment are depreciated using the same
rates and method applicable for the original machinery. In the case of Machinery spares procured
separately for future use, rate equivalent to accumulated depreciation for the expired life of the
relative machinery are charged in the year of acquisition along with depreciation for the year.Trade
Mark expenses are amortized over a period of 5 years from the date of recognition of intangible
asset.

Leases

Fixed Assets acquired and given on lease are shown as part of fixed assets. In regard to operating
leases, rentals are expensed with reference to terms of the lease agreement. Lease rental income
is accounted on accrual basis.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of assets is recognized when there is an indication of Impairment. On such indication
the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and if such estimation is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary, if any.
Inventories

The weighted average formula is used for the valuation of raw materials, stores and spares.
Work-in-progress, materials in transit/under inspection is carried at actual process cost. Unused
Loose Tools are revalued every year taking into account the useful life of the tools and carried at
the revalued cost. Finished goods manufactured/goods purchased for trading are valued at lower
of cost/net realizable value, including excise duty, wherever applicable. Manufactured / traded
finished goods in stock whose shelf life expires within three months from the Balance Sheet date
are taken at NIL value.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary
items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on audited financial statements.
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Revenue recognition

Sales comprise of value of sale of goods (net of returns) excluding sales tax and discounts but
including excise duty. Insurance claims are accounted on receipt basis. Interest on investments
is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the fixed rate
of interest. Revenue from services business is recognized on accrual basis. Revenues from
maintenance contracts are recognized pro rata over the period of the contract. Revenue from
Infrastructure - development division and Procurement Consultancy division related activities are
recognized as follows:

a) In case of turnkey contracts ,on the basis of progress billing to the contract value under survey
method.

b) In the case of other contracts, on the basis of completion of obligation as per the terms of
contract with the agencies concerned.

Other Operating Revenues

The revenue against realization of waste latex, empty drums, rejected products and other scrap
items are accounted on cash basis.Duty drawback/export incentive in respect of export sales are
accounted in the year of export. The realization in respect of obsolete assets/materials written off
is accounted on cash basis.

Other Income

Interest income if any for delayed realization from sundry debtors as stipulated in invoices is not
recognized, unless realized. Income other than the above are accounted on accrual basis.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign exchange are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of transactions. Foreign currency receivables/payables are translated at the exchange rates as
on the Balance Sheet date. Gain or losses arising out of such transactions are adjusted to the
statement of Profit and Loss.

Premium or discount on foreign exchange forward contracts booked for hedging existing assets/
liabilities are amortised and recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the
contract. Foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding as at the year end on account of firm
commitment transactions are marked to market and the losses, if any are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss and gains are ignored in accordance with the announcement of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting of Derivatives issued in March 2008.
Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences on translation or settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items
(i.e., whose term of settlement exceeds twelve months from the date of its origination) at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded or reported in the previous financial
statements, in so far as it relates to acquisition of depreciable assets are adjusted to the cost of
the assets as per GOI notification dated 31.03.2009 and 29.12.2011 and this will be amortized
over the remaining life of the Asset.

Government grants

a) Grants in the form of investment subsidy are credited to separate reserve.

b) Revenue grants/subsidy (other than product subsidy) relating to sales are disclosed separately
under other operating revenues, whereas product subsidy is disclosed under sales and services.

Employee benefits
a) Gratuity and Leave Encashment

The Gratuity liability and Leave Encashment liabilities are determined under separate group
schemes maintained with LIC of India. The liabilities towards these schemes are estimated yearly,
based on actuarial valuation.

b) Voluntary Retirement Benefits

The entire liability on account of payments under VRS, if any is charged off to the Profit and Loss
Account in the same year.
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c) Post Employment Medical Benefits

The Employees (including their spouse) on the rolls of the Company from 01.07.2005 are
covered under Group Medical Insurance Scheme maintained with Insurance Company.

d) Bonus/ Performance Related Payment

Provision for bonus for the employees is made on the basis of Productivity Linked Incentive
Scheme as per the Long Term Agreement entered into with the recognized trade unions. Executives
at the Board level and below the Board level are covered for Performance Related Pay (PRP) as
per the guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprise.

e) Pension Scheme

Company has introduced a contributory pension scheme from 1-4-2011 for the permanent
employees who are on the rolls of the company as on 9-10-2012. Company contributes 3% of
basic plus DA with a matching contribution from employees. The pension scheme is managed by
LIC of India.

f) Encashment of Half Pay Leave on Superannuation

Company has introduced (w.e.f 15.05.2014) the facility of encashment of Half Pay leave to the
permanent employees at the time of superannuation, subject to an overall ceiling of 300 days
along with Earned Leave. The liability towards the same has been estimated and provided for in
the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs

The borrowing cost incurred / attributable to the acquisition for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset is capitalized. Interest on loan taken specifically for the acquiring assets and the interest
thereon are proportionately allocated to respective assets based on asset value.

Segment reporting

The Company has identified its reportable segments for Segment Reporting, in accordance with
Accounting Standard 17, as Contraceptive Products, Healthcare Products, Trading Products,
Services and Contracts which are the primary groups. In addition, the following specific accounting
policies have been followed for Segment Reporting.

(a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the
segment, including inter segment revenue.

(b) Expenses that are directly identifiable with/allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment results. Expenses which relate to the company as a whole and not
allocable to segments are included under "Unallocable expenditure".

(c) Income which relates to the company as a whole and not allocable to segments is included
in "Unallocable Income".

(d) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments.
Unallocable Corporate assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to
the company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

Taxes on income

Provision for current Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current
accounting period in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Deferred Tax resulting from timing difference between book and taxable profit for the year is
accounted for using the Tax rates and laws that are applicable as on the Balance sheet Date .The
deferred Tax asset is recognized and carried forward only to the extent there is a reasonable
certainty of its realization in future.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act 1961,
which gives rise to future economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability,
is considered as asset in the balance sheet.

Research and development expenses

Capital expenditure on Research and Development is treated in the same manner as Fixed

Assets. The revenue expenditure on Research and development is charged off in the year in
which it is incurred.
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Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect
of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not
discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed separately. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in financial statement.

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses of items of ¥10000/- each and below are charged off to the revenue.
Prior Period Expenses/Income

Income and expenditure relating to prior period exceeding ¥25000/- in each case only is accounted
under prior period.

General Stores/Spares/ Raw Materials/ Finished Products

The provision for loss if any in respect of slow moving items of materials/finished products are
accounted after obtaining the technical opinion regarding the usability/marketability.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

All assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current as per the company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents, 12 months has been considered by the Company for the purpose of
current or non-current classification of assets and Liabilities.
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ANNEXURE II - Referred to in Note No. B.7
Disclosures under Accounting Standards-17 SEGMENT REPORTING (Consolidated)

1.Primary Segment Information

Segment Revenue

Net Sales & Services
Other Unallocable Revenue
Total

Capital Employed
Profit before Interest & Tax
Less: Interest

Less: Other Unallocable Expenditure

Prior period items
Add : Other Unallocable Income
Profit before tax

Capital Employed
Allocated Fixed Assets (a)
Allocated Current Assets (b)

atb

Allocated Current Liabilities
Capital Employed Allocation
Unallocable portion of Capital
Employed

Total Capital Employed

Contraceptives

42,058.43

7,009.94

7,009.94

17,289.44
42,672.69
59,962.13
18,502.72
41,459.41

Particulars

Health Care Trading
28,714.30  15,394.50

754.17 1,029.16

754.17 1,029.16
33,976.42 1,114.22
30,629.34 15,619.33
64,605.76 16,733.55
16,086.17  6,772.49
48,519.59  9,961.07

2.Secondary Segment Information - Geographical Revenue

India
QOutside India

Captial Employed
India
Outside India

For and on behalf of the Board

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman &
Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016

Dr. Babu Thomas
Director (Marketing)
[DIN: 00342401]

P. Sreekumar

CS &SVP (HR)

[FCS: 5875]

Procurement
and
Consultancy
Services

18,700.60

3,201.33

3,201.33

1,990.88
19,020.97
21,011.86

8,208.77
12,803.09

Contract
Services

6,538.72

1,328.18

1,328.18

0.75
6,634.21
6,634.96
2,876.57
3,758.39

T lacs

Total

1,11,406.54
2,145.44
1,13,551.98

13,322.77
2,940.78
6,298.34

0.47
119.28
4,202.47

60,751.54
1,14,576.56
1,75,328.10

52,446.71
1,22,881.39

(63,903.91)
58,977.48

1,02,719.57
10,832.40
1,13,551.98

58,353.32
624.16
58,977.48

Vide our report of even date attached

R. Ganesan
SVP (F) & CFO
[FCA: 26723]
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ANNEXURE IV : Additional Information as per Schedule Ill of Companies Act, 2013
of Subsidiaries & Joint Venture (Refer Note. C.12)

Net Assets ie. Total assets-

Share in Profit

) Total Liabilities or Loss
Name of Entity
As % of Amount As % of Amount
Consolidated ® in lacs) Consolidated ® in lacs)
Net Assets Profit or Loss
Parent
HLL Lifecare Limited 66.10 54,739.20 90.31 2,888.27
Subsidiaries (Indian)
HLL Biotech Ltd 33.10 27,407.85 (1.96) -(62.63)
HLL Infra Tech Services Ltd 0.09 77.66 3.64 116.46
GoaAntibiotics &
Pharmaceuticals Ltd 0.77 641,52 7.69 245,98
Joint Venture
Life Spring Hospitals (P) Ltd (0.07) (57.75) 0,31 10.04
Total 100.00 82,808.48 100.00 3,198.11
(a) Adjustments arising out of consolidation (28,326.56) (28.07)
(b) Minority Interest (151.07) (63.95)
Consolidated Net Asset/Profit after tax 54,330.85 3,106.09
For and on behalf of the Board Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose
Chartered Accountants
Firm No. 000010S
Dr. M. Ayyappan Dr. Babu Thomas P. Sreekumar R. Ganesan CA. Mukesh. K.P

Chairman &
Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016

Director (Marketing)
[DIN: 00342401]

Partner
Membership No : 214773

CS & SVP (HR)
[FCS: 5875]

SVP (F) & CFO
[FCA: 26723]
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HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

ANNEXURE V : Additional Information as per Companies Act, 2013
(Pursuant to section 129 (3) (1) read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014) in Form AOC-1

PART"A" SUBSIDIARIES (FY 2015-16) (X in Lakhs)
Name of the subsidiary company Goa Antibiotics & HLL Infra Tech HLL Biotech
Pharmaceuticals Limited Limited
1. Reporting Currency INR INR INR
2. Share Capital 1,902.00 5.00 27,489.00
3. Reserves & Surplus (1,260.48) 72.66 (81.15)
4, Total Assets 3,406.61 7,174.62 31,791.90
5, Total Liabilities 3,406.61 7,174.62 31,791.90
6. Investments 0.25 - =
7. Turnover 5,059,06 1,953.81 5.76
8. Profit before Tax 376.70 174.97 -66.52
9. Provision for Tax 160.00 58.56 =
10. Profit/loss After Tax 245.98 116.46 -62.63
11. Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil
12. Percentage of Shareholding 74% 100% 100%
Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Nil
Names of subsidiaries which have liqudated or sold during the year : None
PART "B" ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES
Name of Joint Venture Company : Life Spring Hospital (P) Limited
1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2016
2. No. of Shares of Associates/Joint Ventures held by the company on the (X in Lakhs)
year end 78,34,188
Amount of investment in Associates/ Joint Venture 783.42
4, Extend of Holding % 50%

5 Description of how there is significant 50% equity share

holding

& equal Board

representation

along with Acumen

6. Reson why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated NA
7. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited

Balance Sheet (115.49)

8. Profit/Loss for the year 20.07

(i) Considered in Consolidation 10.04

(ii) Not Considered in Consolidation 10.04

For and on behalf of the Board

Vide our report of even date attached
For M/s. Abraham & Jose

Chartered Accountants

Firm No. 000010S

Dr. Babu Thomas
Director (Marketing)
[DIN: 00342401]

Dr. M. Ayyappan
Chairman &
Managing Director
[DIN: 00117374]

New Delhi
26.05.2016

CS & SVP (HR)

R. Ganesan
SVP (F) & CFO
[FCA: 26723]

P. Sreekumar

[FCS: 5875]
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REGISTERED & CORPORATE OFFICE

HLL Lifecare Limited

Registered & Corporate Office
HLL Bhavan, Poojappura
Thiruvananthapuram

Kerala, India 695 012

Tele: 91-471-2354949 ( 5 lines)
Grams ROLATEX

Fax 91-471-2356739

E mail : enquiry@ lifecarehll.com
Website: www.lifecarehll.com

FACTORIES

HLL Lifecare Limited

Peroorkada Factory

Peroorkada.

Thiruvananthapuram 695 005

Tel: 91-471-2437270/2433602/2433459/
2432880/2432292

Fax: 91-471-2435013

HLL Lifecare Limited
Akkulam Factory
Akkulam, Thiruvananthapuram-695017

Tel : 91-471 - 2441384, 2442641, 2442642,

2442692, 2442697
Fax : 91-471-241383

HLL Lifecare Limited

Kanagala Factory, Belgaum

Kanagala, Belgaum — 591225

Tele: 08333-279206, 279207, 279244,
279245, 279239

Fax : 08333-321443

HLL Lifecare Limited
Kakkanad Factory, Cochin

Plot No.16A/1

Kakkanad, Cochin — 682 037
Tele: 0484 — 2413332,2413293
Fax: 0484 - 2413293

HLL Lifecare Limited

Innovating for Healthy Generations

HLL Lifecare Limited
Manesar Unit

Plot No.71, Sector 7
Gurgaon, Haryana - 122050
Tel.N0.0124 — 4030949
Fax No0.0124- 4030949

HLL Lifecare Limited Indore Plant,
Sector-E, Sanver Road

Industrial Area

Indore - M.P.

Tel: (0731) 3259458 / 4011740

HLL Lifecare Limited
Irapuram Factory

Re. Sy. N0.156/3 Block No.29
Rubber Park
Valayanchirangara

Irapuram, Cochin-683556

REGIONAL OFFICE:

NOIDA

Marketing office:

HLL Lifecare Limited

No.B-14A, Sector-62

Noida (U.P.) — 201 301

Tel: 0120-4071500, 0120-4071609 (Mktg.)
Fax No. 0120-4071513/4071627

KOLKATTA

HLL Lifecare Limited,
Suite No: 901, 9th Floor
Krishna Building,
224A, A.J.C.Bose Road
Kolkata - 700017

West Bengal

Tel: 033 22905275/74
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Innovating for Healthy Generations

CHENNAI

HLL Lifecare Limited (CBD/HCD)
No0.185, Plot No.1, Lingavel tower
100 ft. Bye Pass Road, Vijayanagar
Velachery

Chennai — 600 042.

Tel: 044-22453478/22551860/
22551868/22441727

Fax No. 044-22550764

E-mail: hllimktsr@md3.vsnl.net.in

HLL Lifecare Limited (WHD)

No.12, 100 Feet Road,

Velacherry Taramani Road,

Near Canara Bank, Velacherry,

Chennai — 600042

Phone : 044 -22435604, 22435607, 22433306

BANGALORE

HLL Lifecare Limited
#2, 4" Cross
Ex-Servicemen Colony
Banaswadi

Bangalore - 560 043
Phone:080 25424530
Fax ; 080 25424531

HYDERABAD

HLL Lifecare Limited
3-5-816,Veena Dhari Complex,
4™ Floor, King Koti Road,
Hyderguda, Hyderabad - 560029.
Phone & Fax N0.040-23210041

LUCKNOW

HLL Lifecare Limited,

9/316, Vikas Nagar

Lucknow-226 022.

Phone No: 0522-2330945, 2320592
Fax: 0522-2738947/2330945

E-mail: hlatex@satyam.net.in

MUMBAI

HLL Lifecare Limited

HLL Bhavan, 501&502, 5th Floor
Plot No. 86, Sector-11

Near Mandir Chowk, Khopra Road
Behind Khopra Bus Stop

Kharghar, Navi Mumbai - 410210
Maharashtra

Phone No: 022-20870667, 20870668
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mlecuba'CCD 2013

HLL Biotech Ltd (HBL) secures future generations by providing safe and effective vaccines at affordable
prices for every Indian. HBL is partnering with Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, Government of India
to set up a premium facility for production of vaccines for the MNational Immunization Programme and
other new generation vaccines at its campus in Chengalpettu near Chennai.

Ticel Biopark Campus (Module # 013-015), CSIR Road, Taramani, Chennai-600 133, Tel: +91 44 - 22 55 423/ 33
54 enquiry@hllbiotech.com visit: www.hllbiotech.com
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Protecting lives



